Public Document Pack

HRE CITY OF
b1 Lincoln
‘ ' COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Committee Rooms 1-2, City

Wednesday, 9 October 2019 5.30 pm Hall

Membership: Councillors Naomi Tweddle (Chair), Bob Bushell (Vice-Chair),
Biff Bean, Bill Bilton, Alan Briggs, Kathleen Brothwell, Chris Burke,
Gary Hewson, Ronald Hills, Rebecca Longbottom and
Edmund Strengiel

Substitute members: Councillors Jackie Kirk and Neil Murray

Officers attending: Simon Cousins, Democratic Services, Kieron Manning, Louise
Simpson and Dave Walker

The Planning Committee comprises democratically elected members who will be presented
with a recommendation from the professional officers for each application on the agenda.
After each application has been presented, those interested parties who have registered to
speak will then be given 5 minutes to verbally present their views, and, following this, the
committee will debate each proposal and make the decision, having considered all relevant
information.

Clearly the process of making a decision will inevitably cause some people to feel aggrieved,
but it is hoped that all interested parties will feel that their views have been considered as
part of the process.

Please ensure that your mobile phones are switched off or set to silent throughout the
meeting and please refrain from attempting to speak from the public gallery unless you have
formally registered to speak on an application, in which case the Chair will call you to the
table at the relevant time.

AGENDA

SECTION A Page(s)

1. Confirmation of Minutes - 11 September 2019 5-12
2. Declarations of Interest

Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct,

when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and

nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest

(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary.

3. Work to Trees in City Council Ownership 13-18



4. Applications for Development

(@)
(b)
()
(d)
()
(f)

Boultham Park Lake, Boultham Park Road, Lincoln
Phase 4, LN6 Development, Westbrooke Road
38B Willis Close, Lincoln

18-20 Kingsway, Lincoln

NCP Car Park, Motherby Lane, Lincoln

Car Park, Motherby Lane, Lincoln (Signage)

19 - 40

41 -70

71-130

131 -168

169 - 202

203 - 220



THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 (AS AMENDED)

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
FOR PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, CONSERVATION AREA AND ADVERTISEMENT
APPLICATIONS ON THE AGENDA OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Background Papers for the Planning, Listed Building, Conservation Area and
Advertisement Applications are:

1. The Planning Application File. This is a file with the same reference number as that
shown on the Agenda for the Application. Information from the planning application file
is available online at https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

The application files contain the following documents:

the application forms;

plans of the proposed development;

site plans;

certificate relating to ownership of the site;

consultation letters and replies to and from statutory consultees and bodies;
letters and documents from interested parties;

memoranda of consultation and replies to and from Departments of the Council.

@0 aoow

2. Any previous Planning Applications referred to in the Reports on the Agenda for the
particular application or in the Planning Application specified above.

3. Central Lincolnshire Local Plan — Adopted April 2017

4. National Planning Policy Framework - March 2012

5. Applications which have Background Papers additional to those specified in 1 to 5
above set out in the following table. These documents may be inspected at the Planning
Reception, City Hall, Beaumont Fee, Lincoln.

APPLICATIONS WITH ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND PAPERS (See 5 above.)

Application No.: Additional Background Papers


https://development.lincoln.gov.uk/online-applications/

CRITERIA FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE SITE VISITS (AGREED BY DC COMMITTEE ON
21 JUNE 2006 AND APPROVED BY FULL COUNCIL ON 15 AUGUST 2006)

Criteria:

e Applications which raise issues which are likely to require detailed first hand knowledge
of the site and its surroundings to enable a well-informed decision to be taken and the
presentational material at Committee would not provide the necessary detail or level of
information.

e Major proposals which are contrary to Local Plan policies and proposals but which have
significant potential benefit such as job creation or retention, environmental
enhancement, removal of non-confirming uses, etc.

e Proposals which could significantly affect the city centre or a neighbourhood by reason
of economic or environmental impact.

e Proposals which would significantly affect the volume or characteristics of road traffic in
the area of a site.

¢ Significant proposals outside the urban area.
e Proposals which relate to new or novel forms of development.

e Developments which have been undertaken and which, if refused permission, would
normally require enforcement action to remedy the breach of planning control.

e Development which could create significant hazards or pollution.

So that the targets for determining planning applications are not adversely affected by the
carrying out of site visits by the Committee, the request for a site visit needs to be made as
early as possible and site visits should be restricted to those matters where it appears
essential.

A proforma is available for all Members. This will need to be completed to request a site visit
and will require details of the application reference and the reason for the request for the site
visit. It is intended that Members would use the proforma well in advance of the consideration
of a planning application at Committee. It should also be used to request further or additional
information to be presented to Committee to assist in considering the application.



ltem No. 1

Planning Committee 11 September 2019

Present: Councillor Naomi Tweddle (in the Chair),
Councillor Bob Bushell, Councillor Biff Bean, Councillor
Bill Bilton, Councillor Alan Briggs, Councillor
Kathleen Brothwell, Councillor Thomas Dyer, Councillor
Gary Hewson, Councillor Jackie Kirk, Councillor
Rebecca Longbottom and Councillor Christopher Reid

Apologies for Absence: Councillor Chris Burke, Councillor Ronald Hills and
Councillor Edmund Strengiel

20. Confirmation of Minutes - 14 August 2019

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 August 2019 be
confirmed.

21. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Bob Bushell declared a Declaration of Predetermination with regard to
the agenda item titled 'Markham House, 73-75 Swift Gardens, Lincoln'.

Reason: He had already voted in support of this proposal in his capacity as
portfolio holder at Executive.

He left the room during the discussions on this item and took no part in the vote
on the matter to be determined.

22. Work to Trees in City Council Ownership

The Arboricultural Officer:

a. advised members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in the City
Council’'s ownership and sought to consent to progress the works
identified, as detailed in Appendix A of the report

b. explained that Ward Councillors had been notified of the proposed works.

Members referred to works at Boultham Park Cathedral Plantation and queried
the age of the trees that were proposed to be felled. It may be that an additional
2/3 trees needed to be replanted in the vicinity to achieve the same benéefit. It
would be preferable to carry out works on well-established trees to alleviate
problems rather than resort to felling them.

The Arboricultural Officer advised that the trees concerned here were small
juvenile specimens of poor form, with potential to suppress the canopies of other
trees close by capable of developing better form. Maintenance of trees was
managed sympathetically with care. Trees were only felled where absolutely
necessary.

The Chair referred to an earlier conversation she had held with the Arboricultural
Officer regarding instances in Minster Ward where replanted trees had become
damaged and died off. There was a balance to be made with the use of adequate
sized specimens for replanting purposes to achieve maximum aesthetic effect.

5



23.

The Arboricultural Officer responded that young trees unfortunately often suffered
from drought stress and competition from weeds. The use of larger specimens
may benefit their overall longevity with less likelihood of getting damaged.

RESOLVED that tree works set out in the schedules appended to the report be
approved.

(Councillor J Kirk arrived late to the meeting during the consideration of this item.
She sat in the public gallery and took no part in the discussion or vote on the
matter to be determined. She took her seat as a member of Planning Committee
once the decision on this item had been made.)

Application for Development: 8 The Avenue, Lincoln

The Planning Manager:

a. described the application property, 8 The Avenue, currently vacant, a large
three storey Victorian/Edwardian building located on the west side of The
Avenue set back from the road, with 10 The Avenue to the north,
Ridgeway Nursing Home 2-6 The Avenue to the south and to the rear of
the site the rear yards and aspects of a terrace located on Whitehall Grove

b. reported that planning permission was sought for the erection of a single
storey rear extension, to be occupied as an annex, a detached garage to
the rear and 1.2m high railings and gates to the front boundary

c. advised that planning permission had been granted in 2014 to change the
use of the property to an eight bedroom HMO and a self-contained flat,
although this permission was not implemented and had now expired; the
applicant intended to occupy the property as a family dwelling and was
currently undertaking extensive internal and external restoration works,
including the removal of a later single storey rear off-shoot which the
proposed extension was intended to replace

d. highlighted that the design of the rear extension had been subject to a
number of amendments during the process of the application, initially in
response to officer’'s concerns regarding the design with further revisions
to attempt to address the concerns of neighbours relating to the impact on
residential amenity

e. confirmed that all neighbours had been re-consulted on the revised plans

f. reported on the location of the property within the West Parade and
Brayford Conservation Area

g. advised that the application had been called in to be determined by
Members of the Committee at the request of Councillor Preston

h. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

e Policy LP25: The Historic Environment
e Policy LP26: Design and Amenity
e National Planning Policy Framework

6



outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

referred to the update sheet which included a further response received
from the occupiers of 19 Whitehall Grove and a photograph of the original
annex submitted by the applicant in response to the neighbour’s additional
comments

advised members of the main issues to be considered as part of the
application to assess the proposal with regard to:

e Visual amenity and character and appearance of the conservation
area

¢ Residential amenity
concluded that:

e The scale and design of the proposed extension and garage located to
the rear of the property was considered to be acceptable and would
complement the architectural style of the existing property.

e These proposals would accordingly preserve the character and
appearance of the conservation area, with works to reinstate traditional
features, such as the railings, enhancing this.

e The proposals would not cause undue harm to the amenities which
occupiers of neighbouring properties may reasonably expect to enjoy
and the application would therefore be in accordance with the
requirements of Central Lincolnshire Local Plan Policies LP25 and
LP26 and guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework.

Marianne Langley, Applicant, addressed Planning Committee in support of the
proposed development, covering the following main points:

The scheme involved restoration of a large period property.

This would be a family home with a self-contained annex for an elderly
parent.

An existing single-storey off-shoot would be removed to create space for
this self-contained annex.

The current owners had entered into consultations with planning officers
during 2017 regarding their ideas for the property prior to putting in an offer
for 8 The Avenue.

The only other offer received for the premises at the time had been from a
housing group, waiting to submit a lower offer if there was no interest in
the property.

Their family purchased the house in March 2019.

The plans for the annex had been subject to amendment to keep it as
modest as possible and limit any potential impact on the owners of 19
Whitehall Grove.

The annex would be accessed from the main body of the house.
Wheelchair friendly access would be retained.

Car parking spaces would be available at the rear of the property, together
with the addition of a garden and landscaping to create an aesthetically
pleasing look.

The plans for the scheme were in keeping with the scale of the existing
house and environment.



24,

Full use would be made of planting/screening to minimise any impact on
the residential amenity of neighbouring properties.

The garden designer would work on a scheme to minimise any impact/
overlook in respect of the relationship between the annex and the first floor
bedroom of the neighbouring property.

Large period properties such as this one were only saved when they met
the needs of buyers for family use.

Members made comments on the proposed scheme as follows:

The proposals would benefit the area.

Had the property not been located in a Conservation Area, planning
permission would not have been required.

It was good to see that the property would be looked after in the manner it
deserved.

Mitigating measures had been agreed involving the reconfiguration of the
rear elevation of the extension and the rear window facing to minimise
potential overlook/inconvenience.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions:

Development to commence within three years

Development in accordance with approved plans

Annex not to be occupied, sub-let or sold as an independent residential
unit

Garage for domestic use only

Application for Development: Markham House, 73-75 Swift Gardens, Lincoln

(Councillor Bushell left the room for the discussion of this item, having made a
Declaration of Predetermination with regard to the agenda item to be discussed.
He took no part in the vote on the matter to be determined.)

The Planning Team Leader:

a.

described the application property, Markham House, 73-75 Swift Gardens,
a two storey building formerly occupied by St. Giles Matters as community
use, although currently vacant

reported that an existing vehicular access from Swift Gardens to the south
side of the building provided access to a car park at the rear

added that 71 Swift Gardens was adjacent to this access accommodating
flats, with 77A, B, C and D Swift Gardens beyond the opposite side
boundary to the north and the car park of the Myle Cross Centre directly to
the rear of the site

. highlighted that the wider area was predominantly characterised by a mix

of two storey semis and terraces, with parking both on and off street

reported that planning permission was sought for demolition of the existing
building and the erection of a terrace of five, two storey dwellings with the
benefit of an off-street parking space to the front and gardens to the rear

8



f. confirmed that the City of Lincoln Council was the applicant for this
scheme which proposed to provide affordable housing

g. provided details of the policies pertaining to the application, as follows:

Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy LP2: The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy

Policy LP15: Community Facilities

Policy LP26: Design and Amenity

National Planning Policy Framework

h. outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

i. referred to the update sheet which included a response from the City
Council’s Arboricultural Officer identifying that:

e The submitted tree report was comprehensive with controls to
mitigate possible damage to retained trees, conditioned as part of
any consent.

e Proposed pruning to T5, the tree to the front of the site within the
highway would require consent from Lincolnshire County Council

j. advised members of the main issues to be considered as part of the
application to assess the proposal with regard to:

Principle of use
Visual amenity
Residential amenity
Access and highways
Trees

k. concluded that:

e The applicant had provided an appropriate case to sufficiently justify
the loss of the community use and the principle of the use of the site for
residential purposes was considered to be acceptable in this location.

e The development would relate well to the site and surroundings,
particularly in relation to siting, height, scale, massing and design.

e The proposals would also not cause undue harm to the amenities
which occupiers of neighbouring properties may reasonably expect to
enjoy.

e Matters relating to highways and contamination were to the satisfaction
of the relevant consultees and could be dealt with appropriately by
condition.

e The application would therefore be in accordance with the
requirements of Central Lincolnshire Local Plan Policies LP1, LP2,
LP15 and LP26, as well as guidance within the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail, asking why the
plans for the proposed building height had been altered from the original height of
3 storey to two.



25.

The Planning Team Leader confirmed that the change to the height of the
buildings had been made by the applicant and not suggested by planning officers,
although the change had been accepted.

RESOLVED that subject to the Tree Report being to the satisfaction of the City
and County Council Arboricultural Officers, the application be granted subject to
the following conditions:

Time limit of the permission

Development in accordance with approved plans

Contamination

Land levels

Material samples

Boundary details

Landscaping scheme

Electric vehicle recharge points

Construction of the development (delivery times and working hours)
Tree protection measures.

Application for Development: Pepi's Pizza, 283 Newark Road, Lincoln

(Councillor Bushell returned to the room and re-took his seat as a member of
Planning Committee for the remainder of the meeting.)

The Planning Team Leader:

a.

described the application property, Pepi's Pizzeria, located at 283 Newark
Road, Lincoln

advised that the application proposed the replacement of 4 existing
windows and the main door to the front elevation of the premises

reported that the application was brought to Planning Committee due to
the property being in the ownership of the City of Lincoln Council

corrected a small typographical error at paragraph 4, page 69 of the report
to read as follows:

e The replacement windows and main door to the front elevation
would not result in any material changes to access or parking
arrangements, as such Highways and Planning have no objection to
the proposal

provided details of the policies pertaining to the application as follows:

¢ National Planning Policy Framework
e Policy LP26: Design and Amenity

outlined the responses made to the consultation exercise

advised members of the main issues to be considered as part of the
application to assess the proposal with regard to:

e Accordance with National and Local Planning Policy
10



e Impact on the amenity of nearby properties
e Impact on visual amenity
e Highway safety, access and parking

h. concluded that the replacement windows would not have a detrimental

impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties, enhancing the
appearance of the existing property and wider area in accordance with
policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and the National
Planning Policy Framework.

RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions:

Standard Conditions

01)

02)

The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of
this consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in
accordance with the drawings listed within Table A below.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the
approved plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the
application.

Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the
approved plans.

Conditions to be discharged before commencement of works

None.

Conditions to be discharged before use is implemented

None.

Conditions to be adhered to at all times

None.

Table A
The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted
drawings identified below:

Drawing No. Version | Drawing Type Date Received
existing and proposed Other 11th July 2019
windows

11



This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 3

PLANNING COMMITTEE 9 OCTOBER 2019
SUBJECT: WORK TO TREES IN CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP
DIRECTORATE: COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT
REPORT AUTHOR: STEVE BIRD — ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, COMMUNITIES &

STREET SCENE)

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To advise Members of the reasons for proposed works to trees in City Council ownership,
and to seek consent to progress the works identified.

1.2 This list does not represent all the work undertaken to Council trees. It is all the instances
where a tree is either identified for removal, or where a tree enjoys some element of
protection under planning legislation, and thus formal consent is required.

2. Background

2.1 In accordance with policy, Committee’s views are sought in respect of proposed works to
trees in City Council ownership, see Appendix A.

2.2 The responsibility for the management of any given tree is determined by the ownership
responsibilities of the land on which it stands. Trees within this schedule are therefore on
land owned by the Council, with management responsibilities distributed according to the
purpose of the land. However, it may also include trees that stand on land for which the
council has management responsibilities under a formal agreement but is not the owner.

3. Tree Assessment

3.1 All cases are brought to this committee only after careful consideration and assessment
by the Council’s Arboricultural Officer (together with independent advice where
considered appropriate).

3.2 All relevant Ward Councillors are notified of the proposed works for their respective
wards prior to the submission of this report.

3.3 Although the Council strives to replace any tree that has to be removed, in some
instances it is not possible or desirable to replant a tree in either the exact location or of
the same species. In these cases a replacement of an appropriate species is scheduled
to be planted in an alternative appropriate location. This is usually in the general locality
where this is practical, but where this is not practical, an alternative location elsewhere in
the city may be selected. Tree planting is normally scheduled for the winter months
following the removal.

4. Consultation and Communication

4.1 All ward Councillors are informed of proposed works on this schedule, which are within

13




4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

their respective ward boundaries.

The relevant portfolio holders are advised in advance in all instances where, in the
judgement of officers, the matters arising within the report are likely to be sensitive or
contentious.

Strategic Priorities

Let's Enhance our Remarkable Place

The Council acknowledges the importance of trees and tree planting to the environment.
Replacement trees are routinely scheduled wherever a tree has to be removed, in-line
with City Council policy.

Organisational Impacts

Finance (including whole life costs where applicable)

i) Finance

The costs of any tree works arising from this report will be borne by the existing budgets.
There are no other financial implications, capital or revenue, unless stated otherwise in
the works schedule.

ii) Staffing  N/A
iii) Property/Land/ Accommodation Implications ~ N/A
iv) Procurement

All works arising from this report are undertaken by the City Council’'s grounds
maintenance contractor. The Street Cleansing and Grounds Maintenance contract ends
August 2020. The staff are all suitably trained, qualified, and experienced.

Legal Implications including Procurement Rules

All works arising from this report are undertaken by the Council’s grounds maintenance
contractor. The contractor was appointed after an extensive competitive tendering
exercise. The contract for this work was let in April 2006.

The Council is compliant with all TPO and Conservation area legislative requirements.
Equality, Diversity and Human Rights

There are no negative implications.

Risk Implications

The work identified on the attached schedule represents the Arboricultural Officer's
advice to the Council relevant to the specific situation identified. This is a balance of
assessment pertaining to the health of the tree, its environment, and any legal or health

and safety concerns. In all instances the protection of the public is taken as paramount.
Deviation from the recommendations for any particular situation may carry ramifications.

14



These can be outlined by the Arboricultural Officer pertinent to any specific case.

7.2 Where appropriate, the recommended actions within the schedule have been subject to a
formal risk assessment. Failure to act on the recommendations of the Arboricultural
Officer could leave the City Council open to allegations that it has not acted responsibly
in the discharge of its responsibilities.

8. Recommendation

8.1 That the works set out in the attached schedules be approved.

Is this a key decision? No

Do the exempt information No
categories apply?

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny No
Procedure Rules (call-in and

urgency) apply?

How many appendices does 1
the report contain?

List of Background Papers: None

Lead Officer: Mr S. Bird, ..
Assistant Director (Communities & Street Scene)

Telephone 873421

15



NOTIFICATION OF INTENDED WORK TO TREES AND HEDGES

RELEVANT TO THEIR CITY COUNCIL OWNERSHIP STATUS.

SCHEDULE No 9/ SCHEDULE DATE: 09/10/2019

Item
No

Status

e.g.
CAC

Specific
Location

Tree Species
and description
/ reasons for
work / Ward.

Recommendation

Cannon Street —
Community Gardens

Abbey Ward
1 x Cherry

Eell

Overhanging pathway,
no remedial pruning
possible as the tree is
heavily asymmetrical

Approve and replant with a
replacement Cherry in a
suitable location.

Cannon Street —
Community Gardens

Abbey Ward
1 x Silver birch

Fell
Currently retained as
standing deadwood

Approve and replant with a
replacement Silver birch in
a suitable location.

Sobraon barracks
memorial garden

Castle ward

2 x Horse chestnut
Fell

Both trees are
currently retained as
standing deadwood

Approve and replant with
two Maples in a suitable
location.

150/152 Newland
Street West

Carholme Ward

1 x Leyland cypress
Fell

This tree is in close
proximity to the
adjoining property
boundary and poses
significant risk of
structural damage

Approve and replant with a
Yew in a suitable location.

Link Path adjacent to
30 Chesney Close

Glebe Ward

2x Field maples
Pollard

Tree canopies are
encroaching over
private property
rooflines

Approve consent for
works.

16




TPO

3 Fulmar Road

Hartsholme ward

1 x Pine

Fell

Large tree
suppressing two trees
of better form —
canopy heavily
weighted towards
property

Approve and replant with a
replacement Pine in a
suitable location.

TPO

Link path adjacent to
200 Fulmar Road

Hartsholme ward
1 x Oak

Carry out a 11-20%
canopy reduction
This tree is
overhanging the
adjacent property
boundary and is in
close proximity to the
roof of the main
residence

Approve and grant consent
for works.

TPO

Hartsholme Country
Park — Rear of 30
Tudor Road

Hartsholme Ward

1 x Willow
Retrospective
notification — the tree
had collapsed and
was lodged into a
privately owned tree

Replant with a
replacement Willow in a
suitable location.

O/S Wyvern house
Kesteven Street

Park Ward
Retrospective
notification - 1 Rowan
removed as it was
retained as standing
deadwood and posed
a public hazard

Replant with a
replacement Sorbus in a
suitable location.

17




This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 4a

Application Number: | 2019/0690/RG3

Site Address: Boultham Park Lake, Boultham Park Road, Lincoln

Target Date: 24th October 2019

Agent Name: None

Applicant Name: City of Lincoln Council

Proposal: Realignment part of footpath, restoration of stone edges to the

lake and installation of water aeration equipment and bank
side cabinets (3no. compressors each at two locations on the
lake edge). Installation of platform for access for boating, a
viewing deck, 2no. fishing pegs, 5no. pieces of art and 5no.
associated interpretation boards.

Background - Site Location and Description

This application proposes improvement works to Boultham Park, which are part of the
Lake Restoration Project. The project is subject to National Lottery Heritage Funding. This
application is a regulation 3 application made by the City of Lincoln Council and is
therefore before Planning Committee. The application states that "The project is focussed
on improving biodiversity and centred on restoration of the lake in terms of water quality,
edge works, access, planting, habitat interpretations, seating and the reintroduction of
heritage lake activities including boating and fishing."

The specific works proposed by this application include: Realignment part of the footpath
around the lake, restoration of stone edges to the lake, installation of below water aeration
equipment and bank side cabinets (3 compressors each at two locations on the lake
edge), two new fishing pegs, platform for access for boating, a viewing deck, 2no. fishing
pegs, 5no. pieces of art and 5no. associated interpretation boards.

Boultham Park is a Grade 2 Listed Historic Park and Garden.

Site History

No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 24th September 2019.

Policies Referred to

e Policy LP29: Protecting Lincoln's Setting and Character
¢ National Planning Policy Framework

Issues

The issue raised by the application is whether there is any harm caused to the character or
setting of the designated heritage asset - the historic Park and Garden.

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted May 2014.

19



Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Upper Witham, Witham First | Comments Received
District & Witham Third

District

Natural England Comments Received
Environment Agency Comments Received
Highways & Planning Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

No responses received.

Consideration

Policy Context

National Planning Policy Framework

Paragraph 193 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight
should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm,
total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.

Paragraph 200 further states that Local planning authorities should look for opportunities
for new development within Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the
setting of heritage assets, to enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that
preserve those elements of the setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or
which better reveal its significance) should be treated favourably.

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan
Policy LP29 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan states that proposals should seek to
make a positive contribution to the built and natural environment.

Proposals within, adjoining or affecting the setting of the 11 Conservation Areas and 3
historic parks and gardens within the built up area of Lincoln, should preserve and
enhance their special character, setting, appearance and respecting their special historic
and architectural context and seek to improve the public realm as part of development
proposals to enhance Lincoln's attractiveness.

Consideration of Issues

The application is subject to lottery heritage funding should the current bid be successful.
The City Council, as applicant, has undertaken pre-application consultation with local
residents and other statutory bodies including the Environment Agency, Lincolnshire

20




Wildlife Trust and Natural England over a number of months. As stated in application, the
consultations carried out showed that the public "cared about the lake and its wildlife and
wanted to see it restored and flourishing." The masterplan for improvement works was
developed following this extensive consultation including involvement from the Lincolnshire
Wildlife Trust. The Environment Agency and Natural England have raised no objections to
the proposals.

The masterplan includes a host of proposals for the park with a main focus on
improvements to biodiversity, the water quality of the lake and visitor enjoyment of the
park.

The main alterations include:

e Improving the water quality within the lake via an aeration system. The aeration
system would require a total of 6 compressor units at two locations (south tip and
north west next to the beacon) to be installed which intend to improve water quality
by oxidization of the lake, gradually improving water quality and control odour whilst
promoting biodiversity to the lake and the surrounding setting.

e Realignment of a section of footpath to the north east side of the lake which would
move the path away from existing tree roots

e Installation of a boating pontoon to the southern tip of the lake with provision for up
to 10 boats

e A new viewing deck to the north west of the lake adjacent to the beacon

e Installation of new edges around the lake including sandstone and boulder edging,
natural edge planting, and fascine

e Installation of seating

e Installation of bat and bird boxes

e Installation of information boards, with information of the lake's wildlife and how the
local community can help to enhance it

e New planting - including lake edge planting, woodland ground flora and species rich
grassland

e Tree management - including retention, removal and management of existing trees
removal of trees will be those which are of low quality

e Installation of 5 pieces of art

e Refurbishment of the existing beacon

The application is accompanied by a tree report showing removal of 41 trees within the
park and work required to another 58. Trees in poor health/condition or which are eroding
the lake edges have been proposed to be removed. The ecology report submitted with the
application found that no trees with a high or moderate potential to support bats and only 3
trees with low potential. None of the trees within the Park are protected by Tree
Preservation Orders, in any case removal of the trees within the submitted report would
help preserve the future of the lake and would not have an overall negative impact on the
Park.

Overall, the works concentrate on improving the water quality of the lake, enhancing the
ecology, habitats and biodiversity and its immediate setting and enhancing the park for its
users. The proposals have responded to extensive pre-applications consultation with
members of the public. The proposals represent positive changes which respect the
Historic Park and seek to improve the public realm as part of development proposals in
accordance with Policy LP29 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan.

21



Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

Equality Implications

None.
Conclusion

The works proposed would restore and maintain the water quality of the lake, improve
access around the lake, and enhance the setting through planting and promoting
biodiversity. It is considered the proposals would preserve and enhance the setting of the
Historic Park and Garden and would enhance the public realm for visitors in accordance
with LP 29 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and the National Planning Policy
Statement.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is granted conditionally.
Conditions including:

e 3 year commencement and plans condition.

22



Pav
P
N ,
AL
Boultham
Park The Lake
o
@eatio
. 0 ¥, Gr
ewage
PARE XKoo

Site Location Plan

23

Allot Gd
Ol » ﬂ
/«
) Fe
4 "\
£ 0\"2'\\ :
als }
[
Allot fsdns




Overall restoration works

Existing ground level

Proposed localised dredging to shape edge of lake,
to be reused to tie existing bank into new boulder edge

Section C - Section through boulder edging

24

Lpgaor
===

LDADESIGN

Proposed large boulder Yorkstone rocks. Angular 6500mm Sandstone blocks, frost resistant,
durable and suitable for aguatic environments.

Gravel sub-base MOT type 1, minimum 200mm

——— Approximate |ocation of existing eroded lake edge

Existing edge regraded to tie
into boulder edge treatment.
Planting mix, see softworks,
plan for specifications

Topsoil depth

—— Existing ground




New edging details to southern edge

Naturalised Fascine Edging

Section D

Brushwood faggots in trenches: bundie of brushwood
from trees of the park that will be removed, tied fogether.
length 1500mm,

MOT type 1

Approximate location of existing eroded lake
3d faggots in trenches, approximate
ons 400mm height, 1500mm length
anting mix o naturalise edging, see
‘softwork plan for speciications

SN
R
I 2
SRR, i e
SNV = Airie S = ————
R A AN NN AN v % LG G R
AT R S R 5 A A AAAAY
A ] Z RN R AR
R R AN SN NGOG LD
R Y N N 4 R R LRRLLTA
PR 4 R 2 X - A LS
SRR R Y

Section D - Naturalised Edge

Fascine edging details

Southern Edge/Boating Area Section

Section B

Softweod peg. €0 x50 00 e
0 oround 8 cenies of B00mm wih s 300 mn
onradiof sz ran 6

inber edging .
Tusf,Layer of ABG BT sandyloam grown auf and ABS —————— engi e 20 S0
BF1 rotasion Foriser (30 qaSTginbctuccs 2000 At wik
Reinorosd rootzsne, 200mm ck ayerof s ontimuous span, 150 xBmm
Advanced Tuet ATSAO0 Neton Mesh Exment span.
emoreed oatzone
Geolextle ABG Terrex NS laced on i
07 o et 58 e proe retsiing vl and funciaon
cpen-raded sich 23 DoT Type fx. DoT Type 3.0ra Goncrete siab
isest e Typa 440 St o i approved et e O

S base mterl

[ ——

] [N
S /«
S ;\\//\/;\\;\\ZZ«//,//////\
SIS AAA
s
AR Sy s
T iooreen AR A AR s e % AN AR

AN
oo
AN N
B i A VR
A S e %

A AN X
AR LI

N
RN < A AR Y AL LI,

SRR R R A A A A S RARA R R AR AN RN IS
RN NN X s N N N N A A A A AR AN R A AN NI
SUSNNNNNS % A N R AR N A A S S A ARSI A AR AL IR R LR

Section B - Section through boating area
26

Boating area details

25



Southern Edge/Boating Area Section

Section A

LogBench i or spec
‘Softumadpeg, 50x 0. S00mm ng. Pegs o be dren.
onrati o less #an m

Treaied fimber edging, 150 x 3Bmen fixed with Galvanized
il o softwood pegs

7mm AC14 Open surf 1801220 o EN13108-1

Sub base: 200mm Type 1 granutar material o
SHWEDZ.

Geotextie: Tio00
or smiar.

Section A - Section through boating area

Boating area details

Wooden Deck Boands Class 4
length between 2500-3000mm, with
150, haigh 40mm, jonts ma Smm

Concrete wall sdge to lake, te——————
‘engneers specficafions.
Concrete siab 150mm.

Gravel sub-base MOT type | ————|

Beams from solid fimber

26




Illustrative visualisation looking from the southern edge of the lake towards the boating area and
island

27



Illustrative visualisation looking from the Northern edge of the lake towards the viewing platform

28



Existing Photographs

29



30






32



Southern edge of the lake, location of proposed boating area

33



34



Existing path to be realigned

35



Lincolnshire
Place Directorate COUNTY COUNCIL
Lancaster House
36 Orchard Street
Lincoln LN1 1XX
Tel: (01522) 782070
E-Mail: highwayssudssupportilincolnshire.gov.uk

To:  Lincoln City Council Application Ref:  2019/0690/RG3

With reference to this application dated 28 August 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location
Boultham Park Lake, Boultham Park Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Date application referred by the LPA Type of application: Outline/Full/RM/:
5 September 2019 FUL

Description of development

Realignment part of footpath, restoration of stone edges to the lake and
installation of wate r aeration equipment and bank side cabinets (3no.
compressors each at two locations on the lake edge). Installation of platform for
access for boating, a viewing deck, 2no. fishing pegs, 5no. pieces of art and
5no. associated interpretation boards.

Notice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.
CONDITIONS {INCLUDING REASONS) /REASONS FOR REFUSAL
NO OBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire County Council (as
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed
development is acceptable and accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning
application.

Case Officer. Date: 23 September 2019
Andrew Creasey

for Warren Peppard

Head of Development

36



From: SM-NE-Consultations (NE) <consultations@naturalengland.org.uk>

Sent: 09 September 2019 12:52

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: 2019/0690/RG3 Consultation response
Attachments: ufm10.pdf

Dear Sir/Madam

Application ref: 2019/0690/RG3
Our ref: 204317

Natural England has no comments to make on this application.
Natural England has not assessed this application for impacts on protected species. Natural England has published
Standing Advice which you can use to assess impacts on protected species or you may wish to consult your own

ecology services for advice.

Natural England and the Forestry Commission have also published standing advice on ancient woodland and veteran
trees which you can use to assess any impacts on ancient woodland.

The lack of comment from Natural England does not imply that there are no impacts on the natural environment,
but only that the application is not likely to result in significant impacts on statutory designated nature conservation
sites or landscapes. It is for the local planning authority to determine whether or not this application is consistent
with national and local policies on the natural environment. Other bodies and individuals may be able to provide
information and advice on the environmental value of this site and the impacts of the proposal to assist the decision
making process. We advise LPAs to obtain specialist ecological or other environmental advice when determining the
environmental impacts of development.

We recommend referring to our S55I Impact Risk Zones (available on Magic and as a downloadable dataset) prior to
consultation with Natural England. Further guidance on when to consult Natural England on planning and
development proposals is available on gov.uk at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/local-planning-authorities-get-
environmental-advice

Yours faithfully

Jacqui Salt
Consultations Team
Natural England

Hornbeam House, Electra Wai

37



Environment

LW Agency

City of Lincoln Council Our ref: AN2019/129513/01-L01
Development Control Yourref:  2019/0630/RGE3

City Hall Beaumont Fee

Lincoln Date: 20 September 2019

LN1 1DF

Dear SirfMadam

Realignment part of footpath, restoration of stone edges to the lake and
installation of water aeration equipment and bank side cabinets (3no.
compressors each at two locations on the lake edge). Installation of platform for
access for boating, a viewing deck, 2no. fishing pegs, 5no. pieces of art and 5no.
associated interpretation boards

Boultham Park Lake, Boultham Park Reoad, Linceln

Thank you for your consultation of & September 2019 regarding the above application.
The Environment Agency has no objection to the application. Although the site is within
Flood Zones 2 and 3 and adjoins a main river (the Witham), we are satisfied that the
proposed works are of low vulnerability and will not impact on the river.

Should you require any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters further,
please do not hesitate to contact me on the number below.

Yours sincerely

Nicola Farr
Sustainable Places - Planning Advisor

Direct dial 02030 255023
Direct e-mail nicola fam@environment-agency.gov.uk

Ceres House, Searby Rioad, Lincoln, LNZ 4006V Calls to 03 numbers cost no more than national rate calls o
Ctomer == S O S == "=

38



UD-4845-2019-PLN
Dear Sir/Madam,

Description of the proposed development:

Realighment part of footpath, restoration of stone edges to the lake and installation
of water aeration equipment and bank side cabinets (3no. compressors each at two
locations on the lake edge). Installation of platform for access for boating, a viewing
deck, 2no. fishing pegs, 5no. pieces of art and 5no. associated interpretation
boards.

Address of the proposed development:
Boultham Park Lake, Boultham Park Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire,

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within the Upper
Witham Internal Drainage Board district.

The Board’s maintained 4600 — Pike Drain runs adjacent to Boultham Park Lake.

Under the terms of the Board's Byelaws, the prior written consent of the Board is required for any
proposed temporary or permanent works or structures in, under, over or within the byelaw distance
of 6m of the top of the bank of a Board maintained watercourse.

Regards,
Richard Wright

Engineering Services Technician

39



This page is intentionally blank.



Iltem No. 4b

Application Number:

2019/0623/FUL

Site Address:

Phase 4, LN6 Development, Westbrooke Road

Target Date:

4th October 2019

Agent Name:

None

Applicant Name:

Mr Will Nuttall

Proposal:

Relocation of plots 77-79 to move 1.2m south and erection of
additional plot between plots 75 & 76.

Background - Site Location and Description

Application is for full planning permission for revisions to the approved development at
Phase 4 Westbrooke Road.

The original application 2018/0458/FUL approved 23 dwellings. This current application
proposes an additional dwelling to bring the total on this phase to 24 and the minor
repositioning of the dwellings at plots 77-79.

The site was previously under the ownership of Lincolnshire County Council having been
the site of the former Usher School, now demolished.

The site is allocated for residential in the Local Plan CL4652.

This application relates to Phase 4 of the Westbrooke Road development. Phases 1, 2 are
complete and phase 3 is currently under construction.

Site History
Reference: Description Status Decision Date:
2018/0458/FUL Erection of 23 dwellings | Granted 17th August 2018

with vehicular access | Conditionally
from Westbrooke Place.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 23rd September 2019.

Policies Referred to

Issues

Highway Safety

Landscaping

National Planning Policy Framework

Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy LP11: Affordable Housing

Policy LP12: Infrastructure to Support Growth

Policy LP26: Design and Amenity

Local and National Planning Policy

Effect on Visual Amenity
Effect on Residential Amenity

41




Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted May 2014.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Environment Agency Comments Received
Natural England Comments Received
Lincolnshire Police Comments Received
Anglian Water No Response Received

Upper Witham, Witham First | Comments Received
District & Witham Third
District

Education Planning Manager, | Comments Received
Lincolnshire County Council

Lincoln Civic Trust Comments Received
Highways & Planning Comments Received
Environmental Health Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address

David And Sharon Jolly 65 Western Crescent
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7TA

Mr Gary Fountaine 35 St Helens Avenue
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7RA

42




Mr Neville Coupland 27 St Helens Avenue
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7RA

Mr Marc Thornton 19 Westbrooke Place
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 7GS

Consideration

The Proposal

The application proposes the addition of one further dwelling on the site. The new dwelling
would be located adjacent to the existing plot 75, close to the sites western boundary. The
additional dwelling would be created by changing the approved pair of semis in this
location, to a terrace of 3 dwellings (plots 75, 75a and 76).

The second revision is to amend the position of the 3 dwellings at plots 77, 78 and 79
marginally southwards (1.2m) within the site.

Effect on Residential Amenity

Both the slight repositioning of plots 77, 78 and 79 and the additional dwelling at plot 75
are both located either adjacent to the sites western boundary or the centre of the phase 4
site. The proposed changes are therefore located well away (minimum of 50m) from
existing residential properties on St. Helen's Avenue. The changes will therefore only
affect adjacent new dwellings within the phase 4 site. The proposal is therefore considered
to be in accordance with policy LP26 of the CLLP.

Effect on Visual Amenity

The effect on visual amenity will be limited. The relocation of plots 77-79 is a minimal
change to the original layout, whilst the addition of a new dwelling results in the change of
house types from a pair of semis to a terrace of 3 units. As previously approved on the
original phase 4 permission, the new terrace of 3 will again be a 2 storey structure.

4 no. objections have been received from neighbours. Concerns relate to highway safety
particularly the resulting increase in traffic, congestion and safety of the junction at
Boultham Park Road and the condition of the road surface at Westbrooke Road,
residential amenity, loss of trees and boundary treatments. Many of the comments relate
to issues which were considered previously under the original application or the
subsequent non-material amendment (2018/1368/NMA).

This current application should be considered with regard to the changes proposed which
are revisions to the layout approved under the original planning permission. Therefore
the considerations for this application relate to the introduction of one additional dwelling
and minor reposition of 3 other plots. Both revisions being located centrally within the site
and therefore away from existing residential development.

43




Highway Safety

Two objections received relate to highway matters and specifically the increase in traffic
and effect on the safety of the junction with Boultham, Park Road and Western Avenue.

The Highway Authority has been consulted on this application and raises no objections.
The application proposes an increase in overall housing numbers on the site by just 1,
from 23 to 24 dwellings and will therefore have a minimal additional impact on the highway
network.

The condition of the road surface at Westbrooke Road has been discussed previously.
The Highway Authority is aware of the concerns regarding the condition of the road
however, as with the previous phases, no request has been made by the County Council
as part of the application for improvement works to this existing road, which is located
outside the site.

Proposed Landscaping and Trees

Unlike the previous 3 phases, phase 4 only extends part way across the former school
site. The development is therefore located away from the boundary with Tritton Road and
the existing tree landscape buffer located along this western boundary of the site.

No further existing trees are lost as a result of the additional dwelling or repositioning of
the dwellings at plots 77-79 to that previously agreed under the original planning
permission for Phase 4.

With regarding to the proposed tree planting and landscaping, the original site layout for
Phase 4 (2018/0458/FUL) showed more trees than is currently proposed. However, the
landscaping shown on the site layout for the original application was indicative only and
therefore conditioned, with the details of the landscaping and new tree planting to be
formally considered at the later Reserved Details stage.

The proposed landscaping for the site is as per the landscaping shown under the recent
NMA (2018/1368/NMA) approved February 2019. The NMA plan showed provision for 17
new trees on the site, as is proposed on the current application.

The provision of 17 trees on a site for 24 new dwellings, is considered an acceptable
response in terms of landscaping of this site, with many of the new plots receiving one
tree. Along with the additional areas of planting, grassed amenity/ swale areas, the
landscaping provision on the site is considered to be an appropriate response for a new
housing site.

Contributions

The original permission for the site for the erection of 23 dwellings, included both a CIL
charge and also 106 provision for off site playing field and amenity space.

Affordable housing was also required at 25% providing 6 units on the site.
The contributions have therefore been revised to include an additional 3 bed dwelling. The

106 agreement is currently being revised to include the additional requirements. Planning
permission should therefore be approved subject to the signing of the revised section 106

44



and revision of the CIL liability.
NHS and Education provision were not requested for this phase.

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

No.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

Equality Implications

None.

Conclusion

The proposed revisions to the layout and inclusion of 1 additional dwelling on the site, will
not be detrimental to either residential or visual amenity. No objections are raised by the
Highway Authority. The proposal is therefore in accordance with local and national
planning policy.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That authority is delegated to the Planning Manager to grant conditionally planning
permission further to the signing of the revised section 106 and CIL liability.

Conditions

3 years

Drawings no’s

Materials

Landscaping

Land Contamination Remediation Scheme

Estate Street Phasing and Completion Plan (Highways)

Future Management and Maintenance of Proposed Streets (Highways)
Engineering, Drainage, Street Lighting and Constructional details of streets for
adoption (Highways)

9. Boundary treatment to pumping station

10. Electric vehicle charging points

11.Maintenance of non-adopted areas

12.Roads/ footpath adoption specification (Highways)

13. Estate Streets Development Plan(Highways)

N>R WNE

45



14.Removal of pd for plots 64 and 65

15. Archaeology (WSI)

16.Hours of construction works on site

17.Removal of scrub or hedgerows during nesting season to be appropriately
supervised

18.No hardstanding areas to be constructed until the works have been carried out in
accordance with the surface water strategy

46



Phase 3 under
application ref.
2018/0244/FUL

I Phase 4 under iy, %
application ref. fz {514 |l
2018/0458/FULf= ¥

Site location plan, (also indicates previous phases).

47



Site layout plan as previously approved

48



Site Plan

5,66, 75,76, 7%, %
€, 6,0

a.n
Tomal Plots 23

B4, 75T

Tewn

RELE

lsgi

Aftorcable plots are prefusd ‘A"

Proposed site layout plan

49




[ o o [

Front Elevation Rear Elevation

2no. dwellings as previously approved at plots 75/76

Left Side Elevation

Right Side Elevation

m ¢ Chestnut

3no. dwellings now proposed at plots 75/75a and 76

50

Rignt Sige Elevation

m ¢ Chestnut



Photo to show construction work currently being undertaken at Phase 3

51




Photo to show the retained trees and newly created swale at Phase 3

52




Photo to show the remaining area of land at the former school site, which is located immediate to
the west of Phase 4 and East of Tritton Road. This area does not form part of the application site.

53




Phot to show view of Phase 4. The herras fencing indicates the line of the western
boundary to the site, which is located centrally within the former school site. The
additional dwelling is proposed close to this boundary.

54




Photo to show Phase 4, with existing dwellings at St. Helen’s Avenue beyond.

55




Photo to show now completed Phase 2, and Phase 3 beyond

56




From: LM Planning =LMplanning@environment-agency.gov.uk >

Sent: 23 August 2019 14:54

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: FW: Consultation on Planning Application
Attachments: ufm 7. pdf

The Environment Agency does not wish to make any comments on this application. [t does not appear to meet any
of the criteria listed on our External Consultation Checklist. However, if you believe you do need our advice, please
call me on the number below.

Kind regards
Micola Farr
Sustainable Places - Planning Advisor

Environment Agency | Ceres House, Searby Road, Lincoln, LN2 4DW

nicola_farr@environment-agency. gov.uk
External: 020 302 55023

Creating a better place

for people and wildlife

57



Fromm: SM-ME-Consultations (ME) <consultations@naturalengland.org.uk=

Sent: 28 August 2019 1547

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Coundil)

Subject: Planning Consultation 2019/0623/FUL MNE Response
Categories: Tania Spinks

Dear SirfMadam,

Application ref: 2019/0623/FUL
QOur ref: 292544

Matural England has no comments to make on this application.
Matural England has not assessed this application for impacts on protected species. Natural England has published
standing Advice which you can use to assess impacts on protected species or you may wish to consult your own

ecology services for advice.

Matural England and the Forestry Commission have also published standing advice on ancient woodland and veteran
irees which you can use to assess any impacts on ancient woodland.

The lack of comment from Natural England does not imply that there are no impacts on the natural environment,
but only that the application is not likely to result in significant impacts on statutory designated nature conservation
sites or landscapes. It is for the local planning authority to determine whether or not this application is consistent
with national and local policies on the natural environment. Other bodies and individuals may be able to provide
information and advice on the environmental value of this site and the impacts of the proposal to assist the decision
making process. We advise LPAs to obtain specialist ecological or other environmental advice when determining the
environmental impacts of development.

We recommend referring to our 5551 Impact Risk Zones (available on Magic and as a downloadable dataset) prior to
consultation with Natural England. Further guidance on when to consult Natural England on planning and
development proposals is available on gov.uk at https:/fwww.gov.uk/guidance/local-planning-authorities-get-
environmental-advice

Yours faithfully
Heather Ivinson

Heather Ivinson

Operations Delivery
Consultations Team

Matural England

Hornbeam House, Electra Way
Crewe, Cheshire, CW1 6G)

Tel: 0300 000 0475

We are here to secure a healthy natural environment for people to enjoy, where wildlife is protected and
England’s traditional landscapes are safeguarded for future generations.

In an effort to reduce Matural England's carbon footprint, | will, wherever possible, avoid travelling to meetings and
attend via audio, video or web conferencing.

58



Matural England offers two chargeable services - the Discretionary Advice Service, which provides pre-application
and post-consent advice on planning/licensing proposals to developers and consultants, and the Pre-submission
Screening Service for European Protected Species mitigation licence applications. These services help applicants
take appropriate account of environmental considerations at an early stage of project development, reduce
uncertainty, the risk of delay and added cost at a later stage, whilst securing good results for the natural
environment,

For further information on the Discretionary Advice Service see here
For further information on the Pre-submission Screening Service see here

This message has been senf using TLS 1.2 This email and any attachments is imntended for the named
recipient only. If you have recerved it in error vou have no authority to use, disclose, store or copy any of its
contents and vou should destroy it and inform the sender. Whilst this email and associated attachments will
have been checked for known viruses winlst within the Natural Fngland systems. we can accept no
responsibility once 1t has left our systems. Communications on Natural England systems may be monitored
and/or recorded to secure the effective operation of the system and for other lawful purposes.

59



s e
Lincolnshire

POLICE

pesdiieng with PRIDE

LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE

Your Ref: App. 20120623 FUL

Owur Ref: PG

Development & Environmental Services
City Hall, Beaumont Fee

Lincoln, LN1 1DF

FOLICE HEADQUARTERS
PO Box 899

LINCOLM LMS TFH

Fax: (01522) 558128

COl: [(01522) 558202

email
jphnomanualiZines gprnn.palice.uk

27" August 2019

Re: Phase 4, LMG Development, Westhropke Road, Limcolnshire.

Thank wou for yowur comespondence and opporfunity to comment on the proposed

development.

Lincolnshire Police has objection to this application.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clanfication.

Crirne prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating & contract. Meither the
Horme Cffice nor the Police Service takes any legel responsibility for the advice given.
However, if the advica is implementad it will reduce the opportunity for crimes fo be committad.

Yours sinceraly,

John Manuel ma BA (Hons) FGCE PECFR Dip Bus

Force Designing Cut Crime Officer {D':]C-Eli

60



From: Richard Wright <richardwright@witham3idb.gov.uk =

Sent: 04 September 2019 14:28
To: HighwaysSUDs5upport: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: FW: OBSERVATIONS ON COMSULTATION REQUEST 201 9/0623/FUL

UD-3944-2018-PLN
Dear Sir/Madam

REFEREMCE: 2019/0623/FUL

DEVELOPMENT: RELOCATION OF PLOTS 77-79 TO MOWVE 1.2M SOUTH AND ERECTION OF ADDITIONAL PLOT
BETWEEN PLOTS 75 & 76

LOCATION: PHASE 4, LN6 DEVELOPMENT, WESTEROOKE ROAD, LINCOLM, LINCOLMNSHIRE

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within the Upper Witham Internal
Drainage Board district.

The Board has no comment regarding this particular application. However, our previous response submitted
13/04/2018 to planning application 2018_0458_FUL is reiterated below.

13/04/2018 - Email Response

Thank yau for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within the Upper Witham
Internal Drainage Board district.

This is the fourth phase for this site which has been built sequentially, good practice would be to design the
surface water droinage system for the whole of the develapment area in arder to provide a comprehensive

and efficient 5ul5 scheme.

In absence of o suitable o Droinoge Strategy and detoils the Board Objects to this application, see comments
below.

Camment and information ta Lincalnshire CC Highway SUDs Support
No development should be commenced until the Local Planning Autharity, in consultation with the Lead
Locol Flood Authority has approved a scheme for the provision, implementation and future maintenance af a
surface water droinage system. A Drainage Strategy is included in the submission howewver
¢ there are no details of the proposed drainage system, including attenuation
« the Anglian Water information refers to 132 dwellings and an allowable discharge of 13.331/s. The
Drainage Strategy refers to a Phase 3 (29 houses) rate of 6.0 I/s and Phase 4 {23 houses) rate of 7.33
Ifs. This leaves a zero discharge rate for the other 80 houses.
« gny discharge should be limited to the greenfield rate, the proposed discharge to the Anglion Water
surface water sewer (13.331/5) is above this rate given the site area of 1.584Ha (Phase 3 and Phase
4). As indicated above the Anglhian Water allowable discharge must allow for a larger site.
« discharge into the Anglion Water may be restricted when there are high water levels in the Boultham
Catchwater.
s« the ground raising of up to 1.5m will create a dam to the land south of the site, the Strateqy fails to
address this.

61



All grainage routes through the Site should be maintained both during the works on Site and after
completion of the works. Provisions should be made to ensure that upstream and downstream riparian
owners and thase areas that are presently served by any drainage routes passing through or adjocent to
the 5ite are not adversely affected by the development.

Drainage routes shaill include ail methods by which water may be transferred through the Site and shail
include such systems as “ridge and furrow™ and “overiand flows”. The effect of raising 5ite levels on
adjacent property must be carefully considered and measures taken to negate influences must be
approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Any ground raising would offect the area to the south of the site.

Regards,
Richard Wright

Engineering Services Technician
Office: +44 (0) 1522 657123

‘Witham & Humber Internal Drainage Boards,
‘Witham House

J1 The Point

‘Weaver Road

Lincaln

LMG 30N

www.northeastlindsey-idb.org. uk

wiww witham3idb.gov.uk

www upperwitham-idb gov.uk
” ctiid

62



From: Property Strateqy <Property_Strategy@lincolnshire.gov.uk -

Sent: 11 September 2019 11:26

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Coundil)
Subject: RE: Consultation on Planning Application
Hi

Many thanks for the below consultation. The County Council has no comments to make on this
application in relation to education.

Kind regards

Simon

Simon Challis

Strategic Development Officer

Corporate Property

Lincolnshire County Council | County Offices | Newiand | Lincoln | LN1 1YL

Tel: 01522 553391 | Mob: 07520 182302 | email: simon.challis@lincolnshire. gov.uk

This e-mail may include legally privileged information and may contain confidential information
intended only for the use of the addressee. If the reader of this message is not the intended
recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination of information contained herein, together
with the distribution or copying of this e-mail, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail
in error, please notify me by return e-mail. Thank you.

If your email is a request under the Freedom of Information Act then please send this to

CustomerinformationService@lincolnshire gov.uk. This is the email account that is used to
process Freedom of Information requests.

63



Consultee Comments for Planning Application
2019/0623/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/0623/FUL

Address: Phase 4 LNG Development Westbrooke Road Lincoln Lincolnshire

Proposal: Relocation of plots 77-79 to move 1.2m south and erection of additional plot between
plots 75 & 76.

Case Officer: null

Consultee Details

Name: Ms Catherine Waby

Address: 5t Mary's Guildhall, 385 High Street, Lincoln LNS 75F
Email: lincolncivictrust@btconnect.com

On Behalf Of: Lincoln Civic Trust

Comments

OBJECTION - We objected to the original proposal based on the concentration of housing and the
lack of an alternative access o the site. We feel the whole LNE project has been applied for in
sections and that it does not, therefore, quantify the volume and transport difficulties that will be
created. We would like to see a proposal for an access on to Skellingthorpe Road to alleviate the
usage of Westbrooke Road which was never constructed as a through road. This application is to
increase the number of houses on the estate and we feel we must object.

64



Lincolnshire

Place Directorate COLINTY COUNCIL

Lancaster House
36 Orchard Street

Lincodm LN1 1xXX
Tel: (01522) Ta2070
E-Mail: highwayssudssupporifilincolnshire. gov.uk

To: Lincoln City Council Application Ref:  2019/0623/FUL

With reference to this application dated 8 August 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location
Phase 4, LNG6 Development, Westbrooke Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Date application refermed by the LPA Type of application: Outline/Full/RM/-
21 August 2019 FUL

Description of development

Relocation of plots 77-79 to move 1.2m south and erection of additional plot
between plots 75 & 76

Motice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authorty:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.
CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS)

NO OBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy guidance (in
particular the National Planning Policy Framewiork), Lincolnshire County Council (as
Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Authority) has concluded that the proposed
development is acceptable and accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning
application.

MNote: Section 38 drawings will require amendment to reflect the proposed layout changes
prior to issuing of Technical Approval.

Case Officer: Date: O September 2019

Becky Melhuish
for Warren Peppard
Head of Development

65



CITY OF LINCOLN COUNCIL
DIRECTORATE OF DEVELOPMENT & ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES

MEMORANDUM

TO: Development Team FROM: lan Wicks
Development Control Pollution Control Officer
Planning Ref: 2019/0623/FUL Date: 23 September 2019

Relocation of plots 77-79 to move 1.2m south and erection of additional plot between plots 75
& 76 at Phase 4, LNG Development Westhrooke Road, Lincoln

Further to your consultation on the above application, | would confimn that | have no objections to the
proposals in terms of contaminated land, air quality, noise or other environmental impact, provided
that conditions covering these issues on the orginal consent are transferred to the consent for this
application, if granted.

Regards

lan Wicks
Pollution Control Officer
(Extn. 3794)

66



From:

Sent: 24 August 2019 10:02

To: Technical Team (City of Lincoln Council)
Subject: 2019/0623/FUL Phase 4 LNG
Categories: Tania Spinks

Your reference: 2019/0623/FUL

Dear Sir,

We hereby object to the above proposal on the grounds that there will be an increased danger at the junction of
Western Avenue and Boultham Park Road due to increased traffic. It is only a matter of time before a serious
accident occurs at this junction and the addition of further properties on LN6 development will lead to an increase in
the likelihood of this happening.

Additional housing will also lead to increased rainfall run-off to the water course, which with today's changing
climate is environmentally reprehensible.

Yours Faithfully,

David and Sharon lolly
65 Western Avenue
Lincoln

LNGT7SR

67



Comments for Planning Application 2019/0623/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/0623/FUL

Address: Phase 4 LN6 Development Westbrooke Road Lincoln Lincolnshire

Proposal: Relocation of plots 77-79 to move 1.2m south and erection of additional plot between
plots 75 & 76.

Case Officer: null

Customer Details
Name: Mr Gary Fountaine
Address: 35 ST HELENS AVENUE LINCOLN

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Hi,

Firstly; Ideally | would like the green security fence in place as this secures my property far more
than a wooden fence will. | have no objection to putting the wooden fence the new property side
and enclosing the green security fence. | feel my property will be exposed it it is removed.
Secondly: on the plans it does not indicate the full distance from the fence at the rear of my
property to the house that is being built or the proposed height of the building. As my garden faces
west how has the calculation been done so that it does not impinge on the natural light to my
property? As far as | am aware no-one has reviewed this from my aspect!

Regards Gary Fountaine

68



Comments for Planning Application 2019/0623/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/0623/FUL

Address: Phase 4 LN6 Development Westbrooke Road Lincoln Lincolnshire

Proposal: Relocation of plots 77-79 to move 1.2m south and erection of additional plot between
plots 75 & 76.

Case Officer: null

Customer Details
Name: Mr Meville Coupland
Address: 27 St. Helens Avenue Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:The plan was originally with existing trees kept on the boundary and some new trees
...now it has removed the mature trees and reduced the plan for new trees...from over 30 trees on
first plan to 15 on 2nd plan...where are the ecological considerations for all peoples well being in
the area let alone privacy

69



Comments for Planning Application 2019/0623/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/0623/FUL

Address: Phase 4 LN6 Development Westhrooke Road Lincoln Lincolnshire

Proposal: Relocation of plots 77-79 to move 1.2m south and erection of additional plot between
plots 75 & 76.

Case Officer: null

Customer Details
Name: Mr Marc Thornton
Address: 19 Westbrooke Place Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:| am concerned with the amount of traffic that will enter the development through
Western Avenue.

The increased traffic will be dangerous especially at the junction of Boultham Park Road.

Also the condition of the road especially at the entrance of Westbrooke road is appalling - this will
not improve with increased site traffic and residents

70



[tem No. 4c

Application Number: | 2019/0539/0UT

Site Address: 38B Willis Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Target Date: 4th September 2019

Agent Name: Heronswood Design Ltd

Applicant Name: Mrs Jill Clark

Proposal: Erection of detached dwelling and garage. (Revised Drawing)
(OUTLINE)

Background - Site Location and Description

The application is for outline planning permission for a single dwelling and detached
garage. Only the details of access are considered along with the principle of development.
All other matters would be considered through a subsequent application for Reserved
Matters. The proposed dwelling would be sited within garden land of 38B Willis Close. The
application has been called in to be determined by members of the committee at the
request of Councillor. Preston as well as receiving several objections from local residents,
meeting the committee hearing threshold.

The layout of the site has been subject to an amendment during the process of the
application and additional structural reports being submitted. The structural reports and
layout revision were in response to legitimate questions raised by neighbours on these
matters; the detail will be discussed below. All neighbours were re-consulted on the
revised plans and structural reports.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 14th August 2019.

Policies Referred to

e National Planning Policy Framework
e Policy LP26: Design and Amenity

Issues

Principle of the Development
Design and Visual Impact
Impact on Residential Amenity
Highway Safety and Access
Land Stability and Retaining Wall
Air Quality

Archaeology

Drainage

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community

71




Involvement, adopted May 2014.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee

Comment

Highways & Planning

Comments Received

Environmental Health

Comments Received

Lincolnshire Police

Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name

Address

Mr David Ruff

35 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1HH

Miss Helena Buckle

26 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
LN1 1HH

Councillor Lucinda Preston

R W Wilkinson

37 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1HH

Mr Oliver Craven

67 Alexandra Terrace
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN1 1JF

Mr Ben Poole

High Orchard
Theodore Street
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN1 1HW

Mr Ben Poole

High Orchard
Theodore Street
Lincoln

LN1 1HW

Professor Nigel Curry

30 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1HH

Robert White

29 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1HH

72




Mark Tomlinson 28 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1HH

M Doherty 27 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1HH

G & E C Brooks 33 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1HH

Mr Phillip W.L. Serth Chads

34 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1HH

Consideration

The application has attracted considerable representation from local residents. The main
concerns that have been raised include: land slippage, integrity/impact to a retaining wall,
loss of privacy, overlooking and overshadowing, scale and mass of the dwelling, concerns
regarding drainage and loss of trees. This is not an exhaustive list but the main concerns
raised, the full comments are attached to the end of this report.

A number of non-material planning matters were also raised: loss of a view, effect on
property values and legal ownership/maintenance of a retaining wall.

The Principle of the Development

Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that at the heart of the
framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.

LP1 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) echoes the presumption in favour of
sustainable development as stated in the NPPF whilst Policy LP2 advises that the Lincoln
Urban Area will be the principal focus for development in Central Lincolnshire, including
housing.

The proposed site has no specific allocation within the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan,
however it is within a residential area with domestic properties to all boundaries. The site is
within a large residential plot and as such it is considered that the principle of residential
development in this location would be acceptable.

Design and Visual Impact

The application is submitted in outline form therefore detailed designs would need to be
submitted through a reserved matters application, should consent be granted. The site is
bordered by housing on all sides, dwellings on both Belle Vue Road and Willis Close are
two storey in appearance positioned higher up the hill side; High Orchard is a single storey
dwelling located lower down on the hillside. The indicative layout indicates a dormer
bungalow style dwelling with a detached pitched roof garage. This is considered to be

73




appropriate as the character of the area is varied - including bungalows and two storey
properties. It is considered therefore that this site could be developed in the manner
indicated without having a detrimental impact on the wider area in terms of visual amenity.

Whilst there are limited details at this stage, it is considered that development of the site is
appropriate and would not cause harm to visual amenity. The proposal would therefore be
in accordance with Policy LP26 and also paragraph 131 of the NPPF, which requires that
developments should make a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.

Impact on Residential Amenity

Whilst the final design of the property is not known at this stage, the indicative scale of the
property and the positioning within the plot would ensure that impacts are limited.

Given the proximity of the site to neighbouring properties, there is potential for the impacts
of construction to disturb residents. As such, officers agree with the Council's Pollution
Control Officer that it would be appropriate to ensure that adequate control measures are
put in place over working hours and practices.

The impact on residential amenity will be fully assessed during subsequent reserved
matters applications, however, the indicative layout suggests that a dwelling on this site
can be accommodated without having a detrimental impact on surrounding properties.
There is a buffer of trees within the site to the north and east at the rear of the properties
on Willis Close and Belle Vue Road, all but four of the trees would be retained which would
limit the impact of the dwelling. A buffer of trees and shrubs are present to the west of the
site although these are not within the application site but within the curtilage of High
Orchard. Notwithstanding this a good level of separation would be present between the
dwellings.

Further details will be forthcoming should the application be granted although it is
considered that a dwelling in the form of a dormer bungalow could be accommodated on
the site without causing harm to residential amenity. The proposal would therefore be in
accordance with the requirements of Policy LP26.

Highway Safety and Access

The property would be accessed via the existing private gravel drive which takes access
from Willis Close, the layout proposed would enable parking for at least two vehicles with
turning space for vehicles to exit in a forward gear. Lincolnshire County Council as
Highways Authority have raised no objections to the proposed scheme.

Air Quality

Officers concur with the Council's Pollution Control Officer that the proposed development,
when considered in isolation, is unlikely to have any significant impact on air quality.
However, cumulatively the numerous minor and medium scale developments within the
city will have a significant impact if reasonable mitigation measures are not adopted.
Therefore it is considered appropriate that any new dwelling provide an electric vehicle
charging point. This could be controlled by condition.

74



Drainage

The application is not supported by a Drainage Strategy but the application suggests that
the proposals would connect into existing foul and surface water drains present in the
locality. It is considered that the final details of the surface water and foul water drainage
schemes for the site could be secured by condition and there is no reason to suppose that
this would not be a straightforward process.

Archaeology

The application has no supporting information with regards the archaeological potential of
the site. The City Archaeologist considers that the development in this part of the city may
impact upon remains associated with the Lincoln Workhouse burial ground. Therefore at
this stage it is recommended that a condition to require the submission of an
archaeological Desk-Based Assessment is attached to the permission should it be
granted.

Trees

A number of trees are situated within the site at present, primarily located to the site's
northern and eastern perimeter. The application proposes felling 4 of the trees to eastern
side of the site, however the trees within the site are afforded no protection as they are
neither covered by TPO's or within a Conservation Area. The indicative layout and
supporting Design and Access Statement indicates that it is envisaged that the remainder
of the trees and vegetation will remain on the site.

Land Stability

Paragraph 178 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires the city
council, as the local planning authority, to prevent unacceptable risks from land stability
and to ensure that sites are suitable for their new use(s) taking account of ground
conditions and land instability.

The land stability and the impact of development on the existing retaining wall running
along the eastern edge of the site has been raised by numerous neighbours consulted on
the application, who are understandably concerned, particularly as their properties are
located close to the application site. The agent was made aware of historic land stability
issues within the wider area and subsequently commissioned a structural engineer to
consider the stability of this particular site, the impact on the existing retaining wall and any
implications this may have with regard to the foundations of the proposed dwelling.

Members will be aware that the development of the hillside in the City is one of the aspects
of Lincoln that makes it so appealing. However, the development of the hillside does need
to be carried out more carefully than other more conventional locations and consequently
there are additional requirements placed on developers to ensure that the works they
undertake do not cause issues in relation to slope stability.

The assessment from the recognised structural engineer about these issues concludes
that land slip is not an issue on the proposed site, nor would the excavation of the
foundations for a dwelling have a detrimental impact on the boundary retaining wall.
Subject to a condition in line with the recommendations within the structural engineers
report regarding the foundations of the new dwelling and grading of land following

75



construction etc., officers are satisfied these issues have been addressed in accordance
with Paragraph 178 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Conclusion

It is considered that the principle of the development of this land for a dwelling would be in
keeping with the principles set out in both national and local planning policies and a
dormer bungalow designed dwelling on this plot would be acceptable in principle with all
matters being reserved for future determination.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally
Standard Conditions

01) Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the local
planning authority within three years of the date of this permission.

Reason: Imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

02) The development to which this permission relates shall not be commenced until
details of the following (hereinafter referred to as the "reserved matters") have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

(@) The layout of the Building(s)

(b) The scale of the building(s), including the height, massing and internal
planning.

(c) The external appearance of the building(s), to include details of all external
materials to be used, their colours and textures.

(d) Means of access to, and service roads for the development, including road
widths, radii and sight lines, space for the loading, unloading and manoeuvring and
turning of service vehicles and their parking; space for car parking and
manoeuvring.

(e) A scheme of landscaping for those parts of the site not covered by buildings to
include surface treatments, walls, fences, or other means of enclosure, including
materials, indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on the land, and details of
any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of
development.

Reason: Imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

03) The development hereby permitted shall be begun either within three years of the
date of this permission or within two years of the date of approval of the last of the
reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later.

Reason: Imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act

76



04)

1990.

With the exception of the detailed matters referred to by the conditions of this
consent, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with
the drawings listed within Table A below.

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on the
approved plans and in any other approved documents forming part of the
application.

Reason: To ensure the development proceeds in accordance with the approved
plans.

Conditions to be Discharged before Commencement of Works

05)

06)

07)

Prior to the commencement of the development, details of a scheme for the
provision of an electric vehicle recharge point for the dedicated off-street parking
shall be submitted to the planning authority for approval. The approved scheme
shall be implemented prior to the development first being brought into use and shall
be maintained thereafter.

Reason: In order to encourage sustainable travel in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Prior to the submission of the application(s) for Reserved Matters, an
archaeological Desk-Based Assessment shall be undertaken, the details of which
shall first be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The programme shall include any further evaluation work that is necessary to
understand the nature, extent and significance of archaeological remains that may
be present on the site, and the impact of development upon them.

Reason: To ensure compliance with paragraph 128 of the NPPF, and to enable
sufficient information to be gathered to inform an appropriate mitigation strategy to
enable the developer to record and advance understanding of archaeological
remains on the site, in accordance with paragraph 141 of the NPPF.

Prior to the commencement of the construction of the dwelling within the site,
details of the proposed foul and surface water drainage proposed to serve the
dwelling shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall only be implemented in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of drainage within the development in
the interests of the amenities of the occupants of the proposed dwelling and
neighbouring occupiers.

Conditions to be Discharged before use is Implemented

None.

Conditions to be Adhered to at all Times

08)

The development shall be constructed in accordance with recommendations made

77



09)

10)

within the structural Survey by Sheppard Consulting Engineers LTD dated
September 2019. These approved details shall not be changed or altered without
the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the slope stability of the site and prevent any impact to the
existing retaining wall.

The construction of the development hereby permitted shall only be undertaken
between the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday (inclusive) and 07:30 to
13:00 on Saturdays and shall not be permitted at any other time, except in relation
to internal plastering, decorating, floor covering, fitting of plumbing and electrics and
the installation of kitchens and bathrooms.

Reason: To protect the residential amenities of properties in the vicinity.

Any deliveries associated with the construction of the development hereby
permitted shall only be received or despatched at the site between the hours of
08:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday (inclusive) and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and
shall not be permitted at any other time.

Reason: To protect the residential amenities of properties in the vicinity.

Table A
The above recommendation has been made in accordance with the submitted drawings
identified below:

Drawing No. Version | Drawing Type Date Received

1627C/19/11B Plans - Proposed 20th August 2019

78




~— - '—‘ _ -
..;j and 4. fad I A [7“ i =

Lol
R L B I
B Mo vy o~
FHFT L. 7
e T |
" /
b e i
" ‘l‘:‘,.'lllvlll
f
/ s
/
Hill b . \ ~ [
e f “\\ \J IJ.‘
\ r_j
SSEREE TN N
[ \ e / —
S o l s [
K ot g/
) 15 | [
/ e /]
|'I ! = /
{ | | /|
,I' | 'I‘ [ ’I.
II ) L
[ T—
n | g .‘,‘- ~——
| N {
- i — = — \ / |
\ i /
) 'I
| [
Evee T luew I | —_ I}
Tedba e bonds / [~ —d
. / {
1 l / { ] -
et fo o f / /
ETET FooET —_ { { / /
e iy - —_ y e if [ ) /
L r mx: " — e \ { | o .
- = \ ) ) J'J
. A [ {f
T ~ ‘:' ',' { [
S - < , / i
e Y X b iy | /
\ \ s [ { j
\ f . i
J J { T
III II’ |I'
[ {
| ] )
J / )
f 'l J
filts 1
J .' ]
| 2
~1 / T—
{ (e S
] |,‘ | |"
J ) Il {
I, ) ’I
/ ey
V‘ =L PR —4"
/ B Sdan
/ = O

S‘lteed Block Plan

1:200

79




= - £ H
-k T H w
- [ = =
s =2

EE —a -
[, =
.7 2= = =
-ﬂ. || - ..II- T
w=_ = Tl

FZ =_x
=T £8%
F=Z TLIL
FTL oI
we [P

®
SIteed Site Section A-A-1:200

T
i
i

e

o
SIteed Location Plan

1250

1

80



Structural Engineers Report

SHEPPARD CONSULTING ENGINEERS LTD

STRUCTURAL SURVEY
OF

EXISTING BOUNDARY RETAINING WALL
AND TRIAL PI VESTIGATION

AT

388 WILLIS CLOSE, LINCOLN LN1 3LG

Client: Mrs J Clark
38B Willis Close
LINCOLN
LNI13LG
Consultant: Sheppard Consulting Engineers Lid

Oakwood House

22 The Rookery

Scaiter

GAINSBOROUGH

Lincs

DN21 3FB

Mob; 07876 405628

c-mail: admin@sheppardeonsulting co.uk

Project Ref: 23434

Date: September 2019

81



SHEPPARD CONSULTING ENGINEERS LTD

1.0 Introduction and Brief

We understand this report, which has been requested by Heronswood Architectural
Design, is required to support an outline planning application for a new detached
dwelling and garage in the grounds of 38B Willis Close, Lincoln,

Objections have been raiscd regarding the existing retaining wall to the Eastern
boundary of the site and to the ground stability of the site.

The purpose of the inspection was to check the condition of the existing retaining wall
and to undertake tnal pits where the dwelling is proposed 10 be consteucted, w
evaluate any slope stability issues and to recommend an appropriate foundation
solution taking into consideration the proximity of the retaining wall,

The inspection was undertaken on Friday 30 August 2019 during fine weather
conditions,

20 Wall Inspection
Refer to photographs 4 and 3. and sketch sections 23434/W01,

The retaining wall is of considerable age and pre-dates the adjacent dwellings, It is
likely to be in the arder of 60 plus years old.

The wall is typically 2.4m high on the side of 388 Willis Close and 1.6m high on the
retained side of Bellevee Ruad, The wall conprises sulid beick masomy construction
nominally 225mm in thickness with brick piers at regular intervals on the retained
side — access was not available to measure these,

The wall is generally in good condition with no major cracks being noted.

Section 1-1 had a lean towards 388 Willis Close of 40mm in Im to the lower retained
section. Section 2-2 had a lean towards 388 Willis Close of 100mm in Im to the
lower retained section. This movement is clearly historic and there was no evidence
of recent movement. Several fairly mature trees are in close proximity and several cut
down trunks were noted close to the wall. These do not appear to be affecting the
sall indicating that the grannd ronditions are not susceptible (o drying shrinkage

An attempt was made to hand dig adjacent to the wall, however the digging was
extremely difficult due to the stoney and compact nature of the ground. Therefore the
depth of the wall foundation is unknown, however we suspect it is founded on the
rock located at a relatively shallow depth.

82




SHEPPARD CONSULTING ENGINEERS LTD

3.0 Trial Pit Investigations
See location plan 23434/P1, photographs 1 and 6-11 and sketches 23434/ TP/01.

Two trial pits were excavated in the vicinity of the proposed dwelling, Both trial pits
revealed similar findings, topsoil to approximately 300mm, with light brown stone,
cobbles, mudstone and limestone below. The mudstone became more prominent with
depth and the digging was ditficult; refusal was reached at |m depth in trial pit | and
1.3m depth in trial pit 2. No water ingress was noted. Tree roots were confirmed to
the upper topsoil layer.

4.0 Conclusion and Recommendations

The retaining wall is in reasonable condition for its age, Historie leaning was noted
but this is expected due to the nature of the retaining wall. There was no evidence of
recent movement.

The lack of cracking and close proximity of the trees indicates that clay is not present
and the wall is on stable ground.

The trial pits revealed a hard weathered stone matrix before encountering more solid
rock. The digging was extremely difficult and anticipated allowable bearing pressures
in the rock are well in excess of 200kN/m’

Due to the nature of the ground encountered, land slip is not considered to be an issue
where the dwelling is proposed, provided the foundations are located on the rock.

We have sketched a section through the site (23434/F 1) indicating the relationship
between the existing retaining wall and the proposed dwelling. Slopes to the retaining
wall are in the order of 15-16” to the suggested foundation depth. We do not believe
the excavation of the foundations will have any detrimental impact on the Boundary
retaining wall.

We would recommend the bank adjacent to the path is sloped up towards the
boundary wall at an angle of 30 degrees.

We would recommend that conerete strip footings are utihised, founded 600min below
proposed ground level adjacent to the boundary wall and stepping down to an
approximate level of 9.6m 1o the front of the property — see sketch. As an additional
precaution the strip footings should be reinforced with 2 layers of A393 mesh top and
bottom to deal with any potential movement within the retained material within the
dwelling.

83




SHEPPARD CONSULTING ENGINEERS LTD

We trust the above is sufficient for your current requirements, however should you
require any further assistance please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned.

— (\b&}i}\;\B

A D Sheppard BSc (Hons) CEng MIStructE
Managing Director

84




Oakwood House, 22 The Rookery, Scotter,

. X . Li i 1 3FB
SHEPPARD CONSULTING ENGINEERS LTD R Linoeluciion 12 e
G — ‘ Email: admin@sheppardconsulting co.uk
— ———
Projet (O Posco taGaas Onacil Wit — D {5 a5 Client
CLBEE, LAnSCoris s = <rodic
Made by Date Checked by Date Job Number / Sheet Number
<, SepT'i9 fl'blr"ll&/ wasl
N ake ‘\:ﬁ\-_.: N Fodd Kign
= - 1
Vi)
-F -~ — —_——
Ma(h Noteths lcuoge |
¢ &b
|
i PN N———L (bm\g Veslo] s
! \\ﬁ&g\» N2 u».rn&
WZZANNNZZN
L A ,l \r\ P, % /' -~ s B \’ ', N Y
awd \ e N 0 QES‘ -7 ;
~ ,I;/'T‘\J’/’\ !
: NAA N7 74 ,
1. 4 3 5 ey
RS
o y |
| | ool
oL §
’*n-- <l i G{“és_ 4 b ;.\ t J
B aked sd\ >
h D, fin [V, qm\:-}'s a&b\u% H | T & 2N INVZ7 Q\\// // %! =
ookt balddoh " =t Lo | M4SN
|\ 25 TN W RN RN !
i NN ZARS ¥/ I
VNN H G LN

85



Oakwood House, 22 The Rookery, Scotter,

SHEPPARD CONSULTING ENGINEERS LTD Do U dols DRt S

Email: adminf@sheppardconsulting.co.uk
Project O atoses reevy O Gl i - bafh Laias cLose, Client

LAr3Col e o calie
Made by Date Checked by Date Job Number / Sheet Number
= S<fr'V 2aLbL/ TP oL,

b Tl —T-.;;‘go_\' s ko
BEXD MY, L L N (& X O N
l-om = S =
L.t \ Qo sth, \‘NS’ e \' m.\\'o
:\Is b o _)\‘ =) pedt,
nb\c\ o Awodato
4 (AT A &‘3—‘
'EQ}Q(\ thf] o)
b T:»l RIETESN N C \—“ 0 i
b | | fosie ey
5

N Wodakn]  ENdeds f anab NSk

AN dvadhNdnd W\ Noalad sy

86



_ SHEPPARD CONSULTING ENGINEERS LTD

Oakwood House, 22 The Rookery, Scotter,

Gainsb

orough, Lincolnshire, DN21 3FB
Mob: 07876 405628

Email: admin@sheppardconsulting.co.uk

Project Client
C - Gy Ol 4 b Nonas Lotk
ZROQOUG e ) F,CMU,.(,.. ! 3@ o <ealiec
Made by Date Checked by Date Job Number / Sheet Number
T= <=oT'R, \P@FJ\.D.\ ¥
/ m a L
7l ory m v
J JE RS 47y 23
] EENCEEE ANy
N 1A 21y 2 dnd N i
2 d me v o 14 m -
g £ (] A \Nl\ \\w#
/\w\ 1 g i I ;
N> = / NS > &
/1
il i 5
D) Bl V]e 7
4 NES BN EANNE |
< | D h
=] \ L Ei |l
pec 5y e Oy
%
S 9o @ \ A
il g 0 4 2 B
, oI 5 .
e f ==t L ENEP)
Z tm 4_. v \m N~
0 0| P ), A 6]
I I T 4 4 %
= LT 1A g
| W W
Kl " b
T i N
[
o s s e | Y
FH
D
a V)
> a1
g4
. Ol
T 5
£t
0
4
4 s S
p! Y
) |-
. =
) =
3 Bl
i ks
il (3
S19T,




Officers Site Photos

View across the site towards 38B Willis Close

88



View across the site towards Willis Close

View across the site towards Belle Vue Road and Willis Close

89



Section of the existing retaining wall
between the site and properties on
Belle Vue Road

90



View from the site west towards High Orchard on Theodore Street

91



This page is intentionally blank.



CITY OF LINCOLMN COUNCIL
DIRECTORATE OF DEVELOPMENT & ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICE

MEMORANDUM

To: Development Team From: lan Wicks,
Development Control Pollution Control Officer
Planning Ref. 20190539/0UT Date: & August 2019

Erection of detached dwelling and garage. (OUTLINE) at 38b Williz Close, Lincoln

Further to your conzsultation on the above application, | would make the following comments:

Air Guuality and Sustainable Transport

Whilst it is acknowledged that the propesed development, when considered in isolation, iz unlikely to
have any significant impact on air quality, the numerous minor and medium scale developments
within the city will have a significant cumulative impact if reasonable mitigation measures are not
adopted.

The NPPF seeks to promote and enable sustainable transport choices and, in doing so, aims to
protect and enhance air quality. Paragraph 110 of the revised NPPF states “..._applications for
development... should be designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission
vehicles in safe, accessible and convenient locations”

It is noted that this proposed development will include off street parking spaces and, therefore, it is
recommended that the applicant be required to incorporate appropriate electric vehicle recharge
points into the development in line with the recommendations of paragraph 110 of the NPPF.

If deemed necessary to secure the installation of the charging points, it is recommended that the
following condition be attached to the planning consent:

= Prior to the commencement of the development, defalls of a scheme for the provision of an
electric vehicle recharge point shall be submitfed fo the planning awthority for approval. The
approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the occupation of the dwelling and shall be
mainfained thereafter.

Construction/Demolition Impacts

Although this iz a relatively small development, due to the close proximity to neighbouring sensitive
uses, there is potential for significant problems due to noise from the construction phase of the
development, particulary during the noize sensitive hours. It is therefore recommended that the
following item be included as a consent condition, if permission is granted:

93



«  The consfruction of the development hersby permitted shall only be underiaken between the
hours of 08:00 fo 18:00 Monday fo Friday (incluzsive) and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and shall
not be permitted at any other time, except in relation to internal plastering, decorafing, foor
covering, fitting of plumbing and electrics and the installation of kitchens and bathrooms; and

Any delivenes associated with the consfruction of the development hereby permitted shall only

be received or despafched at the site between the hours of 08:00 fo 18:00 Monday fo Friday
(inclusive) and 08200 to 13.:00 on Saturdays and shall not be permitted at any other fime.

Regards

lan Wicks
Pollution Control Officer
(Ext 3794)

94



Place Directorate

Lancaster House L|nt:r,'_}|n5hire

36 Orchard Street COLUNTY COUMCIL |
Limcoln LN 12X

Tel: (01522) 782070

E-Mai: highwayssudssupporti@lincoinshire govuk

To: Lincoln City Council Application Ref:  2019/0538/0UT

With reference to this application dated & July 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location

38B Willis Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN1 3ILG
Date application refemed by the LPA Type of application: OUT
16 July 20149

Description of development
Erection of detached dwelling and garage. (OUTLINE)

Matice is herelyy given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authority:

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.
COMNDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS)

The principle of development is acceptable.

As this is an outline application with access only considered. Please make the
applicant aware of the requirements for parking, visibility, tuming and layout; as
detailed within the Lincolnshire County Council Design Approach and Development
Road Specification.

NO OBS

Having given due regard to the appropriate local and national planning policy
guidance (in particular the National Planning Policy Framework), Lincolnshire
County Council (as Highway Authority and Lead Local Flood Autharity) has
concluded that the proposed development is acceptable and accordingly, does not
wish to object to this planning application.

Case Officer: Date: 01 August 2019

Martin Nash

for Warren Peppard
Head of Development

95



LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE POLICE HEADQUARTERS

PO Box 999
m LINCOLN LN5 7PH
. o CI' Fax: (01522) 558128
POLICE DDI: (01522) 558292
policing with PRIDE email

john.manueli@lincs. pnn.palice.uk

Your Ref:  App. 201%/0535/0UT 30th Juby 2019

Development & Environmental Services
City Hall, Beaumont Fee
Lincoln, LNT 1DF

RECONSULTATION 38B Willis Close, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN1 3LG

Thank you for your comespondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed
development.

Lincolnshire Police has no objection to this application.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarfication.

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract. Neither the
Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice given.
However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be committed.
Yours sincerely,

John Manuel 1a BA (Hons) PGCE PECPR Dip Bus.

Force Designing QOut Crime Officer (DOCO

96



6th August 2015

Mr Kieron Manning,
Flanning Department,
City of Lincoln Council,
City Hall,

LINCOLN LN1 1LA

Re: Planning application for 388 Willis Close, Lincoln LM1 3LG

Dear Mr Manning,

As one of the city councillors for Carholme ward, | would like to make the following comments
regarding the 38B Willis Close application. | am not objecting to the building of the new property
but would like these comments to be taken into account by the planning committee.

Historically, | am aware that there have been many issues in the uphill area with landslips so it's
important to exercise caution when building in the area. The retaining wall at the back of the
properties on the west side of Belle View Road is very old and its age and position means that it is
vulnerable to issues relating to building work. | am concerned that the building work nearby could
cause the wall to collapse, resulting in a landslip. Te prevent such an occurrence | would ask thata
full structural report be made a planning condition so that the risk of a landslip can be assessed
ahead of any work. In addition, a reinforcement of the retaining wall would reduce the risk of
collapse: | believe there is already precedent for this in the neighbourhood.

Having visited many of the properties on Belle View Road, it is clear that the height of the proposad
building will lead to some loss of light for a few of the houses. This will have an impact on the day to
day life of the owners and therefore a single storey development might be more appropriate in this
context.

Willis Close/Belle View is a lovely residential area and I'm pleased that a new dwelling is being
planned as it means that another family can enjoy living in that location. However, | hope that my
comments will be taken into consideration in order to prevent potentially serious construction issues
which would impact negatively on all concerned.

Yours sincerely,
Clir Lucinda Preston,

Carholme ward, Lincoln City Council

97



Neighbour responses from the re-consultation

28 Belle Yue Road
Lincoln
LM1 1HH

26 September 2019

Mr K Manning, Planning Manager
Directorate of Communities & Environment
City of Lincoln Council

City Hall

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln

LM1 1DF

Your reference; 2019/053%/00UT

Dear Mr Manning

Planning Application Consuliation: 38B Willis Close_ Lincoln LN1 3LG

With reference to the above planning application, | reiterate my previous objections
of 6 August 2019. Furthermore, the revised plans do not address issues in respect
of Residential Amenity and the structural survey is lacking in conviction.

Despite the structural survey carried out by Sheppard Consulting Engineers on
Friday 30 August 2019, | remain unconvinced that the retaining wall will withstand
both the removal of mature trees and excavations within close proximity to it's base
without subsequent detrimental consequences. The wall requires substantial
reinforcement prior to the commencement of such works.

Evidence of damage to the retaining wall by trees, excavating and building is
clearly visible to the rear of properties on the West side of Belle Vue Road,
between 25 Carline Road and 38B Willis Close - this area has not been
inspected. Prior to Planning permission being granted for a further dwelling
on this site, a full inspection and reinforcement remedial works to the retaining
wall should be carried out before any further damage is caused.

98



Structural Survey - Sheppard Consulting Engineers

The structural survey of Friday 30 August 2019 stated that;

Wall Inspection

Section 1-1 had a lean towards 388 Willis Close of 40 mm in 1m to the lower retained section.
Section 2-2 had a lean towards 386 Willis Close of 100 mm in 1m to the lower retained section. This
movement is clearly historic and there was no evidence of recent movement. Several fairly mature
trees are in close proximity and several cut down trunks were noted close to the wall. These do not
gppear to be affecting the wall, indicating that the ground conditions are not susceptible to drying
shrinkage.

Conclusion and recommendations

The retaining wall is in reasonable condition for its age. Historic leaning was noted but this is
expected due to the nature of the retaining wall. There was no evidence of recent movement.

Due to the nature of the ground encountered, land slip is not considered to be an issue where the
dwelling is proposed, provided the foundations are located on the rock.

The structural survey is lacking in conviction and clearly conflicts with the
observations and experience of Belle Vue Road residents.

The survey noted “historic leaning” of the retaining wall. The “historic
leaning” has occurred since and can be attributed to the construction of

38B Willis Close and the continual growth of vigorous trees, strategically
planted by the applicant the full length of the retaining wall.

The “fairly mature trees” are now at roofline height in relation to the houses on
Belle Vue Road and still increasing in size.

Maple trees can grow to 21 metres in height and the recommended safe
building distance from these trees is 20 metres.

Ground heave often occurs when a mature tree near a property is removed.
Trees act as powerful pumps and will take a large amount of ground water out
of the sub-seil. Once the tree is removed water will re-hydrate the sub-soil and
cause it to expand. The larger the tree the higher the water uptake and the
closer the tree is to buildings the higher the risk too.

A tree owner has a legal duty of care.

To be effective, pruning needs to reduce the crown volume of the tree by at
least 70 per cent, and be repeated on a regular basis such as every three
years. Crown thinning (as opposed to crown reduction) has been found
ineffective at reducing transpiration rates.

It should be noted that the “several cut down trunks close to the wall” were
small insignificant fruit trees.

99



Residential Amenity

The revised plans propose a dwelling that will be detrimental to the Residential
Amenity of neighbouring properties.

The height, mass and proximity of the proposal will have an overbearing, overlooking
and overshadowing effect on visual amenity, intrude upon privacy and obscure my
view to the North West.

It is unreasonable that | should have to artificially light my ground floor rooms in
summer and that daylight to my first floor lounge is impeded.

The Residents of Belle Vue Road have justifiable concerns about land stability and
lateral support to their homes, especially given the incidents of subsidence, landslip
and collapse of retaining walls in the locality, for example Beaumont Fee,

Victoria Street, Spring Hill, Carline Road, Yarborough Terrace and

Upper Long Leys Road.

In Conclusion

Permitted Development was removed from 388 Willis Close.

The retaining wall has been undermined due to the activities of the applicant and is
not fit for purpose.

Existing damage to the wall (388 Willis Close to 25 Carline Road) has not been
inspected. The wall requires reinforcement and remediation works prior to the
consideration of any further building.

The survey is non-committal, lacking in conviction and provides no conclusive
evidence of foundation structure to the retaining wall. It seeks to support the
application by avoidance of the issues with existing trees and best practice
arboricultural guidelines with regard to trees and buildings, and in particular the
retaining wall. Furthermore, the survey did not incorporate the section of wall with
visible damage which is absolutely relevant to this application.

Yours sincerely

M Tomlinson

100



27 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
LN1 1HH

11 Sep 2018

Mr K Manning, Planning Manager
Directorate of Communities & Environment
City of Lincoln Council

City Hall

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln

LN1 1DF

Your reference; 2018/0539/0UT

Dear Mr Manning

Plannina Application Consultation: 388 Willis Close, Lincoln LN1 3LG

With reference to the above planning application, | still have concerns with this
development. | feel simply increasing the distance between the proposed dwelling
and retaining wall still does not address the numerous concems | documented in my

letter dated 29" July 2019

| still feel that a full structural engineers report (including land stability) and the
reinforcement of the retaining wall should be a condition prior 10 any development of
this site. Also, the dwelling should still be single storey to reduce any reduction in
natural light to the preperties on Belle ‘112 Road which will be affected by this

development.

A full structural report should be published which alleviates the concermns | have
mentioned before any development of this land should be considered by yourseives

Yours sincerely

Mark Doherty fo 79,

101



Neighbour responses from initial consultation

Comments for Planning Application 2019/0539/0UT

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/0539/0UT

Address: 388 Willis Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LN1 3LG

Proposal: Erection of detached dwelling and garage. (Revised Drawing) (OUTLINE)
Case Officer: Craig Everton

Customer Details
Name: Mr Ben Poole
Address: High Orchard Theodore Street Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:I'm not clear from the drawing whether my original concems, particularly with reference
to being overlooked and the possibility of landslip to my property through construction method
have been addressed.

102



5% August 2019

Directorate of Communities & Environment Robert White

City of Lincoln Council 29 Belle Vue Road
City Hall Lincoln
Beaumont Fee LM1 1HH

Limcoln

LN1 1DF

Dear 5ir/Madam

RE: PLANNING APPLICATION 053%9/2019/0UT - 38B WILLIS CLOSE -
FORMER GARDEN LAND OF 25 CARLINE ROAD

| write in relation to the above application for Outline Planning Permission
which | was informed about in a letter from a Mr K Manning (Planning Manager)
dated 16:7:19, and received a few days later.

| am extremely concerned about the potential impact of this development
[should it be approved) on the rear boundary wall between my property (which
also extends to my neighbours on the south side of Belle Vue Road). You may be
aware of historical and currently unresolved issues relating to the wall which
have been raised with your authority over the past decade, and which are
pertinent here?

The wall is in a poor state of preservation and [ fear that the proposed
development risks further significant negative impact/risk of collapse. As a
result I feel that, in order to take this application forward, it should be subject (at
the applicant’s expense) to the highest level of relevant professional
scrutiny/assessment, in respect of any potential remedial work required to
ensure the ongoing integrity of the boundary wall.

| hope you will reflect on these comments in your consideration of this
application, and | look forward to receiving your reassurance.

Yours faithfully

Robert White

103



Comments for Planning Application 2019/0539/0UT

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/053%/0UT

Address: 388 Willis Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LN1 3LG
Proposal: Erection of detached dwelling and garage. (OUTLINE)
Case Officer: null

Customer Details
Name: Miss Helena Buckle
Address: 26 Belle Vue Road Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:My main concem is the stability of the boundary wall which runs along the West side of
Belle Vue Road and the disturbance which any damage to this wall could cause to properties on
Belle Vue Road.

The existing comments about the present poor condition of the wall and previous instances of
collapse are extremely concerning. Any building or excavation work close to the wall could weaken
the retaining wall and the support it provides.

A Tull structural survey together with any reinforcement work needed should be carmried out at the
applicant's expense as a precondition for any proposed development. It would also seem
reasonable for the applicant to put in place indemnity insurance to cover any loss (including future
losses) caused as a result of damage to the wall.

Given the proximity of the proposed development to existing houses it would seem reasonable to
restrict any building to a single storey to prevent it overlooking neighbouring properties.

104



Comments for Planning Application 2019/0539/0UT

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/053%/0UT

Address: 38B Willis Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LM1 3LG
Proposal: Erection of detached dwelling and garage. (OUTLINE)
Case Officer: null

Customer Details
Name: Mr Oliver Craven
Address: 67 Alexandra Temace Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment-Having talked to a number of residents in the area, there are significant wormies that the
construction could cause structural damage to a retaining wall which maintains a number of
properties on the west side of Belle Vue Road.

Under the Party Wall etc. Act 1996, if an adjoining owner doesn't consent within 14 days of
receiving notice of the proposed works then the parties are deemed to be "in dispute”. A Party

Wall is a shared common structure.

Since, as far as | am aware, the households that the wall maintains have not been properly
consulted on or consented to this construction, under the Act they are therefore in dispute.

105



28 Belle Yue Road
Lincoln
LM1 1HH

6 August 2019

Mr K Manning, Planning Manager
Directorate of Communities & Environment
City of Lincoln Council

City Hall

Beaumont Fes

Lincodn

LM1 1DF

Your reference: 2019/0539/0UT

Dear Mr Manning

Planning Application Consultation: 388 Willis Close, Lincoln LN1 3LG
With reference to the above planning application, | have the following objections
which | would like the Council to take into consideration when deciding the

applicaticn:
1 Design & Access Statement

Contrary to the Applicant's Design and Access Statement:
"The site is not known fo have any previous history of planning applications.™

Ower the years there have been numerous planning applications and objections
relating to this site (Fomer Garden Land of 25 Carline Road).

Permitted Development was removed when Flanning Application LOD9/0200/96
was granted.

‘the facing brick wall”in photographs 2, 3 and 4 is in fact a retaining wall.

2 Land Stability & | ateral Support

My first concem is the retaining wall between 11 properties on the west side of
Belle Vue Road and the proposed development. The plans indicate that the new
garage will be built 0.8 metres away from the retaining wall adjacent my
neighbours garden. The wall is old and with the proximity of the new building to
the base of the wall there is the potential that any work carried out, especially
ground works, will cause the wall to give way and cause landslip.

106



Lateral Support: “the right of a landowner assuring that his/her neighbours land
will provide support against any slippage, cave-in or landslide. Should the
adjoining owner excavate into the soil for any reason (foundation, basement,
leveling) then there must be a retaining wall constructed (or other protective
engineenng to prevent a collapse.”

| understand that a substantial reinforced retaining wall was required pricr to the
new developments on Yarborough Terrace and Carine Road and consider that
the same should apply to the proposed development at 38B Willis Close, for the
safety of all concemed.

3 Drainage

Building owver this site will affect the water table, land drainage and stability.

The plans indicate a soakaway providing surface water drainage, which | consider
to ke inappropriate in the interest of ground stability of the hillside, especially
given the heavy rainfall that we are experiencing.

4 Trees

| note that the applicant intends to remove some of the trees that they planted
following the construction of the houses on the west side of Belle YVue Road.
The trees are mature and of substantial height. Their disturbance may cause
ground heave due to an extensive root system of up to three times the height of
the tree and affect the stability of the retaining wall.

Maple trees can grow to 21 metres in height and the recommended safe building
distance from these trees is 20 metres.

Egually the trees that remain may be detrimental to the retaining wall due to their
root systems and proximity.

5 Visual Amenity

The height, mass and proximity of the proposal will have an overbearing,
overlooking and overshadowing effect on my visual amenity, reducing the natural
light received by both my home and garden, intruding upon my privacy and
obacuring my view to the North West.

The properties on the West side of Belle Vue Road were designed and
constructed to incorporate a first floor lounge taking advantage of the views
across the West Common and Trent Valley. | fully appreciate that “view” is not a
planning ground, but believe that in thiz instance it iz a most important atiribute to
the properties in guestion and has a substantial bearing on their enjoyment. It
should therefore fall under the heading of “Residential Amenity”.

107



The close proximity and height of the building will further restrict the daylight to my
west facing windows which are blighted by the dense crowns of maple trees
blocking out sunlight, necessitating the use of artificial lighting to downstairs
rooms and impeding on daylight upstairs. Any daylight that cumrently filkers
through the tree canopy will be blocked by a brick wall and roofline.

The photographs of the site submitted with the application, do not demonstrate
the adverse impact that the proposal will have on sumounding properties, which is
apparent in the negative impact that the existing dwelling at 386 Willis Close has
had upon the visual amenity of neighbouring properties in Belle Vue Road. |
suggest a site visit is camied out to appreciate the concems of Belle VVue Road
residents.

In summary, if a dwelling is to be built at all, the scale and height of the proposal
should be reduced to a modestly sized bungalow with & lower rocfline and a greater
distance from the retaining wall, in consideration of the residential amenity of
neighbouring properties.

Pricr to any development of 388 Willis Close, a full structural enginesrs report
{including ground stability) together with reinforcement of the retaining wall should be
made a Planning Condition and lateral suppert to the properiies on the West side of
Belle ue Road maintained.

The Residential Amenity of neighbouring properties should be safeguarded by
removing Permitted Development.

Yours sincerely

M Tomlinson

108



Comments for Planning Application 2019/0539/0UT

Application Summary

Application Number: 201%/0539/0UT

Address: 388 Willis Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LWN1 3LG
Proposal: Erection of detached dwelling and garage. (QUTLINE)
Case Officer: null

Customer Details
Mame: Mr Ben Poole
Address: High Orchard Theodore Street Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Meighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application
Comment Reasons:

CommentDATE: 5th August 2019.

Reference Development: 2019/053%/0UT
38B Willis Close
Lincoln LN1 3LG

To whom it may concem,

We have been told that permitted development rights have been removed from the current
dwelling on the site in relafion to the enlargement of the dwelling and the erection of additional
dwellings. This suggests that there is some concem on the part of the planning authority regarding
further development and overdevelopment at this location.

We feel that there are grounds for objection in material planning considerations.

Scale and Height

In respect of height, it does not show on the plan how high 1 172 storeys is. We note from the
drawing there are windows in the roof, which would overlook our property into the kitchen,
bedroom and bathroom. Consideration should be taken in application not to overlook the property
at High Orchard Theodore Street Lincoln, LN1 1HW impacting negatively both on the enjoyment of
the residents and the value of the property. We would be happy for you to undertake a site visit to

see the impact of height on such a development.

If any new dwelling is restricted to a single storey to resolve this issus we might withdraw

109



objections subject to our concems below.

Ground Disturbance and Land Slippage. Disturbance of natural springs in the area.

There is a history of this around this location, causing subsidence and water collection and ingress
both on our own property and on Yarborough Terrace.

We understand that this is a known issue in general for the City (in Victoria Street and Beaumont
Fee) and extends beyond material planning considerations to matters of pubic safety.

We would like to see plans for a substantial retaining wall along the length of the boundary to our
site, made a condition of the development (as was the case with the development at Yarborough
Terrace, for example).

Significant research and a report into the building technigue of foundations should also be done to
safeguard against landslip and subsidence with accountability placed on the professional report
and the developer.

Faithfully,

Ben Poole & Sophie Kamal

High Crchard Theodore Street
Lincoln LN1 1HW

110



Comments for Planning Application 2019/0539/0UT

Application Summary

Application Number: 2019/0539/0UT

Address: 386B Willis Close Lincoln Lincolnshire LN1 3LG
Froposal: Erection of detached dwelling and garage. (OUTLINE)
Case Officer: null

Customer Details
Name: Mr David Ruff
Address: 35 Belle Vue Road Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:The critical concern we have with the proposed development is the disturbance to the
boundary wall which runs the length of the properties on the West side of Belle Vue Road.

Previously excavation has caused the retaining wall to partially collapse. Currently the wall is
showing signs of adverse structural stress, probably from developmental works and the close
proximity of several large trees to the West of the boundary wall on the East of the location plan.
The wall is unstable, any works could potentially remove the right of support for the adjoining and
adjacent properties.

To protect and maintain the right of support to the adjeining and adjacent properties it would be a
reasonable condition of the proposed development that the applicant has in place an indemnity to
pay compensation for a loss, damages, similar expenses and to secure against future loss as a
result of damage to the retaining wall.

111



27 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
LN1 1HH

29 July 2019

Mr K Manning, Planning Manager
Directorate of Communities & Environment
City of Lincoln Council

City Hall

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln

LN1 1DF

Your reference: 2019/0538/0UT

Dear Mr Manning
Planning Application Consultation: 388 Willis Close, Lincoln LN1 3LG

With reference 1o the above planning application, | have the following objections
which | would like the Council to take into consideration when deciding the
application:

ining Wall

My first concem is the retaining wall between 11 properties on the west side of

Belle Vue Road and the proposed development. The plans indicate that the new
garage will be built 0.8 metras away from the retaining wall adjacent my small town
garden, The wall is ald and with the proximity of the new building to the base of said
wall there is the potential that any work carried out, especially ground works, will
cause the wall to give way and cause a landslide. | am deeply concemed for the
safety of my young children.

Buiding over this site will affect the water lable, land drainage and stabily.

| note that the applicant intends to remove some of the trees that they planted
following the construction of the houses on the west side of Belle Vue Road.

The trees are mature and of substantial height, Their disturbance could affect the
stabllity of the ground and retaining wall due to an extensive root system of up to
three times the height of the tree.

Equally the trees that remain may be detrimental 1o the retaining wall due to their
root systems and proximiy.

112



| understand that a substantial reinforced retaining wall was required prior 1o the new
developments on Yarborough Terrace and Carline Road and consider that the same
should apply to the proposed development at 388 Willis Close, for the safety of all
concemed,

Visual Amenity

My second concern after seeing the plans for this development is that the height and
proximity of the proposal will have an cverbearing, overiooking and overshadowing
effect on my visual amenity, reducing the natural light received by both my garden
and house, intruding upon my privacy and obliterating my view to the south west.

The photographs of the site submitted with the application do not demonstrate the
adverse impact that the proposal will have on surrounding properties, which is
apparent in the negative impact that 38B Willis Close has had on the visual amenity
of neighbouring propertias in Belle Vue Road. | suggest a sile visit i carned out to
appreciate the concems of Belle Vue Road residents.

In conclusion, | feel that a full structural engineers repor (including land stability)
together with reinforcement of the retaining wall should be a Condition prior to any

development of this site and the right of support of 11 properies on the west side of
Balle Vue m 3 maintained.

The scale and height of the proposal sheuld be reduced to single storey with &
greater distance from the retaining wall, in consideration of the residential amenity of
surrounding residents,

Yours sincerely

M Doherty

113



The Planning Department , “Chaxls™

City of Lincoln Council il CiTY OF £ 34 Belle Ve Road

City Hall - SO R Lincoln

Beaumont Fee i 01 AUG 2012 § LN1 IHH

Lincoln RNy

LN1 IDF B LINCOLN COURCYL Tuesday, 30" of July,2019
Dear Sit/Madam

Re: Planning Application 0539/2019/0UT — 38B Willis Close — Former Garden Lund of 25 Carline
Road.

| am writing in connection with the above named and referenced Outline Planning Application
submitted to your Planning Department on behalf of Mrs Jill Clark by her instructed Ageat with »
proposed Site Location Plan dated June 2019.

I am extremely surprised and concerned that the City Planning Department has not already written
1o and notified all residents of Belle Vue Road who own Properties on the South West side of
Belle Vue Road of this Planning Application on the basis that a high wall runs right from Carline
Road right along all the Properties above mentioned through to Mrs Clark’s Property on Willis
Close and because of the current precarious condition of this Wall which is unstable the Planning
Application of Mrs Jill Clark has a direct bearing on all of us who own Propertics on the South
West side of Belle Vue Road from 37 Belle Vue Road right up to the top of the road at No.26 Belle
Vue Road. This Wall on the Outline Site Proposed Block Plan is referred to as a Retaining Wall and
you will be well aware of course that all of us who awn Properties from 37 down o 26 Belle Vue
Road have an automatic right to support in legal terms being the properties on the higher level.

Whilst 1 have no serious objections to the proposed development on the Qutline Plans by Mrs Jill
Clark and her Agent 1 do however have serious concems about the present Boundary Wall and it's
current precarious state and the general stability of the land and the adverse impact that any works
on Mrs Jill Clark's Proposed Planning Application for the erection of a new Dwelling might have.
If any further damages did occur to this Wall including landslide then I and my neighbours would
hold the City of Lincoln Council's Planning Department fully and legally responsible and you will
be well aware of the Landslips that have already occurred in this LN1 area in respeet of Motherby
Hill and Drury Lanc/Spring Hill in past years in my memory so there are legal precedents already.
The recently appeoved Houses and Flats built on the South facing side of Carline Road required
the Developers 10 undenake significant remedial works and underground reinforcement to prevent

the danger of landslip ocourring.
Since 1 purchased my Property in March 1987 — over 32 years ago the state of the Wall at the

rear of my Property which divides me from 25 Casline Road,a Semi-Detached brick built House
built in the Edwardian era of the carly 20* century — has suffered constant deterioration mainly duc

114



Page 2

10 the fact that the current owner of No.25 Carline Road has undertaken no maintenance of the Wall
and his predecessar,the late Mr David Clark, planted 2 massive continuous lite of Deciduous Acer
Trees and Non-Deciduous Trees ¢.g Yews one of which is now higher than my Detached House and
there is 0o evidence that any Tree Root Bammier Protection was ever installed when the trees were
planted in the 1980's when the Belle Vue Houses were constructed. My House was built in 1984,
The massive roots of these Trees especially the very tall Cupressus Tree go under the wall's base
footage and sway violently when we have strong winds and rain and | have put my hand on the
Wall top and can feel the Wall vibrating and shuddecing. In addition over the past 32 years of my
ownership of my House I have suffered landslip which resulted in & cavernoas hole in my bottom
slabbed patio which | had to remove, There are numerous decp holes against the Wall and cracks
have developed on the Wall top and in it's mortar levels and it has moved southwards towards No
25 by a considerable amount and is now leaning significantly over 25 Carline Road and with the
Clay sub-soil level and current climatic conditions and the current movement and an-going
deterioration it is obvious the Wall will collapse into No.25 Carline's Road Garden area at some
firture date not far distant now. It is very difficult to garden near the wall because of it's precarious
state. You will be aware no dowbt that the Wall itself partially collapsed into No.25 Carline Road's
Garden in the early 1980's during the construction of my House and my 2 adjoining neighbours at
No.s 33 and 35 and had to be repaired and partly re-constructed by the then British Gas Board

Tt is therefore absolutely essential that before any Planning Approval is even considered that you
as the responsible City Council Planning Department insist on a prior Full in-depth Structural
Engineer's Physical Visual Inspection, with Bore Tesis if necessary, and a Written Report also
concerning the general and specific Land Stability Report as theze is definite and sustained
current movement on the Wall, The Full Costs of these actions to be met by the Applicant.Mrs Jill
Clark and her Agent of course,

Please acknowledge your safe receipt of my letter to you in writing as soon as possible.

Yours faithfully,

Mr Phallip. W.L.Serth

115



30 Belle Vue Road, Lincoln, LN1 1HH

Linceln City Council,
Development Team,
City Hall,

Beaumaont Fee,
Lincaoln,

LM1 1HH

20 July 2019

Your reference: 20150539/0UT

Dear Madam/Sir,
Planning Application Consultation: 388 Willis Close, LN1 3LG
Thank you for your letter of 16 July in respect of the above.

We note in the application that permitted development rights have been removed from
the current dwelling on the site in relation to the enlargement of the dwelling and the
erection of additional dwellings. Whilst we understand that this does not preclude further
development on the site, it suggests to us that there is some concern on the part of the
planning authority, about further development and overdevelopment at this location.

We restrict our comments to two material planning considerations.
Scale and Height

In respect of height, we are not dear what a 1¥: storey building might be in terms of
roof line, (and as an outline application, the plans, presumably, are not binding) but care
must be taken in any detailed application not to obsoure the view to the west of numbers
29, 28 and 27 Belle Vue Road. The dwelling erected to the west of number 30 Belle Vue
Road (28b Willis Close) has completely obscured the view from number 20 Belle Vue
Road to the west, impacting negatively both on the enjoyment of the residents and the
value of the property. We would ke happy for you to undertake a site visit to number 30
to see the impact of height on such a development.

Wa fully appreciate that there is no legal *right to a view', as a material planning
consideration. But presumably this issue has precedent in Lincoln because of its
topography that might be used as guidance. We do not know if there are any restrictive
covenants on any of the effected properties that are relevant to this issue of height.

It would seem appropriate at detailed planning application stage, that any new dwelling
is restricted to a single storey to resolve this issue, and that any landscaping also is of
appropriate height 50 as not to obscure the view,

Noise and disturbance

Dur man concern with this application relates to disturbance. There is a history in this
location, of activity [both developmental and in relation to trees) to the west of the

116



boundary wall on the east of the location plan, causing disturbance to the boundary wall
itself, This issue pertains to the whole length of the wall to the west of all properties in
Belle Vue Road.

Because this wall has been shown to be unstable, We have a real concern that any
excavations for foundations, and other ground works, will render this wall in an even
more dangerous condition, if not cause it to fall down. We understand that this is a
kmown issue in general for the City (in Victoria Street and Beaumont Fee for example )
and extends beyond material planning considerations to matters of pubic safety.

Again, whilst not opposing the development at outline stage, We would like to see the
substantial reinforcement of the retaining wall along the whole eastern length of the site,
made a condition of the development (as was the case with the development at
Yarborowgh Terrace, for example).

Conclusion

We are happy for this development to proceed if the building is single storey, planting
does not obscure the view, and that the retaining wall to the east of the development is
fully reinforced.

Yours faithfully

Professor Jacquelyn Allen-Collinsen
Professor Migel Curry.

117



37 Belle Vue Road
Lincoln
LN1 1HH

City of Lincoln Planning

Citv Hall
). R I
Beaumont Fee § eI 3
Lincoln ) 25 JUL 2019 §
s
5 LnCoLN counelL |

19" July 2019

Dear SirfMadam,
Re: Planning Application 539/2019/0UT 38B Willis Close Lincoln.

While 1 have no objection to the development proposed, | do have very scrious
concerns about the stahility of the land and the likely adverse elfects, on the
adjacent retaining wall to Belle Vue Road.

The poor condition of the wall, where the development is proposed. has been of
great concern to my neighbours for many years and any movement or
excavation on the land has the potential to cause considerable, costly damage.
In this event, | could be impacted by the proposed development. hence my

coneerns.

To illustrate my point. my property was alfected in the late 1990°s when
Diamond Cabling dug a relatively small trench to accommodate their fibre
cabling, at my front retaining wall. As a consequence, the wail was de-
stabilised and the remedial work cost in excess ol £20K.

[he wall at the front of my property was constructed at the same time as the
rest of the boundary wall to BelleVue Road. in approximately 1850.

In order to mitigate any potential damage. it would appear prudent for you to
insist upon a full structural engineers report on the wall, along with a land
stability report. This would assist greatly in allving my concerns and would
place responsibility and accountability on to the author of the professional
report and the developer.

. . ~
- '

118



G & E C Brooks
33 Bellevue Road

Lincoln
LN1 1HH

City of Lincoln Council
Planning Dept.

City Hall

Beaumont Fee

Lincoln

NI | DF ATyor

2]

&
29 July 2019 g N2 AUG 2018
0

LINCOLN COUNCIL

?

Dear Sis/Madam.

Re: Planning Application 05392019/388 Willis Close Lincoln,

Following my peevious letter dated 23 July 2019 | have only just seen the letter
regarding this application from Mr. R. W. Wilkinson of 37 Belle Vue Road Lincoln, |
would take issve to Mr Wilkinsons letter paragraph 4 where he states that *The wall
to the front of my property (37 Belle Vue Road ) was constructed at the same time as
the rest of the boundary wall in approximately in 1850™ | agree with Mr Wilkinson
that the two walls where built at the same time, but there is no evidence thal it was in
1850 but there is evidence that it was after the whole parcel of land was sold as
building plots in 1885, using it appears the same brick that the adjoining houses 23/25
Cadine Road and the rest of the houses down to Yarborough Terrace. (The walls
height has been added to since,) Possible at the same time the whole of the land that
23/25 Carline Road and the remaining Jand to the rear of the properties along Carline
Road (Indicated on plan 5 and 5A enclosed), was levelled to some cxtent using the
western walls of Belle Vue House cellars as retaining wall.,

I enclose plans from the period of time 1842 to early 19060. Please note that my
reference to Belle Ve House is indicated on the plans as The Girls Penitent Females
Home. The purpose of the use of these plans is to indicate what was used at that time
10 indicate the contours of the land at the location referred 1o remained mostly
unaltered until after 18835 at the carlicst. It is important o point out that all the carly
maps and plans indicate that the land level of Belle Vue House and the adjoining land
1o the west is connected al the same level according to the contour indications.

Plan | from D R Mills and R C Wheelers book “Historic town plans of Lincola 1610
10 1920 “Page 45 Dated 1842

This plan shows the area of land in question at the point where the hillside of Lincoln
Fdge changes direction from east to west to South to North with a very steep incline.

Plan 2. (D R Mills/R C Wheeler) Page 59 dated 1851 this is the first mdication of
Belle Vue House note the steep hillside appears to be unaltered on the south west
comer. This plan indicates that the ground Jevel of both sides of the west boundary of
Belle Vue House appears to be similar.

119




G & E C Brooks
33 Bellevue Road
Lincoln

LNI IHH

Plan 3. ( D R Millsand R C Wheeler) Dated 1868 page 73

There is no change in the indicated contours of the land to the south west corner of
Belle Ve House except that there has been an entrance to the front garden of Belle
Vue House at the south cast comer of the front garden. Note the level ground both
sides of the land each side of the westem rear garden wall.

Cont. Page 2

Plan 4 { D R Mills and R C Wheeler ) dated 1883 page 89.
No change in the contours of the south west comer of the garden of Belle Vue House.

Plan $ and SA. Lincoln City Library Freeschool Lane Lincoln. Dated 1885,

This plan was produced by the Estate Ageats prior o the sale of the indicated plots of
land to the rear of Carline Road/ Yarborough Terrace/Belle Vue Road. There are no
apparent alterations to the levels judging to the steep footpaths and steps which follow
the natural lay of the land as scen on the early maps submiticd, also the dotted
building line.

PMan 6. Lincoln City Council. Dated 1887/8

This plan is the first recorded indication of @ garden wall to the front of Belle Vue
House, and after the sale of the adjoining land to a builder and the first indication of
alterations to the land Jevels to the west of the whole boundary of Belle Vue House,
without removing part of the steep hillside 10 the west of the boundary of Belle Vue
House the wall could not appear a$ it is today with the much reduced land levels to
the west of this indicated wall ( which appears to be constructed at the lower levels
with the same bricks as 23/25 Carline Road.)

Map 7, Plan/map of Lincoln. Lincoln City Library. Dated 1905

This map indicates all the houses from Yarborough Terrace ( North Side ) completed
with the exception of 23/25 Carline Road. The remaining lfand from plans 5 and A
has been utilised as allotment gardens following the levelling of the site in gencral
hringing it to the levels that exist today, the steep inclines levelled, exposing the
cellar walls and the western garden wall of Belle Vue House (as a retaining wall
referred to on the applicants plan.) This action left the land to the cust and above the
now lower level with the lack of support except for the old western garden walls of
Belle Vue House and what was the cellar walls of Belle Vue House to act as a
retaining wall which are totally uafit for purpose, and leaves them in risk of collapse.

Map 8A undated survey map.
This has modem 200 foot contour marked in red and if inspected closely there isa

break in this contour from the north west corner of the rear garden of 25 Carline Road
andapohutothcrearofnmhwcszoomofthcbomulhc_ium:tionodebc Vue

120



G & E C Brooks
33 Bellevue Road
Lincoln

LN1 1HH

Road and Belle Vue Terrace, but interestingly it does follow the high point of the
hillside indicated on the old maps.

In conclusion I am saying and repeating that the whole of the western retaining wall
from 26 to 37 Bellevue Road should be investigated by the Planning Department
before any progression in made on this application, there is a serious risk of collapse
during the building works.

It is noted on the submitted plans that three trees are to be removed, and replaced in a
different position, and that a root barrier is to be installed. This proposal should be
removed in part, the three trees removed but no replanting should be permitted as it
will block the view of the houses on Belle Vue Road and put the wall at further risk.
The type of trees already growing within one metre of the wall are inappropriate with
or without a root barrier and I believe, set for anti- social reasons.

121



122



123



@

<L '8

. ' el
SRR 1 L L

?*u»“kﬂ.&u\. ¥

124



125

1§83




,
y

o) 5
g

126



127



Lincoln: & Lincolnshire (SEEa,. =
Ponitent Femalea Home SHCF R R v

e

'.‘ jﬂ ..‘-.

1867-8 - B CIY Ok
E@ Lincoln

cooxen

Scale: 1TI0 @ AL

128



-

......L:._.::.::_...

l.ﬂ' J

2N

ey

£ o
- )
= B WA
| -
S :
J 3 l .a‘
e
angIF
® m. k.
reca = ¥ -
M .
U ]
A WEoh 2 i b
e
N -
._l-.. - oL LA

J S
; \ & S ]
P U
. \ s .
i
) & .
( s .
N
~
N
.
L
A
L o s
,4 : sorwe
e s SER .Qr \ g
i
Y = " Ny,
oy, \
B . & .?!..v
| N
, _... - s
X > & - i
y /2 ‘ s 7
.. ‘ X B M ¥ Yucusny w1
IAJ \_ - - * 2
A - -3 = A : :
Sy 3= 1
: = %' |um ~
7 NG AT = £ X :
SAUs : d ! o
v 3 6 % I
< o
4 b imiwd & %
. :
ey ’ >i :
' - . w'.... M :
e idl ....5:..
§ R 'L
e -~
, k
n A
b A
Sopnn gy
23 - .
7’ " .:.-:.....Q. ¢
’ v X
e A\ I J

129



. % N > y
Tl

130



Iltem No. 4d

Application Number: | 2019/0007/FUL

Site Address: 18-20 Kingsway, Lincoln, Lincolnshire

Target Date: 9th May 2019

Agent Name: None

Applicant Name: Mr David Irons

Proposal: Erection of 6no. two bedroom dwellinghouses and a 3-storey

building to provide 8no. two bedroom apartments and 4no. one
bedroom apartments. Associated external works including
provision of 18no. car parking spaces.

Background - Site Location and Description

The application site is 18-20 Kingsway, located to the north west of the road. There is an
existing two storey brick warehouse to the left of the site, which has extensions to the side
and rear. A single storey steel clad building is located more centrally with a fenced
enclosure to the right housing a number of shipping containers, operated by Cathedral Self
Storage Ltd. The rear boundary is defined by an approximately 1.8m high fence and the
rear gable of the brick warehouse, forming the side boundaries of 15 St. Andrews Close
and 38 Hope Street. Adjacent to the side, north east boundary is a narrow strip of land,
which appears to be being used for the storage of materials, with the side boundary of 12
Kingsway beyond. Adjacent to the opposite side, south west boundary are allotments. The
site is located within Flood Zone 2.

The wider area is predominantly characterised by a mix of two storey semis and terraces
with the rear of the Ducati Showroom directly opposite the site. Kingsway also provides
access to Bishop King Primary School, located at the end of the street to the west.

The application is for the erection of six, two bedroom dwellinghouses and a three storey
building to accommodate eight, two bedroom apartments and four, one bedroom

apartments. Associated external works include the provision of 18 car parking spaces, a
communal garden and a wall with railings to the front boundary.

Site History
No relevant site history.

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 9th July 2019.

Policies Referred to

Policy LP1: A Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Policy LP2: The Spatial Strategy and Settlement Hierarchy

Policy LP11: Affordable Housing

Policy LP12: Infrastructure to Support Growth

Policy LP14: Managing Water Resources and Flood Risk

Policy LP16: Development on Land affected by Contamination

Policy LP25: The Historic Environment

Policy LP26:Design and Amenity

Central Lincolnshire Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document

131



e National Planning Policy Framework

Issues

Principle of use
Developer contributions
Visual amenity
Residential amenity
Access and highways
Flood risk and drainage
Trees

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted May 2014.

Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Environment Agency Comments Received
Lincolnshire Police Comments Received
Anglian Water Comments Received

Upper Witham, Witham First | Comments Received
District & Witham Third
District

Education Planning Manager, | Comments Received
Lincolnshire County Council

NHS England Comments Received

Highways & Planning Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address

Mr Clive Crossman 35 Kingsway
Lincoln
LN5 8EU

132




Mr Adam Titley 9 Kingsway
Lincoln
LN5 8EU

Miss Louise Hughes 4 Kingsway
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN5 8EU

Mrs Maxine Grant 5 Kingsway
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN5 8EU

Mr Garry Trown 194 Hykeham Road
Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN6 8AR

Consideration

Principle of Use

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) Policy LP2 advises that the Lincoln Urban Area will
be the principal focus for development in Central Lincolnshire, including housing. Officers
are therefore satisfied that the principle of the residential use is wholly appropriate in this
location. Supporting the application would also be in accordance with CLLP Policy LP1
which states that there should be a presumption in favour of sustainable development and
planning applications that accord with the policies in the Local Plan will be approved
without delay. This presumption in favour of sustainable development reflects the key aim
of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

Developer Contributions

In accordance with CLLP Policies LP11 and LP12 and the Central Lincolnshire Developer
Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) the proposed development would
be expected to provide affordable housing (on site or a commuted sum) and a financial
contribution towards playing fields and local green infrastructure, which would be secured
through a Section 106 agreement (S106). In respect of education and health contributions
the Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) and NHS England have respectively confirmed that
these are not required for the development.

The dwellings within the proposed development would also be Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) liable, which is a mandatory payment.

The applicant has advised that the requirement for S106 costs and CIL payments would
make the scheme unviable and a viability report has been submitted to support this
position. The report has been assessed on behalf of the Local Planning Authority by an
independent third party. The independent assessment concurs with the appraisal testing
within the report which shows that the scheme is unviable even before any planning
policies are applied, concluding that the scheme cannot provide any contributions.

The SPD advises that the Local Plan recognises the overriding need to ensure all

development is sustainable and supported by necessary and appropriate infrastructure,
however, the plan is also committed to delivering growth. Therefore, development viability

133




is not only relevant but critical to determining planning applications.

In this case officers are satisfied with the conclusion that the scheme would not be viable
with the expected S106 contributions. Requiring these would result in the development
being unviable and not being brought forward. Officers would be comfortable
recommending that the application be granted without providing an affordable housing
commuted sum or a contribution to playing fields and local green infrastructure subject to
the applicant signing a S106 legal agreement within which would be an overage clause.
This would require the developer to submit a revised viability assessment upon completion
of the development to demonstrate the viability at that time. If there has been an uplift in
the viability/profitability of the scheme then the scheme would be expected to provide what
constitutes policy compliance at that time i.e. the commuted sums that are not being
sought at this time.

Irrespective of viability the CIL payment would still be secured as this is mandatory on all
liable development.

Visual Amenity

The development comprises two terraces of three dwellings; one fronting Kingway with the
other at a right angle behind, facing into the site. Each dwelling has a small forecourt and
garden land to the rear. The apartments would be accommodated within a three storey
block. The ‘L’ shaped building has a direct frontage to the road with the rear section set
back behind a communal garden. Parking is provided along the frontage and towards the
rear/side. Officers consider that the site is of a sufficient size to comfortably accommodate
the proposed development along with the associated access, parking and garden areas.
The development represents a good use of land and would have a strong presence in the
street, which would visually be an improvement on the current arrangement.

The two storey dwellings would be of a traditional scale with a low level wall/railings to the
front boundary. This boundary treatment would extend in front of the apartment block,
which is three storey although the second floor is accommodated within the roof.
Therefore, despite the additional storey, the overall height of this building would sit only
marginally above the proposed dwellings. The overall mass of the three storey block is
broken up as a result of the set back of the rear section and it is considered that both
elements of the proposal would have an acceptable relationship with the existing two
storey properties in the vicinity. Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposal would
relate well to the site and surroundings in relation to siting, height, scale and massing.

It is also considered that the design of the proposal is acceptable. The dwellings would be
constructed with red brick, a slate effect roof and white UPVC windows. The traditional
proportions of the dwellings reflects the terraces in the vicinity with details including
chimneys, stone heads and cills reinforcing this. The materials, traditional detailing and
window proportions are continued for the apartment block, although the incorporation of
different roof types, gables and a full height glazed entrance/stairwell helps to break up the
mass and add interest. Conditions would require samples of the proposed materials for
approval and the setting of windows and doors within reveal to ensure the overall finish
and quality of the development is to a high standard.

With regard to boundary treatments officers welcome the low level wall/railings to the front
boundary and consider that this, along with the proposed areas of hard and soft
landscaping within the site would improve the overall character of the development and its
surroundings. Further details of these will be conditioned on any grant of consent.

134



The proposal would therefore be in accordance with CLLP Policy LP26 and also
paragraph 127 of the NPPF, which requires that developments should add to the overall
guality of the area and be sympathetic to local character.

Residential Amenity

The side elevation of the terrace of dwellings which front Kingsway, plots 1-3, would be
located on the side, north east boundary, with the rear gardens extending behind. Beyond
are the rear gardens of plots 4-6, sitting at a right angle, with the rear elevations of these
dwellings located 7m away from the north east boundary. Directly adjacent to this site
boundary is the strip of land, which measures approximately 3-4m wide, with the side
boundary of 12 Kingsway beyond. Officers are satisfied that the proposed dwellings would
have a sufficient separation from no. 12 to ensure that they would not appear unduly
overbearing or result in an unacceptable degree of loss of light. With regard to overlooking
the side elevation of the terrace to the front, which sits on the boundary, is blank and any
overlooking from the first floor windows in the rear elevations would be at an oblique angle
only. The first floor rear bedroom windows of plots 4-6 would face towards the rear section
of the garden of no. 12. This relationship combined with the separation at this point of
approximately 10m would ensure that any overlooking would not result in an unduly
harmful impact.

The rear, north west boundary forms the side boundaries with 15 St. Andrews Close and
38 Hope Street. The majority of the boundary with 15 St. Andrews Close, a bungalow, is
currently defined by the rear elevation of the existing warehouse. The rear elevation of the
proposed apartment block would be located approximately 6.5m from the boundary, with
the closest separation to the side elevation of no. 15 being approximately 9m. Given this,
and considering the existing relationship of the two storey warehouse on the boundary,
officers are satisfied that the proposal would not appear overbearing or result in an
unacceptable degree of loss of light. The rear facing elevation of the proposal includes first
and second floor windows. No objections have been received from the neighbouring
occupants and, on balance, officers do not consider that the impact from overlooking
would be sufficiently harmful to warrant the refusal of the application.

In terms of the relationship with 38 Hope Street the side elevation of the proposed terrace,
plots 4-6, would sit on the boundary, opposite and approximately 2.5m away from the side
elevation of this neighbouring property. The neighbour’s elevation is blank and it is
therefore not considered that the proposal would cause undue harm through the creation
of an overbearing structure or result in an unacceptable degree of loss of light. The side
elevation of the proposal is also blank so there would be no direct overlooking. There are
bedroom windows within the front elevation of the proposed dwellings, facing west,
although any overlooking from this point towards the rear garden of no. 38 would be at an
oblique angle only.

Parking spaces are proposed along part of the rear boundary with 15 St. Andrews Close
and 38 Hope Street as well as to the side boundary with the allotments. The plans indicate
a substantial boundary wall/fence to the rear boundary which will limit the potential impact
from associated vehicle movements. This will be conditioned on any grant of consent to be
installed prior to the occupation of the development. To further protect the amenities of
neighbours the City Council’s Pollution Control Officer has requested that details of the
external lighting be conditioned for approval to ensure that these are appropriately
designed to avoid glare or any off-site impacts.

135



There are no other residential properties directly abutting the site. Officers are therefore
satisfied that the amenities which neighbouring occupants and those within the wider area
may reasonably expect to enjoy would not be unduly harmed by or as a result of the
development through either loss of light, overlooking or the creation of an overbearing
structure. It is also considered that the level of amenity for future occupants of the
development would be acceptable. The proposal would therefore be in accordance with
the requirements of CLLP Policy LP26.

Access and Highways

Vehicular access to the site would be from Kingsway with separate ‘in’ and ‘out’ access
points. A total of 18 off street parking spaces are provided; four directly off Kingsway with
the remainder within the site to the north west and south west boundaries accessed via the
internal road which loops behind the apartment building.

Objections have been received from the occupants of 4, 5, 9 and 35 Kingsway, all
considering that there is insufficient parking which would result in additional on-street
parking on Kingsway. They consider that on street parking is already an issue,
exacerbated by additional cars on match days and at drop off/collection times for the
Bishop King Primary School.

The LCC as Local Highway Authority has raised no objection to the level of parking or the
access arrangements. The suggested conditions requiring the reinstatement of sections of
dropped kerbs that are no longer required to full height kerbs and the submission of a
construction management plan will be applied to any grant of consent.

Flood Risk and Drainage

The site is located within Flood Zone 2 and the application is accompanied by a Flood Risk
Assessment (FRA). The Environment Agency (EA) has considered this and has raised no
objections subject to a condition requiring the development to be constructed in
accordance with the submitted FRA.

Officers have been copied into an email from the Upper Witham Drainage Board to the
LCC in their capacity as Lead Local Flood Authority in respect of surface water drainage.
The LCC has raised no objection to the application with regard to surface water drainage
subject to conditions requiring a surface water drainage scheme to be submitted for
approval.

There is no objection from Anglian Water in terms of surface or foul water drainage subject
to a condition ensuring constructions works in accordance with the surface water strategy.

Trees

There are no trees within the site although there are four highway trees to the front. The
occupant of 5 Kingsway has raised concern that these may need to be removed for
construction to go ahead, having a negative effect on the environment.

All of the highway trees are proposed to be retained. Officers have sought the advice of
the City and County Council’s Arboricultural Officers regarding the potential impact on
these as a result of the construction phase and the necessity to adjust the position of the
existing dropped kerb. The officers have no issues with the proposals subject to conditions
requiring tree protection measures, which will duly be applied to any grant of consent.

Other Matters

136



Contaminated Land

The City Council’s Pollution Control Officer has advised that, due to past uses on and in
the vicinity of the site, there is the potential for significant contamination to be present.
Conditions have been requested which will be attached to the grant of any permission.

Comments have also been received from the EA in this respect, also noting that the
previous use of the site presents a potential risk of contamination to controlled waters. The
specific requirements of the suggested conditions will be incorporated with those
suggested above.

Air Quality and Sustainable Transport

The City Council’s Pollution Control Officer has advised that, whilst it is acknowledged that
the proposed development, when considered in isolation, may not have a significant
impact on air quality, the numerous minor and medium scale developments within the city
will have a significant cumulative impact if reasonable mitigation measures are not
adopted. Accordingly a condition will require details of charging points to be submitted for
approval and for the units to be installed before development is first occupied.

Archaeology
The City Archaeologist has recommended the standard archaeological conditions be

attached to any grant of permission to ensure that this matter is considered and dealt with
as necessary.

Bin Storage
Bins can be accommodated within the rear gardens of the proposed dwellings, with access

via the shared car park for presentation on the street. Communal bin storage for the
proposed apartments is proposed adjacent to the ‘in’ access enabling presentation directly
onto the street.

Construction

Comments have been received from the neighbouring objectors with concerns regarding
congestions and noise during construction. While issues relating to the construction phase
are not a material planning consideration the LCC as Local Highway Authority has
requested that a Construction Management Plan be conditioned. This would mitigate
against traffic generation during the construction stage, controlling aspects such as
parking of construction vehicles, storage of plant and materials and the routes of
construction traffic. The City Council’s Pollution Control Officer has also recommended a
condition restricting the hours of construction and delivery.

Deign and Crime

The Lincolnshire Police has raised no objections to the application in this respect. A
number of recommended measures have been suggested which will be forwarded to the
applicant for their information.

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

Yes. Revisions made to the front gable of the apartment building to improve the
proportions.

Financial Implications

137



None.

Legal Implications

None.

Equality Implications

None.-
Conclusion

The principle of the use of the site for residential purposes is considered to be acceptable
and the development would relate well to the site and surroundings in respect of siting,
height, scale, massing and design. The proposals would also not cause undue harm to the
amenities which occupiers of neighbouring properties may reasonably expect to enjoy. An
independently assessed viability appraisal has concluded that the development would not
be viable if it were to provide affordable housing and contributions towards playing fields
and local green infrastructure. Subject to the signing of an overage S106 officers are
satisfied that this can be managed with a requirement for such payments should the
profitability position of the development change at the time of completion. Technical
matters relating to access and parking, contamination, flood risk and trees are to the
satisfaction of the relevant consultees and can be dealt with appropriately by condition.
The proposal would therefore be in accordance with the requirements of Central
Lincolnshire Local Plan Policies LP1, LP2, LP14, LP16, LP25 and LP26, as well as
guidance within the SPD and National Planning Policy Framework.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally with delegated authority granted to the
Planning Manager to secure an overage S106 agreement and subject to the following
conditions:

Time limit of the permission

Development in accordance with approved plans
Contamination

Archaeology

Land levels

Samples of materials

Implementation of landscaping

Tree protection measures

Implementation of boundary treatments
Assessment of off-site impact of external lighting
Electric vehicle recharge points

Development in accordance with Flood Risk Assessment
Surface water drainage scheme

Reinstatement of full height kerbs

138



e Construction Management Plan (traffic generation and drainage)
e Construction of the development (delivery times and working hours)
e Windows and doors set in reveal

139



This page is intentionally blank.



18-20 Kingsway: plans and site photographs

«

St Geawea

Site location plan

141



TILAG ShEavn
TG LT

RN CRoRqyE

L F
| TRED ROPLCTIONT
]

@|
- J
o=

5 __IF

FEITING TREF TOH OF SFTAIRFD / ENISTING TREE TO 82 AFTAINFD /
- iy 8 B o o e —~—— ey ) ey of e e e
L - - e --“"'-"_--:{' ry iy
EXISTING DARMED KRS — - . A
/ CAISTING QROPPER (FRE - . = P— -ty . — J
Ay O [P ADJUSTED T SUIT ENTRANCE - X o ‘g —
5 i
; N L ) g
el KIMWNGSWAY e Sty

Proposed site layout

142




o

. . N

I EI!!E E[!E H!

PROPOSED MORTH ELEWATION TYPICAL SECTION

T
]

]
T

|
|

—

=

iy
|
=

e

C

W C=5)

-

‘ C
=AN =
N 10

— 00 ]

u:

Jr I

T [

e
PROPOSED CROUND FLOOR PLAM PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN —

PROPOSED WEST ELEWATION
(EAST ELEVATION SIMILAR HANDED)

House type 1 (plots 1-3 fronting Kingsway) floor plans and elevations

L

TYPICAL SECTION

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN —

e ——— ]
PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION

(SOUTH ELEVATION SIMILAR HANDED)

House type 2 (plots 4-6 within the site) floor plans and elevations

143



2[E
E. G

1

ub
A

1

R

|
| _
T A
4 |
ralli=
w |

Front, south elevation of apartment building

144



L

H =

— =
[ T

Side, east elevation of apartment building

-
= w = == i finteds and cita
EEEE i EEEEE te Finsh To B EEEEE fo mofch origihal ex iy

Side, west elevation of apartment building

145



nn

T

IN

Dt e s et f g kg B b e

o
L

NORTH FIFVATION -SITF VIFWFD FROM RFAR

Proposed rear elevations from St. Andrews Close and Hope Street

146



Site from Kingsway looking west

N
~
-

Site from Kingsway looking east across allotment gardens

147




Existing warehouse

Existing Cathedral Self Storage business

148



_cathedralsel

View of 15 St. Andrews Close and rear elevation of warehouse/site boundary

149



This page is intentionally blank.



18-20 Kingsway: consultation responses

Customer Details
Name: Mr Clive Crossman
Address: 35 Kingsway Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:l am concemed about this application on the following grounds;

1. Parking. Whilst there is a plan for parking for the potential residents, this is only one space per
proposed dwelling. Many families have multiple vehicles, not to mention visitors etc.. Parking on
Kingsway is cumrently tight as it is and on some occasions residents are having to park elsewhere
right now. This application opens the possibility for current residents to not be able to park on their
own street more often.

2. Congestion. With the need for construction vehicles during the development as well as the
parking being mainly 'on street' there is the high potential for congestion or even outright blocking
of the street. This is an addition to the fact that there is a primary school at the end of the street
with families of pupils using the street to drop off/collect their children as required in the
mornings/aftermoons.

3. Noise. Potentially the noise from construction potentially disturbs current residents including
people sleeping off night shifts, babies, pets etc..

4. Pollution. The application is requesting a development next to a residential allotment. Errant
construction materials and detritus could permeate the local air and soil.

Customer Details
Name: Mr Adam Titley
Address: 9 kingsway Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:| strongly believe there is no more room down this street for new houses to be built. 18
car parking spaces will not cover everyone and their guests for the new build and there are no car
parking spaces here for the current residents let alone new comers. When the football is on cars
can't even get down the street so it will be chaos adding that many more properties here. If there
are no spaces down kings way to park then there is no where else for us to leave our cars. Many
people who live down this street are elderly or have children so it would be completely unfair to
add more stress for parking down this street.

151



Customer Details
Name: Miss Louise Hughes
Address: 4 Kingsway Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:Having a school at the end of the road the amount of traffic not only during but after the
properties are built will be increased at already times when it is considered bad enough.

Parking is already bad enough for the residence with most familes having 2 cars per dwelling
these days and the school also using the spaces available building more houses/flats with not
enough spaces will force the street to be jammed packed with cars this making the street a danger
for dropping and collecting children from school and the children who live in the street to play.

Customer Details
Name: Mr Garry Trown
Address: 194 Hykeham Road, Lincoln, Lincolnshire LN6 8AR

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of the Public

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:UTILITYLINCS fully supports this application and on inspection of the submitted plans
can deliver all utility requisites to this site

152



Customer Details
Name: Mrs Maxine Grant
Address: 5 Kingsway Lincoln

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:1. Highway Safety and Congestion

The street already has a high volume of traffic along it as well as a school at the bottom of the
street. The proposal would only increase the amount of traffic and lead to blockages but also the
increased no. of cars may lead to accidents. With a school so close this is even more of a
concem.

While each of the properties has a car parking space assigned many home owners have mulitiple
cars which would have difficulty parking in an already congested street.

When building the properties the construction vehicles would also need to have space to park
which would take parking away from residents.

Football matches also increase traffic within the street and residents have difficulty parking their
cars without being dangerous obsriuctions.

2. Noise and Disturbance
In such a residential area the noise caused from construction and demolition has a high likelihood
of distrubing residents.

3. Air Pollution

Construction and increased amounts of traffic will lead to a large increase in the amount of air
poliution within the street which will have detrimental effects on health of residents and a lower
quality of life.

4_Effects on Trees
The site of the proposal has multiple trees in front of it and surrounding it which may have to be

removed for construction to go ahead. This will also have increase the air pollution and negatively
affect the atmosphere of the street.

153



LINCOLNSHIRE POLICE POLICE HEADQUARTERS

PO Box 999
S LINCOLN LNS5 7PH
Lincolnshire Fax: (01522) 558128
POLICE :
- DDl {01522) 558292
palizing with PRIDE email

johin.manuel@lincs. pnn.police.uk

Your Ref: App. 201 9%0007/FUL 13" February 2019
Our Ref:  PGH

Development & Environmental Services
City Hall, Beaumont Fee
Lincoln, LN1 1DF

FULL: 18-20 Kingsway, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN2 5JT, (14 Units)

Thank wyou for your comespondence and opportunity to comment on the proposed
development. | would request that you consider the following points that if adhered to would
help reduce the opportunity for crime and increase the safety and sustainability of the
development.

Lincolnshire Police has no formal objections to the planning application in principle but would
recommend that the initial advisory recommendations are implemented.

External doors and windows

Building Regulations (October 1% 2015) provides that for the first time all new homes will be
included within Approved Document C: Security — Dwellings (ADC).

Approved document Q applies to all new dwellings including those resulting from change of
use, such as commercial premises, warehouse and bams undergoing conversions into
dwellings. It also applies within Conservation Areas.

This will include doors at the entrance to dwellings, including all doors to flats or apariments,
communal doors to multi-occupancy developments and garage doors where there is a direct
access to the premises. Where bespoke timber doors are proposed, there is a technical
specification in Appendix B of the document that must be met.

Windows: in respect of ground floor, basement and other easily accessible locations.

The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 24.2016 (doors of an
enhanced Security) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference number for PAS 23724 2016 and is
published by Warrington Certification Laboratories).

All ground floor windows and doars and those that are easily accessible from the ground must
conform to improved security standand PAS24:2016 or equivalent approved standard.

154



External doors and windows

The secured by design requirement for all dwelling external doors is PAS 24 2016 or Bespoke
equivalent (doors of an enhanced Secunty) or WCL 1 (WCL 1 is the reference number for PAS
2324 and is published by Warrington Ceriification Laboratories).

All ground floor windows and doors and those that are easily accessible from the ground must
conform to improved security standard PAS24: 2016. All ground floor windows should have
window restrainers and effective locking systems.

Individual Flat or Unit Doors.

Flat entrance door-sets should meet the same physical requirements as the ‘main front door
lL.e. PAS24:2016. The locking hardware should be operable from both sides of an unlocked
door without the use of the key (utilising a roller atch or latch operahle from baoth sides of the
door-set by a handle). If the door-set is centified to either PASZ24:2016 or STS 201 Issue
42012 then it must be classified as DKT.

Communal Areas & Mail Delivery

‘Where communal mail delivery facilities are proposad and are to be encouraged with other
security and safety measures to reduce the need for access to the premises communal letter
bhoxes should comply to the following criteria.

+ Located at the main entrance within an internal area or lobhby {vestibule) covered by
CCTY or located within an “airfock style’ entrance hall.

Be of a robust construction {Federation Technical Specification 009 (TS009)

Have anti-fishing properties where advised and appropriate.

Installed to the manufacturers specifications.

Through wall mail delivery can be a suitable and secure method.

Under no circumstances would | recommend the use of a ‘Trade-man’s Butron' or other
form of security override,

Lighting

Lighting should be designed fo cover the external doors and be controlled by photoslectric cell
(dusk to dawn) with a manual override. The use of low consumption lamps with an efficacy of
greater than 40 lumens per circuit watt is required; it is recommended that they be positioned
to prevent possible attack.

Cycle Storage Structure (if to be included)

Generally pedestrian access doors-sets to commercial units should be certified to LPS 1175
security rating 2. The access controlled door should be designed in such a way that the hinges
and door-sets are of a non-lift nature and non-tamper proof. The door locks must be operable
vy way of a thumb screw turn to avoid any person being accidently locked in the cycle storage
area.

Lighting within cycle storage area; automatically aclivated passive infra-red lighting should be
considered rather than permaneant lighting to which other users become accustomed and
therefore activation would not draw any attention. Lighting units should be vandal resistant
energy efficient light fittings.

155



Bin Storage

External bins stores and home composting containers (supplied to meet ‘Code for Sustainable
Homes' “Was 37) should be sited and secured in such a way that they cannot be usad as a
climbing aid to commit crime.

Door Chains and viewers

A door chain must be installed on the door set that the occupier would expect to be the main
entry (front) door. A door viewer must also be fitted between 1200 mm and 1500 mm from the
bottom of the door (not required if the door set is installed with clear glazing or adjacent
windows provide a clear view of the front door entrance).

Landscaping

Any landscaping should be kKept to a maximum growth height of 1 metre. Whilst any trees
should be pruned up to a minimum height of 2 metres, thereby maintaining a clear field of
vision around the development. Trees when fully grown should not mask any lighting columns
or become climbing aids.

Inclusive to the application should he strict management conditions that ensure the
maintenance of and general good management of the estate additional to established security
of the properties.

Boundaries between public and what is private space should be clearly defined and open
accessible spaces should not allow for any unintended purpose which may cause any form of
anti-social behaviour or nuisance. | would recommend that these spaces are defined clearly
by low level (carefully considered) planting of limited growth height and maintenance
shrubbery (maximum growth height of 1m).

Utility Meters

Litility meters should be located outside the dwelling at the front or as close to the front of the
building line as possible (to ensure they are visible. If they are located at the side of the
building they must be as near to the front of the building line as possible and to the front of any
fences or gates.

| would direct and recommend that the current NPCC CPI New Homes 2016 is referred to as a
source document in the planning and design process

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you need further information or clarification.

Please refer to Commercial Guide 2013 & New Homes 2016 which can be located on
woww securedbydesign.com

Crime prevention advice is given free without the intention of creating a contract. Meither the
Home Office nor the Police Service takes any legal responsibility for the advice given.
However, if the advice is implemented it will reduce the opportunity for crimes to be committed.

Yours sincerely,

John Manuel ma Ba (Hons) PGCE PGCPR Dip Bus.
Force Designing Out Crime Officer (DOCO)

156



Environment

il

A Agency
FAQ: Paul Thompson our ref; ANR019M128690/01-L01
City of Lincoln Council Your ref; 20190007/FUL
Development Control
City Hall Beaumaont Fee Date: 27 February 2019
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LM1 1DF
Dear Paul

Erection of 6no. two bedroom dwellinghouses and a 3-storey building to
provide Bno. two bedroom apartments and 4no. one bedroom apartments.
Associated external works including provision of 18no. car parking spaces.
18-20 Kingsway Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8EU

Thank you for referring the above application on 12 February 2019,

We have no objections to the proposed development, as submitted, subject to the
impasition of the following condition on any subsequent planning permission granted:

Condition
The development shall be camied out in accordance with the submitted flood risk
assessment (ref: RLC/0345/FRADT) dated February 2019 and the following
mitigation measures it details:
= Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 6 metres above Ordnance
Datum (AQD)

These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and
subsequently in accordance with the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements. The
measures detailed above shall be retained and maintained thereafter throughout the
lifetime of the development.

Reason
To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants.

As you are aware the discharge and enforcement of planning conditions rests with
your authority. It is, therefore, essential that you are safisfied that the proposed draft
condition meets the requirements of paragraph 4 of the National Planning Practice

Environment sgency

Mene House [Pyichiey Lodge Industral Estate),
Pyichiey Lodge Road, Kettardng, Morthants, NN15 6JQ
Emall: LMplanninggDervimnment-agency. gov.uk
WwWw_gov. ukisnvironment-agency

Customer sanices Mne; 03708 508 500
Cails fo 0F numbers cos! the same &5 Cals io siandary

geographic NUMbETS (Le. NUMBES haginning with 01 or 02).

157



Guidance (MPPG) (Use of Planning Conditions, section 2). Please notify us
immediately if you are unable to apply our suggested condition, as we may nead to
tailor our advice accordingly.

In accordance with the NPPG (Determining a planning application, paragraph 019),
please notify us by email within 2 weeks of a decision being made or an application
being withdrawn. Please provide us with either a link to, or, a copy of the decision
notice.

Please consult us on the details submitted to your authority to discharge this
condition and on any subsequent amendments/alterations.

Should you require any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters
further, please do not hesitate to contact me on the number below.

Yours sincerely

Keri Monger
Sustainable Places - Planning Adviser

Direct dial 020 847 48545
Direct e-mail ker.monger@environment-aqency gov.uk

158



Environment

W Agency
FAQ: Paul Thompson our ref: ANR019/M128690/02-L01
City of Lincoln Council Your ref; 2019/0007/FUL
Development Control
City Hall Beaumont Fee Date: 21 March 2019
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN1 1DF
Dear Paul

Erection of 6no. two bedroom dwellinghouses and a 3-storey building to provide
&no. two bedroom apartments and 4no. one bedroom apartiments. Associated
external works including provision of 18no. car parking spaces.

18-20 Kingsway Lincoln Lincolnshire LN5 8EL

Thank you for your email on 28 February 2019. We have the following additional
comments to make further to our original response (ref: AN/2019M128690/01-L01) dated
27 February 2019,

It is our understanding that the previous use of the proposed development site presents
a potential risk of contamination that could be mobilised during construction to poliute
controlled waters. Controlled waters are particularly sensitive in this location because
the proposed development site is located upon a Secondary A aquifer.

We consider that it will be possible to suitably manage the risk posed to controlled
waters by this development. Further detailed information will however be required
before built development is undertaken. It is our opinion that it would place an
unreasonable hurden on the developer to ask for more detailed information prior to the
granting of planning permission but respect that this is a decision for the local planning
authority.

In light of the above, the proposed development will be acceptable if a planning
condition is included requiring the submission of a remediation strategy, carried out by a
competent person in line with paragraph 178 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF).

Without these additional conditions we would object to the proposal in line with
paragraph 170 of the NPPF because it cannot be guaranteed that the development will
not be put at unacceptable risk from, or be adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of

Environment Agency
Customer sarices ine: 03708 508 506
Mena House (Pytcniey Locge Indusinal Sstate], Cails fo 03 numbers cost the same a5 calls o standsnd

WE m"m HDBG.H nﬁgﬂ%ﬂﬂmﬂﬁ 64Q geographic numbers (T.e. nimiers beginning with 07 or 02).

159



Condition 2
Mo development approved by this planning permission shall commence until a
remediation strategy to deal with the risks associated with contamination of the site has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. This strategy
will include the following components:
1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:

+ all previous uses;

+ potential contaminants associated with those uses;

+ a4 conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors; and

+ potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.
2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.
3. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred o in
(2)and, hased on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details
of the remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken.
4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are complete and
identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.

Any changes fo these components require the written consent of the local planning
autharity. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

Reason

To ensure that the development does not contribute to, oris not put at unacceptahle risk
from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution in line with
paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

Notes on condition 2 (above)

We consider that the first phase in assessing the potential risks to controlled waters
from the site should be a preliminary risk assessment.

We recommend that developers should:

1. Follow the risk management framework provided in CLR11, Model Procedures
for the Management of Land Contamination, when dealing with land affected by
contamination.

2. Refer to the Environment Agency Guiding principles for land contamination for
the type of information that we required in order to assess risks to controlled
waters from the site. The Local Authority can advise on risk to other receptors,
such as human heatlth.

3. Consider using the National Quality Mark Scheme for Land Contamination
Management which involves the use of competent persons o ensure that land
contamination risks are appropriately managed.

4. Refer to the contaminated land pages on GOW.UK for more information.

Contfd.. 2

160



Condition 3

Prior to any part of the permitted development being occupied a verification report
demonstrating the completion of works set out in the approved remediation strategy and
the effectiveness of the remediation shall he submitted to, and approved in writing, by
the local planning authority. The report shall include results of sampling and monitonng
carried out in accordance with the approved verification plan to demonstrate that the
site remediation criteria have been met.

Reason

To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to human health or the water
environment by demonstrating that the requirements of the approved verification plan
have been met and that remediation of the site is complete. This is in line with
paragraph 170 of the NPPF.

Condition 4

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at
the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local
planning authority) shall be carried out until a remediation strategy detailing how this
contamination will he dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved.

Reason

To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at unacceptable risk
from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution from previously
unidentified contamination sources at the development site in line with paragraph 170 of
the NFPF.

Condition 5

Mo infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than with the
written consent of the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To ensure that the development does not contribute to, or is not put at unacceptable nisk
from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution caused by
mobilised contaminants in line with paragraph 170 of the NPPF.

Motes on condition 5 (above)

Further detailed information should be provided on the potential for contamination to be
present at the site to demonstrate whether the use of infiltration SuDS is appropriate in
this location. Infiltration systems, such as soakaways, should not be installed in ground
that is potentially contaminated as they may increase the potential for contaminant
migration.

"t g

161



As you are aware the discharge and enforcement of planning conditions rests with your
authority. It is, therefore, essential that you are satisfied that the proposed draft
conditions meet the requirements of paragraph 4 of the Mational Planning Practice
Guidance (NPPG) (Use of Planning Conditions, section 2). Please notify us immediately
if you are unable to apply our suggested conditions, as we may need to tailor our advice
accordingly.

In accordance with the NPPG (Determining a planning application, paragraph 019),
please naotify us by email within 2 weeks of a decision being made or an application
being withdrawn. Please provide us with either a link to, or, a copy of the decision
notice.

Please consult us on the details submitted to your authority to discharge this condition
and on any subsequent amendmentsfalierations.

Should you require any additional information, or wish to discuss these matters further,
please do not hesitate to contact me on the number below.

Yours sincerely

Keri Monger
Sustainable Places - Planning Adviser

Good afternoon,

At this point in time NHS England will not be submitting a section 106 request for funding relating to the 18 dwellings at Lincoln. However NHS England will
continue to monitor developments in the area and assess their effect on the provision of health care services. Should the cumulative effect of developments in
this area put pressures on healthcare resources, NHS England will likely request funding from future developments.

Kind regards,

NHS England

MNHS England — Midlands and East (Central Midlands)

Cross O'Cliff

Bracebridge Heath

Lincoln
LN4 2HN

Hi Paul

My apologies for the late hour - as discussed earlier, | can confirm that there is no education request from the below application
as there is sufficient primary capacity in the locality for the 3 primary age children generated by the scheme

Kind regards

Simon

Simon Challis

Strategic Development Officer

Corporate Property

Lincolnshire County Council | County Offices | Mewland | Lincoln | LN1 1YL

162



FD-4527-2013-PLN

Dear Sirf/Madam

REFERENCE: 2019/0007/FUL

DEVELOPMENT: ERECTION OF 6NO. TWO BEDROOM DWELLINGHOUSES AND A 3-5TOREY BUILDING TO PROVIDE 8NO. TWO
BEDROOM APARTMENTS AND 4MO. ONE BEDROOM APARTMENTS. ASSOCIATED EXTERNAL WORKS INCLUDING PROVISION OF
18N0. CAR PARKING SPACES

LOCATION: 18-20 KINGSWAY, LINCOLN, LINCOLMNSHIRE, LNS S8EU

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above application. The site is within the Witham First District Internal
Drainage Board area.

The site is in Zone 2 on the Environment Agency Flood Maps and potentially at flood risk. It is noted a Flood Risk Assessment is
included in the Application that contains appropriate mitigation, including a propased FFL of 6.0m.

Comment and information to Lincolnshire CC Highway SUDs Support
No development should be commenced until the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the Lead Local Flood Authority
has approved a scheme for the provision, implermentation and future maintenance of a surface water drainage system. The
submitted Flood Risk Assessment does not identify the existing surface water drainage and discharge point.
. If soakaways are proposed the suitability of new soakaways, as a means of surface water disposal, should be to an
appropriate standard and to the satisfaction of the Approving Autharity in conjunction with the Local Planning
Authority. If the suitability is not proven the Applicant should be requested to re-submit amended proposals
showing how the Site is to be drained. Should this be necessary this Board would wish to be reconsulted,
. Where Surface Water is to be directed into a Mains Sewer System the relevant bodies must be contacted to ensure
the system has sufficient capacity to accept any additional Surface Water.

All drainage routes through the Site should be maintained both during the works on Site and after completion of the works.
Provisions should be made to ensure that upstream and downstream riparian owners and those areas that are presently served
by any drainage routes passing through or adjacent to the Site are not adversely affected by the development.

Drainage routes shall include all methods by which water may be transferred through the Site and shall include such systems as
“ridge and furrow" and “overland flows", The effect of raising Site levels on adjacent property must be carefully considered and
measures taken to negate influences must be approved by the Local Planning Authority.

It is noted that the proposed FFLs are higher than the existing ground levels.

Regards

Guy Hird
Engineering Services Officer

Witham First District Internal Drainage Board
Witham Third District Internal Drainage Board
Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board

Morth East Lindsey Drainage Board

J1 The Point,

Weaver Road,

LINCOLN,

163



love evexy) drop
anglianwater o

Planning Applications — Suggested Informative Statements and
Conditions Report

If you would like to discuss any of the points in this document please
contact us on 03456 066087, Option 1 or email

planninglisison@anglianwater.co.uk,

AW Site 144379/1/0052508

Reference:

Local Lincoln District (B)

Planning

Authority:

Site: 18-20 Kingsway Lincoln Lincolnshire LNS

8EU

Proposal: Erection of Gno. two bedroom
dwellinghouses and a 3-storey building to
provide 8no. two bedroom apartments and
4no. one bedroom apartments. Associated
external works including provision of 18no.
car parking spaces. | 18-20 Kingsway
Lincoln Lincolnshi

Planning 2019/0007/FUL
application:

Prepared by: Pre-Development Team
Date: 15 March 2019

ASSETS

Section 1 - Assets Affected

Our records show that there are no assets owned by Anglian Water or those subject to an adoption agreement
within the development site boundary.

WASTEWATER SERVICES

Section 2 - Wastewater Treatment

The foul drainage from this development is in the catchment of Canwick Water Recycling Centre that will have
available capacity for these flows

164



Section 3 - Used Water Network

The sewerage system at present has available capacity for these flows. If the developer wishes to connect to our
sewerage network they should serve notice under Section 106 of the Water Industry Act 1991. We will then advise
them of the most suitable point of connection. (1) INFORMATIVE - Notification of intention to connect to the public
sewer under 5106 of the Water Industry Act Approval and consent will be required by Anglian Water, under the
Water Industry Act 1991. Contact Development Services Team 0345 606 6087. (2) INFORMATIVE - Notification of
intention to connect to the public sewer under S106 of the Water Industry Act Approval and consent will be required
by Anglian Water, under the Water Industry Act 1991. Contact Development Services Team 0345 606 B087. (3)
INFORMATNE - Protection of existing assets - A public sewer is shown on record plans within the land identified for
the proposed development. It appears that development proposals will affect exdsting public sewers. It is
recommended that the applicant contacts Anglian Water Development Services Team for further advice on this
matter. Building over exsting public sewers will not be permitted (without agreement) from Anglian Water. (4)
INFORMATIE - Building near to a public sewer - No building will be permitted within the statutory easement width of
3 metres from the pipeline without agreement from Anglian Water. Please contact Development Services Team on
0345 606 6087. (5) INFORMATVE: The developer should note that the site drainage details submitted have not
been approved for the purposes of adoption. If the developer wishes to have the sewers included in a sewer
adoption agreement with Anglian Water (under Sections 104 of the Water Industry Act 1991), they should contact
our Development Services Team on 0345 606 6087 at the earliest opportunity. Sewers intended for adoption
should be designed and constructed in accordance with Sewers for Adoption guide for developers, as
supplemented by Anglian Water's requirements.

Section 4 - Surface Water Disposal

The preferred method of surface water disposal would be to a sustainable drainage systemn (SuDS) with connection
to sewer seen as the last option. Building Regulations (part H) on Drainage and Waste Disposal for England
includes a surface water drainage hierarchy, with infiltration on site as the preferred disposal option, followed by
discharge to watercourse and then connection to a sewer.

4.2 The surface water strategy/flood risk assessment submitted with the planning application relevant to Anglian
Water is acceptable. We request that the agreed strategy is reflected in the planning approval

Section 5 - Suggested Planning Conditions

Anglian Water would therefore recommend the following planning condition if the Local Planning Authority is mindful
to grant planning approval.

Surface Water Disposal (Section 4)

COMNDITION Mo hard-standing areas to be constructed until the works have been carried out in accordance with the
surface water strategy so approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. REASON To
prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding.

165



FOR THE ATTENTION OF THE APPLICANT - if Section 3 or Section 4 condition has
been recommended above, please see below information:

Next steps

Desktop analysis has suggested that the proposed development will lead to an unacceptable risk of flooding
downstream. We therefore highly recommend that you engage with Anglian Water at your earliest convenience to
develop in consultation with us a feasible drainage strategy.

If you have not done so already, we recommend that you submit a Pre-planning enquiry with our Pre-Development
team. This can be completed online at our website hitp:/fwww.anglianwater.co.uk/developers/pre-development.aspx

Once submitted, we will work with you in developing a feasible mitigation solution.

If a foul or surface water condition is applied by the Local Planning Authority to the Decision MNotice, we will require a
copy of the following information prior to recommending discharging the condition:

Foul water:

+ Feasible drainage strategy agreed with Anglian Water detailing the discharge solution including:
» Development size

= Proposed discharge rate (Should you require a pumped connection, please note that our minimum pumped
discharge rate is 3.81's)

= Connecting manhole discharge location (No connections can be made into a public rising main)

« Motification of intention to connect to the public sewer under S106 of the Water Industry Act (More information
can be found on our website)

+ Feasible mitigation strategy in agreement with Anglian Water (if required)

Surface water:

+ Feasible drainage strategy agreed with Anglian Water detailing the discharge solution, including:
» Development hectare size

= Proposed discharge rate (Our minimum discharge rate is 5l's. The applicant can verify the site's existing 1in 1
year greenfield run off rate on the following HR Wallingford website -htip:/iwew uksuds com/drainage-
calculation-tools/greenfield-runoff-rate-estimation . For Brownfield sites being demolished, the site should be
treated as Greenfield. Where this is not practical Anglian Water would assess the roof area of the former
development site and subject to capacity, permit the 1 in 1 year calculated rate)

= Connecting manhole discharge location

» Sufficient evidence to prove that all surface water disposal routes have been explored as detailed in the surface
water hierarchy, stipulated in Building Regulations Part H (OQur Surface Water Policy can be found on our

website)

166



Lincolnshire:

Place Directorate COUNTY COLNCIL
Lancaster House
36 Orchard Street

Lincoln LNT 1xX
Tel: (01522) 732070
E-Mail: highwayssudssupportifllincolnshire. gov.uk

To:  Lincoln City Council Application Ref:  2019/0007/FUL

With reference fo this application dated & February 2019 relating to the following
proposed development:

Address or location
18-20 Kingsway, Lincoln, Lincolnshire, LN5 8EU

Date application refemed by the LPA Type of application: Outline/Full/RM/:
12 February 2019 FUL

Description of development

Erection of 6no. two bedroom dwellinghouses and a 3-storey building to
provide 8no. two bedroom apartments and 4no. one bedroom apartments.
Associated external works including provision of 18no. car parking spaces

Motice is hereby given that the County Council as Local Highway and Lead Local
Flood Authonty:

Requests that any permission given by the Local Planning
Authority shall include the conditions below.

CONDITIONS (INCLUDING REASONS)

HI04

The road senving the pemitted development is approved as a private road which will not be
adopted as a Highway Maintainable at the Public Expense (under the Highways Act 1980).
As such, the liahility for the future maintenance of the road will rest with those whao gain
access to their property from it

HIioa

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team on 01522
782070 to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works which will
he required within the public highway in association with the development permitted under
this Consent. This will enable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the coordination and
timings of these works.

HPFOO

Within seven days of first cccupation, the existing sections of dropped kerb onto Kingsway
that are no longer required for vehicular access (betweesn parking space "18" and each
respective access point) shall be refumed to footway construction with full height kerbs in

167



accordance with a scheme fo be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To remove vehicle access points in the public highway that are not required and
no longer serve their intended use.

HPO1

Mo development shall take place until a Construction Management Plan and Method
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
which shall indicate measures to mitigate against fraffic generation and drainage of the site
during the construction stage of the proposed development.

The Construction Management Plan and Method Statement shall include;

the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

loading and unloading of plant and materials;

storage of plant and maternials used in constructing the development;

wheel washing facilities and;

strategy stating how surface water run off on and from the development will be
managed during construction, including drawing(s) showing how the drainage systems
(permanent or temporary) connect to an outfall (tempaorary or permanent) during
construction.

The Construction Management Plan and Method Statement shall be strictly adhered to
throughout the construction period.

Reason: To ensure that the pemitted development is adequately drained without creating
or increasing flood rsk to land or property adjacent to, or downstream of, the permitted
development during construction and to ensure that suitable traffic routes are agreed.

HP33

The pemitted development shall be undertaken in accordance with a surface water
drainage scheme which shall first have been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

The scheme shall:

* be based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and
hydrogeclogical context of the development;

« provide details of how run-off will be safely conveyed and attenuated dunng storms up o

and including the 1 in 100 year crfical storm event, with an allowance for climate change,

fram all hard surfaced areas within the development into the existing local drainage
infrastruciure and watercourse system without exceeding the run-off rate for the
undeveloped site;

+ provide attenuation details and discharge rates which shall be restricted to 5 litres per

second, including discharge agreement's with the accepting body,

+ provide details of the timetable for and any phasing of implementation for the drainage

scheme; and

+ provide details of how the scheme shall be maintained and managed over the lifetime of

the development, including any arrangements for adoption by any public body or Statutory
Undertaker and any other arrangements required to secure the operation of the drainage

system throughout its lifetime.

Mo dwelling shall be occupied until the approved scheme has been completed or provided
on the site in accordance with the approved phasing. The approved scheme shall be
retained and maintained in full, in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the pemitted development is adequately drained without creating

or increasing fiood sk to land or propey adjacent to, or downstream of, the permitted
development.

Case Officer: Date: 17 April 2019
RBecky Melfuish

for Warmren Peppard
Flood Risk & Development Manager

168



[tem No. 4e

Application Number: | 2019/0608/FUL

Site Address: NCP Car Park, Motherby Lane, Lincoln

Target Date: 27th September 2019

Agent Name: Stripe Consulting

Applicant Name: Mr Tom Collins

Proposal: Installation of 2no. pole-mounted ANPR cameras
(Retrospective)

Background - Site Location and Description

The application seeks approval retrospectively for two pole mounted ANPR cameras sited
within a car park operated by NCP located on the south side of Motherby Lane.

An accompanying application has been received for advertisements at the site and is
being considered under application 2019/0609/ADV.

The site is located within the Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area No. 1.

The application is brought before Planning Committee, as the application has received 5
objections and a petition.

Site History

Reference: Description Status Decision Date:

2019/0609/ADV Display of 7no. wall | Pending Decision
mounted signs and 8no.
pole mounted signs
(Part-retrospective).

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 26th September 2019.

Policies Referred to

e Policy LP25: The Historic Environment
e Policy LP26: Design and Amenity

Issues
Impact on visual amenity and the character and appearance of the conservation area.

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted May 2014.

169




Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment

Highways & Planning Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address

Councillor Lucinda Preston

Jason Lord-Castle 6 West Parade
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN1 1JT

Jacqui Richardson 12 Motherby Lane
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1EX

Miss Susan Taylor 14 Hungate
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN1 1ES

Mrs J.L Tonner 41 And A Half
Hungate
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LN1 1ES

Consideration

National and Local Planning Policy

Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan 'Design and Amenity' is permissive of
alterations to existing buildings provided the siting, height, scale, massing and form relate
well to the site and surroundings, and duly reflect or improve on the original architectural
style of the local surroundings; and use appropriate high quality materials, which reinforce
or enhance local distinctiveness, with consideration given to texture, colour, pattern and
durability. In relation to both construction and life of the development, the amenities which
all existing and future occupants of neighbouring land and buildings may reasonably
expect to enjoy must not be unduly harmed by or as a result of development.

Impact on Visual Amenity

The ANPR cameras are positioned within the site to monitor vehicles entering and leaving
via the West Parade and Motherby Lane accesses. There have been 5 objections received
to the application which raise issues of loss of privacy from the cameras but mainly related
to the amount of adverts on the site and other issues such lighting which do not form part
of this application. There are concerns from the objectors about the quantity and size of
the signage. The adverts are being considered separately and have been reduced through

170




officer negotiation.

A petition has been submitted against the proposal requesting delay in determination of
this application until lighting has been considered on the site. There are wall mounted
lights within the car park which have been assessed and do not require planning
permission as they are not development. These matters cannot therefore be considered as
part of this application. In any case, Environmental Health Officers are pursuing the matter
through their regulations and alterations to the lights to reduce their glare into neighbouring
gardens are ongoing.

It is considered that the two cameras which are directed down to capture vehicle activity,
are not unreasonable within the car park. They are considered to be minor additions,
positioned within the site which do not detract from or harm to character and appearance
of the Conservation Area and are therefore in accordance with Policy LP 25 and 26 of the
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan. Equally the cameras do not have any effect on the privacy
of adjacent residents.

Impact on Highway Safety

The proposed signs would not be hazardous to pedestrians or road users. Lincolnshire
County Council (as Highway Authority) has concluded that the proposed development is
acceptable and, accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning application.

Application Negotiated either at Pre-Application or During Process of Application

Yes - officer advice given at pre application stage.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

Equality Implications

None.

Conclusion

The pole mounted ANPR cameras are minor additions within the car park and do not
unduly impact on the overall character and appearance of the Conservation Area in

accordance with Policy LP26 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

1. That the petition be received.

171



2. That the application is granted.

172



Site Plan

173



OTHERBY LANE

Revised signage scheme

174



| The CCTV Camera on Motherby Lane |

Camera Positions

175



Existing signage (sign on the right to be removed)

176



St

West parade entrance signs (welcome sign to be removed and other sign to be
positioned further into the site)

177



Pole mounted signs which would be altered to wall mounted

178



179



180



wor Motherby Lane: Car Park.
Terms & Conditions 3pP1Y
ﬁ when parking With US

Entry sign at Motherby Lane entrance to be relocated further into the site

181



182



Councillor Lucinda Preston Not Available (Objects)
Comment submitted date: Thu 29 Aug 2019

There are a number of issues with the above retrospective planning applications with
regard to the unnecessary number of signs and obtrusive nature of both the signage and
the cameras. However, at this stage | specifically draw your attention to the problems
with the lighting erected in the car park.

Firstly, there are too many lights for what is a small car park. Whilst safety is important,
given the size of the space, it is unnecessary to have so many lights. Secondly, the
lights are far too bright and are incredibly obtrusive, thus having a detrimental impact on
the quality of life of residents living on Motherby Lane. Many residents now find that
back bedrooms are not suitable for sleep and that ground level rooms at the back of the
properties are constantly flooded with light pollution, causing them to be less relaxing
spaces and creating issues regarding privacy. A council officer has himself observed
that the level of light emitted is above the level that would be expected for a residential
property. The use of masking tape over lights by the operating company has done little
to lessen the harsh glare.

As a result of these issues, | am supporting the residents of Motherby Lane in asking
that the above applications are delayed until the lighting issues are addressed. Like the
residents, | am surprised that lighting is not part of these planning applications. This is a
residential area and also part of a conservation area and therefore lighting should surely
be part of any planning application.

Mrs J.L Tonner 41 And A Half Hungate Lincoln Lincolnshire LN1 1ES
(Objects)

Comment submitted date: Tue 27 Aug 2019

To whom it may concern,

Firstly I am unhappy and concerned that Planning permission is being applied for
retrespectively for something that is a fete accompli as clearly they must have been
aware they needed to seek planning permission and once again it shows a complete
disregard and lack of respect for the planning process.

The planning permission makes no mention of the excessive lighting, and | am not sure
if the owner or the council are aware of the depth of bad feeling and distress to the
residents caused by it.Having spoken to the owner of the properties situated between
the Tap and Spile and the Samaritans building,they have had to install black out blinds
to 2 of their properties due to glare coming into their tennants bedrooms.In most of the
houses down Hungate the bedrooms are situated at rear of property adjacent to the car
park. You can clearly see several of the properties on West Parade have had to do the
same.When | first walked round in the middle of the night the light intensity was akin to a
football stadium.Do not forget the houses on Motherby Lane whose back rooms
overlook the car park.Looking at the photos you see just how large these lights are and
how many. There is one light for every alternate space on the south wall.The lights were
never suitable to be fitted to a car park with residental properties on all sides.They have
now dampened some of the lights on the south wall.less lights and much smaller should
have been used in the first place.

183



I would also like to point out that the lights are set to turn on during daylight and are still
on at 6.20 am when | leave for work, at both times it is just as bright as mid day and a
complete waste of energy.

Signage - The Large NCP sign situated at the Motherby lane exit but clearly visible from
the Hungate end of Motherby Lane is enticing motorists to disregard the No entry signs
and drive the wrong way down Motherby lane to access what they believe to be the car
park entrance. | have spoken to four drivers within the last week.

Two blatently didn't care and were intent to take the shortest route regardless of
breaking the law.The car park entrance is also a hazard to pedestrians it seems to draw
the attention of the drivers to the left, watching for oncoming traffic. They then pull out
straight onto the pavement with disregard for pedestrians.The exit is dangerous.

Once again the use of 15 wall and pole mounted signs is excessive and disproportionate
to what is required. This is still a conservation area.
I am not directly affected by some of the issues in this Car Park ie lighting but please

note we are a Community in this area and | have witnessed the distress and potential
dangers changes to this car park have caused.

184



ENTRANCE OFF WJEST PARADE

HAD TO (TIBTE AS LIGHT SO
BRICHT FIRST PHOTO LOOKED
TOTALLY OVER EXPOSED AND
UNABRLE TO SEE INDIViIODLAL
LIGHTS. IMUCH BRICHTER

THAN PHOTO SHOWS

185



G177 oF LIGHTS

186



HeUSES ON LWWEST PARADE

L.

187



188



» Please

o K aloe Y

i el
- a_.q:.mﬁu_ 5
¢

BEWARF

189



Miss Susan Taylor 14 Hungate Lincoln Lincolnshire LN1 1ES (Objects)
Comment submitted date: Tue 20 Aug 2019

I am objecting to the erection of the camera at position 6c.

which is positioned very close to the back wall of my property and is highly visible.

It is very unsightly and, although the actual camera is at present facing towards the car park, it
does give an uneasy feeling of being constantly watched and is spoiling the enjoyment of sitting
out in the garden.

While I realise there is a need for these cameras, surely the camera could be better positioned
perhaps next to a high wall so it is not so obtrusive in a residents garden?

Jason Lord-Castle 6 West Parade Lincoln Lincolnshire LN1 1JT (Objects)
Comment submitted date: Fri 09 Aug 2019

Dear Sir/Madame,

With regards to my previous email | should have said signage rather than camera placement.
Many thanks,

Jason

Comment submitted date: Fri 09 Aug 2019

Dear Sir/Madame,

I received the above application notice this morning.

Whereas | have no objection to the installation of said camera (1&8) at the entrance next to my
restaurant | do object to its positioning for the reasons stated below.

1.it would be directly in front of or in view from my side window which is extremely unsightly.
2. It would block any maintenance work | would need to carry out on my gas line and gas meter.
3. It would block any maintenance work on my waste pipe.

I would suggest the positioning be further down at the far rear of the property so not to be near
any window or much needed access to facilities.

I look forward to hearing from you,
Jason Lord-Castle

Kine
6 West Parade

190



2. %. (S

Teese ot m 96:9&15—&5,, A= e Plraniing
wpprcati=N Jov NP Cal fane  NMihetks o -
o ré&/%rm,an a(ppau;m At Sl (=caNZA

Poape sz S a‘g‘it’t . lowr fr_d_‘?.o{ﬁ/obog/.(:““

TTne Ceormeles |

e
Tacs sk 3 fefal 5urw\¢a¢4,,%j prvat (jafotens
Oad Cacnelms ole Nk Sufzdle oy Seeetia Site .
T‘“‘j oves \cet aafcﬁmd (ot &S fmollon
remm,rtﬁj e ft—sa—ju( nat-re <} famze g dens
Whe oo &  Cou o —~te/2 e fitg [t~ carn=st Jece
Chratral . gpPace = a¥wilakle a-d barcfers

Ll ANt G\@M’bld— h\f‘eﬂqju Ol SUinhof nvt

e A Czma~eH

TTee N\Lq’l,\q/bo loee. S —~bmnce f3 beagr Gt i AT, B
e plan. Tt OlE o (egrde T SPecwens
at brio eatrAce
Tha Beoe revt o Mobuerlor, lams bhao NP hears
Tre o< T 3 pemefR sgtees '5)4/>«:;r-171 S eo!

a land (== AT T womed by o WL Te Ve,
NP  [hede ne P?jw AZ C_,pf‘ug.;‘é MU ne T Caner
ay  drese bhds \wvoadol contrAdcar e P=f=
Pretcctiom At ?

Tlhart 3 ne’ Reicdence By pSbwot- o bd:j (€ resdelad .
(A» T &Mr o aumber Plate Jlj o Tre Camecas
5o bo@b\? 'Tuj ave Sk  neeRed ao N anplogReS
(ore o go ate Pe Gre . NP bwost asT

f‘¢w\7,bfu ot Tty e G A e CFrite fuakiSe

191



| alee. Al is e i?tar—z, ke onsuce T~ less
acions ba Hrco Mc,\:am\t.q o/e wulivl|l<d, Tvis hoa R

124&- o e YFQ/‘\J;_ ,,f,—na/_éa(}m,w%r’ Qo mmes/xs

Tte 5{3@&34 — S - R

S —’2_‘:" e Eod,eé _d\a:j__v,,,,w e  Sheow heows f"\wq bf—lcure Ond
~ ‘_/ ey
L Cann-eC -ea,‘_-sn\ﬁ Pra ;fj "\% = o Stz !,—,NL‘)L:, B

_@;Ce,f A NATA Nece o v esirsted Ve o

= M =zahas V‘\-%’f’, i - S R S
Jee  No.—7 & 9 At e 2 AftNEnce S &Weﬁi

lao las cauwsfed Corss o 9> fra V—’Kioj,, Ve ST
\J W:J

- b A e i3 (Ocel Les puse ad:_iL ,Pja;s_Lﬁ\‘S?—x. e
!Ajﬁ»%m  bhatas a fe be mmwmvesl i+ dSboidel

’6{ = AL (/Lmo,yv,\_kaf _Nof Den e PAQA‘ e =

A WAk rhas  leo bnecbkodg Sose atf e .
St=ta =3 ~Ne . ). Mol«z—fbj Loeng ea—= plantex

e du-J S . N=mbe  ®ea A= Mppore

. L de  ComSaled te pe@ca as s pPachs

; I - %QAQAH_\__QA_ : ,,Mﬁ, — S F
I ... o | fMewe o e ok(:-aP, et o boilard s

Mﬁ%/‘,__.,k (ae&,\&mw) it S~t 35 Ae
C adoismar  weseus he Table @9 Cal Coae

St oufox:) Conbs he Pavseant od o |
Timvre WWere Mo  arcideats wdh bra cmun Prede

bt oa NRCP A [N E i ,/79,’5'&@, Sﬁ:—fsa_/ o
W o Weet=s & ]" e vk ben, (@ennsis

192



193



¥ . J‘\t:% . o - - , .

i+ 1?9(950(: ,I,}o\Kg/L,,Ma-t' U\‘jkfﬂ:j s ast Gaxicloeof

: :t§\/ - ,P,l&f\,,bf;,ﬁﬁ }’%(—3 xS ’T'OL A LRSS ﬁﬁ—’\ e

ol lbewve  pnafes 3ee~  gercin t,‘év\;\—s I = Cin -
?cu\&- ’po-{n—ft - Temie.  oude. & (13(5137, e j&fuk\/j,

_cafl Jre o - foe lyteht O~=l (o~
S S S S
pot- o Ffe feps N Re  fesTRas 4 L. -
WRee  nEF do | bﬁj _H) prerer Pwse

e D e P/aw& _prate Adewt. Srasa e
l':—_a!_-_e St  |eeAlooum~ N Tohaks=A3 Gl ST emar=

oot e ?"j lpackect ewrtmris  Ner ocwce

e N buow«-s, o L i brmad o j
at™ G S0 . WUsuall Pert amr ne CAR o

Can pone ab Az 4

v 2o ~Jeos  we (/)a_—,—( L(@IA“I‘ T f’s@,ﬂf@&

W = o
- Trafe W= WY =S ar~h —svuad bebha oA~ -
Ao Pra ,,WSOOU %/‘ Srre (obbiB SO
Cai L, Weil bewt Sea. & e wie s %
Car  pent = boiied ol wlE j_,\p(-:}

Q <rCin. ha,\t\_j 27 /gud'r\? ,‘A e (ﬁ(d} )
i *)Lqu (ke Wt oc bcf:j",ho\(ﬁd—ee( e

a W.ao-_s\—emj \7 i J Fra YL -
M oese (xju:!:s e \A@omﬁ j aLr- a T

°7 (S OWVN- Y DR - SO a@,mcd L 77&;3 7‘-\’\/44 e
O\'L\h: - B=acled v = J’U\&lj,,, T s . /’" ;3 A
ANz sed - T"V—;& = :)(427 ot et ‘5¢_“ efRe

 Jer & (:s?gz,c/\’f@ﬁ,gm aca . 7[«:7 rmhee. T Pleg Kea
AMlcatoz— '

194



__E E2 W Ps:}w{-—?o-,_,

Otrce o._a—aM_N h=2o Ca- Ptz nst (Y3 \vxobsrel_a_.,( S
7‘4/ F‘I‘A;’)* 4«:7 7:t‘fl/ e Ca Pe‘-’,\,,,t—: . . R

 Tere et addifSerel Spues o DT

- a@ﬂé Cotrc— L le Cotacedl muve o et =

Covs  n  Stetn oo Cmatinad SPoce | hee TdlGg

e Speti. _pPlrert callo  adt adeto v/~
e M= ale jrebinisln. Ms«@:ﬁrs, —_—

1l A & A dnorhk Ve ~ ey ,@iﬁfg»&n‘&@gw

—gj = “@‘b‘:i} 2o Cals el 77/\-_‘34_) B
 Cean Pl i a 5!&.9&:\77'1/43_ Ree

—

L To  teeedvale an P RN v ouces bove
B limso & Mona-bolote orfopaance —“Euscdo
| bre /esndocta fres /-5» i P (Qa,aé.a(:,,,,, s
. Paat fracm fl‘y\m MM,L&
Ju.ju/ga vt \o_\}m (E DI VY S
ress Weet o sesven s seq:‘xjfz»q-zm B

195



— ST WA Sctmet

___/J’_Lfﬁf_rqm%;{ae 5 WEST faraps
| RTVRs [RATE Q4 /oFES
—_—’E“@, ' e T e e Tt LIERTNE UMWt
i : et
4 i_i L e
2 |fy o f‘*“""""’% |
5 F
o S P S =
X B I 3
o e
lp,va;me/ /1 /lSiN'/ :3/;;/ I !f“;:“f -
Me’(&ka’-ﬁj LAE ) ’
B e Ay StheeT S '
| Ne tes . o ,

L P Nhevui<eg L Cevanmeraal pleaTs<y ot galdens
T f —— A U

'TKM he cam sk

2, Tluﬁ hos  bean oocean Rk -{e./o&—n«f—%;)em

: Qrd W howt o0 (hod ony kohe/ excmef

wst hre (Clb@n  Pe=pla dlﬂ._o»-rL b f\S~= ool _

e ®nwas bow  Mvon eloored s .

W= g W‘-L o ATt

ch\rae«-—-s( pky  was LH Lt SFsed e he Hu capie
u J J |7y A

2nd ool  tre et  erlowcd 1..&1 to 4.«:]. w%;?k_é__,,__

it lag  not o~ bl swerml eors |
PBor AT R ¥ o

Cowlren Td ek _pedectiU, g amegle l
L2 b o oakils Fro to ik Blporyle

Jd
MC&\_@g«f:t (<t '\Wﬁ Ms—&‘%h -

\
|
!
l
\
|
i

3
g

‘ ?&Th—m o
5| e afe Ao v WRWAZ o NH\’:Q‘L& (
wal  asd 9 wma e  weatr Bpole 8THg —
k. Ther g pwooo L ;‘n’l}mw‘w& asemdl e
| Qon penk . Smo  p hie  Seme v B WEL \
| (2t n  aAldion fwall o - U f e ebda

e | —: (

P, v7,L o Tz @ o Canmerda Trut leses Sdeo 2 3?»&1' ~ SE
5 Thert o al pTls heat apfren te de wmfh/\\\j, L
q ‘/(’/lm,:"c_ o A (hoge A abr be Ne t-nd-lsJ (fe wH’Zu»u

[T PR a A”t_‘fé‘q-\xm lnj>r..—.-nl Ade . e st fee A G -

196



l
#&Mp‘%ﬁ__i_%}ﬁx_w_éﬂ&ﬁm $

|
] The Gl (

. =9

T

—

(

_Tre ning (et en Paa »@«t,_&aﬂ__@gﬁqrg_%m_gﬁ; -
‘ K bain loAataeny A stalas cemies o kk\'\f\ql,d-fz-ﬁ’\:ﬁi\ﬂ:&l_g"
%Nj et o ;fu# OO | 2 n2ensT TM\:J' Shde ArfecH

S inde pe bedfmns  uindmSs 2, MEas %_j lane. bmousc g ‘
| e
L Tese gR o=t Qucptalate | (ead dodts— ~Mase Slesuhd
| be levened lMa&pigL  6s  baas e Unrq cessar—
. L Te VCJ% T Do e dTe o nats afc e~woi
\ {"9 Kj’(w-v( = Ca~ ;Pfu\l” ond  de  auolat Slalae -oe-\‘b (
i' Yoo 3 (siadwesy Tre Can P w N uded ar
F /\*\TJG/\‘F ey L-@.. |
|
|
. (e K2 ¢ |
“lnase m‘,?««-’foo'\lw\j. TMWG-APvSLQJCgﬂ S
| 4 [ T
| krah,ﬁ-&\jemaaecwtcjduwm& {
B | Ao W, | et s it o )
AO ‘?\J L N 4#__,\.4 @cau. N=f ot

|
—e il e by Comadel Mo Druae ey oo 68JwGy
B Stoedal b Tn Fre ray v hee kn-.—di:(?ja‘!’u'ﬁ L

r
.J ::%-\La( an,u— | = o M‘gh#/_/mm_/ﬂs—a_
f‘uu@mmedomeM
|

(

BT cayimng 3o uSl:j Sheeitd  NsT2lands hone
jq%%qb@ﬁh%ﬁh&%@wh7 l
o L _
L The . ETaas  ah Fe emtrance Jc_@:sfrsl—v and. ‘

— - Ast_applepn ety W Soe APY . Bnse frmten olla
T,l:u 2T s p e tu. ’AK'DWE\-, M‘{M {

: Boiewlages diiverm to go Pew f,y\_mj,‘akw_,,k_(

— e lene pecause Waz so vf_‘slbtc,,ﬂﬁ!%,&a-__&m;, B
N - i
) o Samedd b at be atbona te ot pm N

197



i
_%,[__Qv)-,__J‘ _43 ez _@.ij_%.asﬁ?aie_g}(e Aoars e __%ﬂ( ~

j‘ @a, Ne L It slnfd b amee o S het t+ koo o

L veu pervg . Caconr 21
|

| Ty, Banvern S

N\Iﬂ“f—fb.ﬁAL.aA_.g.f, Tuls ner  ovceprodte bSkJ

j
} dees P hole ko be  go hig b of ity fuct Kadi,

% ‘\MM‘ECAD(Q'_{-Q’_{_? SU-/QH e c.e AT [ n TT MM*
|

|

l

|

]

i

et~ deen't (A vS\We ij\ {Deka ’J &y % H—C};m\‘ma.aq:j
'vxw»’b—r_«%p(g@ ?

N(e P
N
(Y C%'M««’wjé S e Dl atnijvdo
T Weekrs bep,’O{L ™M vk Svn—e e brock ol @ e

l;~a—/ W e h ;’M_Mé::j__hgi_@d,‘_& e seca L:_}ox.n,u;

e (€618t (o Bo et a +/m__/
Tes c-slgﬁ*%,,_;ga/_a._gl 5n @ Ce

‘ (
LA ’u&gﬁq?pjm— in e Suate j;{(]_@;i.ws Aid e mOS

| EF V‘(LPW(" (egide~aT tv beoy th*?n%usﬂf\&_é_'i\gy—ﬂ_‘\’_‘j—

[ Ylae. T Qelh oA lnves

[ L ol ~
,,—%_*'w}b_,_riﬁ@g_ca(%t_n_mﬁaf_f-_& SN A T oo Sullovndod
- N 7 2 Not+ | S N
t 53 (cen dat & hoiscs _ Net= | g _ﬁﬂt’_gﬁww Urnallo
|

Bt ~LP it ne bea LWRS ks o MO .
L W vk fecled e pas o asToy Y cdese e St lomye y

|
—_1

| braxt N (| = Aasut oA
—— et o el @";\Joﬂ&_ N -\ hed b nasy %Lfﬁ_(ﬁg_.%v
O Rty ovated | Conchacers  Grides vt fae dd e

1l b&_%{e&%f*b_\o—cb\j_ M%{w&‘l(&s—ff S -

¥©“:_94=‘W:p st o N;f_'fé,"@_zj nend . Cass  pot fefsned.

198



!

l
| Wég‘}.@__'\gi\"koﬁﬂ,_hq%’_ﬁt&_3:‘"_’“:"““"9,_}:‘1:7'_-4:‘3&1 IR

e
____;‘Qé? AL C:‘-’{_)Qf_&k Sg_‘i"/ T 3‘*"'}?!’_”_3 _:%~,%?M..
e Moo toore wnt ~w dor alle |

!
____flbﬁﬂi‘_&&m,%_&__‘f:‘_‘b_‘-@ef dors o nows cars é—o i

(

—_ 13

I
ot fe Mot L%@e‘:jfg&méwlb_%“

‘ .
__?_P_Af;«g-_ﬁ{r_. s 1 __A_déep*ﬁer_(g___Lo.,h‘fiﬁ_g.\gfs_go‘,, i
| [

e otvele ol actloivo 8y bt w@lf° o \
2y st WL o

|

he Swvrmes/ on  ~es Tneze &  cogTaocds. _

\
i

U
Crdmct=s o repmazble s pPerypte

(

Ne P hay hoce o Corsrdesr2bly  lack L

C=lLan—an~ Sen s A fre E@J_&@_&'\ow ~3
—

o I
I .
(
|
. |I (
N wgpé:_ &m«
‘\j = Mmrbq Lw & L\.,r\f__—a(m . )
o ! T
e A reAde~d dos e/ 30_@3‘/1 . {

SO, stk
%‘J\ S SN (.

e il Y DO T T anﬂ.A_.,_z_Q_aA_%mt

. /]
Prha~ W_la_qﬁem g (

199



NCP’s ‘unfair’

penalties get ,

townsfolk
allrevved up

Alocal councillor is
battling the parking
firm that set up
cameras and signs
without permission,
writes Kate Palmer

hen Duncan Peck discovered
that CCTV cameras and a crop of
bright-yellow signs had sud-
denly appeared in busy car
parks in his home town, he sus-

pected something was up.
He heard that NCP, which operated
the three car parks in Crawley, West

Sussex, was sending out penalty notices
— sometimes even to motorists who had
left without parking because there were
no free spaces.

Duncan decided to check what was
going on. He drove into one of the car
parks — where large yellow signs alerted

" motorists about parking penalties and

the cameras — waited 10 minutes, then
Jeft. Sure enough, a £100 fine from NCP
arrived in the post.

Now Duncan, a Conservative council-
lor, is embroiled in a battle with NCP

over claims that his and other fines were

unlawful because the parking operator
had not obtained permission to install
the signsand cameras.

Duncan, 48, said: “It is wrong and dis-
honest to fine people using means for
which they do not have permission.”

NCP has threatened him with court
action over the unpaid fine, which has

Lurid signs and CCTVeca

grown to £243, including
est, £50 legal costs, a £2!
£60 in unspecified costs.
His crusade against N(
anger across the countr;
companies’ use of CCTV t
ists’ names and addre:
Driver and Vehicle Lic
(DVLA). The firms are
request the details of a re:
ists this year in order to se

200




deov  Counsiitess fyo,\q,\ebo%,]mg

~ef CAz Pﬁtﬁ—c . MeTrersy Wre | [N SN

Vs @sidats odourd the =V Coe Fonk
axT astr~iSlhed hotr Wegiting e Attt )neloded

mw e avre—~+ af.pu@,h“?:—a\ Ao 7;;>LM~,.‘,_.3 .
W  as< "‘mz_ft/’”f@g ,feez-'eﬂf*"‘j et e
&W(A&I"°A A—— ab:]“r&//ea ux\:t‘:? re P
lhao ror 2\ /L‘S—‘ 9(2/\73 ond L AviVee~Ae &

Aven, b Coarncal has dachdowcd =2 Aia~ale
SN LC, o we  hepe S Wit Unlo /56w of

(

Q)MM: K/\\W (- dubwb Lo

Ty M<Glasy 0, NMMEQ Lan -

Voall Pl |7 Beavwot Fee

Q\La r\!\,bQSW\U lﬂ@ HLLVJJ Z’AO’@L
Ma/@ Bluclcelin, Zi Monx’z Lincola

John Hudsen 19 ?\wgo\ke

ot M IS (el by AL
Ples OSory 1T Mopiech,, fane

TOWN  CR\CK. L0 WONEFTE  (aieS
Lo Belimg 2 Pngate INTES

201



Highways & Planning
Comment Date: Thu 15 Aug 2019

No Objections

202



ltem No. 4f

Application Number: | 2019/0609/ADV

Site Address: Car Park, Motherby Lane, Lincoln

Target Date: 27th September 2019

Agent Name: Stripe Consulting

Applicant Name: Mr Tom Collins

Proposal: Display of 7no. wall mounted signs and 8no. pole mounted
signs (Part-retrospective).

Background - Site Location and Description

The application seeks approval for various signs within a car park operated by NCP
located on the south side of Motherby Lane. An advertisement application was invited for
advertisements within the car park following an enforcement investigation given their
unauthorised nature. Advice was given by a Planning Officer to remove/amalgamate some
of the signs before an application was made.

An accompanying application has been received for the ANPR cameras on the site and is
being considered under application 2019/0608/FUL.

The site is located within the Cathedral and City Centre Conservation Area No. 1.

The application is brought before Planning Committee given the objections received to the
proposal.

Site History
Reference: Description Status Decision Date:
2019/0608/FUL Installation ~ of  2no. | Pending Decision

pole-mounted ANPR
cameras (Retrospective)

Case Officer Site Visit

Undertaken on 9th September 2019.

Policies Referred to

e Policy LP27: Main Town Centre Uses - Frontages and Advertisements
e National Planning Policy Framework

Issues
e Impact on visual amenity and the character and appearance of the conservation
area

e Impact on public safety

Consultations

Consultations were carried out in accordance with the Statement of Community
Involvement, adopted May 2014.

203



Statutory Consultation Responses

Consultee Comment
Highways & Planning Comments Received
Lincoln Civic Trust Comments Received

Public Consultation Responses

Name Address

Councillor Lucinda Preston

Mrs Lynne Corcoran 7 Rosebery Avenue
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 IND

Dr Donald Pulford 17 Beaumont Fee
Lincoln
Lincolnshire

LN1 1EY

Consideration

National and Local Planning Policy

Policy LP27 'Main Town Centre Uses - Frontages and Advertisements' of the Central
Lincolnshire Local Plan (2017) is permissive of advertisements provided the following
criteria are met:

h. The design (including any associated lighting and illumination), materials, size and
location of the advertisement respects the scale and character of the building on which it is
situated and the surrounding area, especially in the case of a listed building or within a
conservation area; and

|. The proposal would not result in a cluttered street scene, excessive signage, or a
proliferation of signs advertising a single site or enterprise; and

|. The proposal would not cause a hazard to pedestrians or road users; and

k. The proposal would not impede on any surveillance equipment and would contribute
positively to public perceptions of security

Paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) acknowledges poorly
sited and designed advertisements can have a negative impact on the quality and
character of places.

Impact on Visual Amenity

The proposed adverts would replace some of the existing unauthorised signage on the
site. The advertisements subject to this application would include 7 wall mounted signs
and 8 free standing signs all of which would be non-illuminated. Some of the proposed
signs have been amalgamated, reduced in height, reduced in size or removed following
officer advice. The reduction in total signs on the site would be 8.

204




Whilst a public consultation is not undertaken for advertisement applications, 2 comments
from local residents have been received as well as an objection from Councillor Preston
and a petition. The comments received raise concern with the number of signs and also
comment on the lighting within the site. The lights within the site are wall mounted and do
not constitute development. However, Environment Health Officers have been liaising with
the car park operator to reduce glare from the lights into neighbouring gardens; this is
ongoing.

The main bulk of the proposed signage is located within the site and therefore not visually
prominent when viewed from West Parade or Motherby Lane. The existing pole mounted
sign on the west side of the Motherby Lane entrance would be removed and the sign on
the east side would be reduced in size. At the West Parade entry point a pole mounted
sign would be removed and another sign would be repositioned approximately 2-3 metres
into the site and away from the entrance. Furthermore, 7 terms and conditions signs within
the car park would be reduced to 3.

Whilst the application site lies within a Conservation Area, the applicant has taken account
of previous comments from officers and the total number of signs on the site has been
reduced. The signs are non-illuminated and they have been reduced in size and number
particularly at the entrances where they are most visible. It is considered the revised
signage would not be visually intrusive, would not be excessive for the site nor would they
be harmful to character and appearance of the Conservation Area and would therefore
accord with Policy LP27 of the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan.

Impact on Highway Safety

The proposed signs would not be hazardous to pedestrians or road users. Lincolnshire
County Council (as Highway Authority) has concluded that the proposed development is
acceptable and, accordingly, does not wish to object to this planning application.

Impact on Surveillance and Security
The proposed signs would not impede on any surveillance equipment nor affect public
perceptions of security.

Application negotiated either at pre-application or during process of application

Yes.

Financial Implications

None.

Legal Implications

None.

Equality Implications

None.

Conclusion

205



The proposed signage scheme would respect the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, not cause a hazard to pedestrians or road users, nor impede any
surveillance equipment or affect public perceptions of security, in accordance with Policy
LP27 'Main Town Centre Uses - Frontages and Advertisements' of the Central Lincolnshire
Local Plan (2017) and relevant guidance contained within the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019).

Application Determined within Target Date

Yes.

Recommendation

That the application is Granted Conditionally (standard advertisement conditions)

206



Site Plan

207



OTHERBY LANE

Revised signage scheme

208



| The CCTV Camera on Motherby Lane |

Camera Positions

209



Existing signage (sign on the right to be removed)

210



St

West parade entrance signs (welcome sign to be removed and other sign to be
positioned further into the site)

211



Pole mounted signs which would be altered to wall mounted

212



213



214



wor Motherby Lane: Car Park.
Terms & Conditions 3pP1Y
ﬁ when parking With US

Entry sign at Motherby Lane entrance to be relocated further into the site

215



216



Councillor Lucinda Preston Not Available (Objects)
Comment submitted date: Thu 29 Aug 2019

There are a number of issues with the above retrospective planning applications with regard to the
unnecessary number of signs and obtrusive nature of both the signage and the cameras. However,
at this stage I specifically draw your attention to the problems with the lighting erected in the car
park.

Firstly, there are too many lights for what is a small car park. Whilst safety is important, given the
size of the space, it is unnecessary to have so many lights. Secondly, the lights are far too bright
and are incredibly obtrusive, thus having a detrimental impact on the quality of life of residents
living on Motherby Lane. Many residents now find that back bedrooms are not suitable for sleep
and that ground level rooms at the back of the properties are constantly flooded with light
pollution, causing them to be less relaxing spaces and creating issues regarding privacy. A
council officer has himself observed that the level of light emitted is above the level that would
be expected for a residential property. The use of masking tape over lights by the operating
company has done little to lessen the harsh glare.

As a result of these issues, | am supporting the residents of Motherby Lane in asking that the
above applications are delayed until the lighting issues are addressed. Like the residents, I am
surprised that lighting is not part of these planning applications. This is a residential area and also
part of a conservation area and therefore lighting should surely be part of any planning
application.

Mrs Lynne Corcoran 7 Rosebery Avenue Lincoln Lincolnshire LN1 IND
(Objects)

Comment submitted date: Mon 26 Aug 2019

I welcome the fact that the signs at the entrance will be reduced under the proposed plan and in
particular the proposed removal of signs that are in front of a resident's window. I think it should
be ensured that the large sign at the left of the entrance, which is proposed to be sited on the wall,
is re-sited far enough along the wall for it not to be visible to people walking down West Parade
towards the car park. The sign at the right of the entrance could also be mounted on the wall,
rather than on a pole, sited so that it could still be seen by approaching drivers.

I welcome the fact that the signs in the main body of the car park will be reduced under the
proposals but would suggest this should be taken even further, as all of these signs are garish and
there is no need to have so much repetition of information.

The element that | know from talking to residents is probably the most intrusive is the lighting. It

is very bright and on for long stretches of time. | understand that this is not within your remit but
I hope that there will be liaison on this issue with the appropriate department.

Dr Donald Pulford 17 Beaumont Fee Lincoln Lincolnshire LN1 1EY (Neutral)
Comment submitted date: Tue 20 Aug 2019

I have a couple of concerns:

1) The pole-mounted sign at the Motherby Lane entrance is ugly and visually polluting. It might

be better against or on the wall of the near house. After all, traffic in Motherby Lane is one way
and it would still make an impact without damaging the streetscape.

217



2) It is not clear how the car park is to be lit. I am keen that any glare not intrude into/on homes in
the area.

218



deov  Counsiitess fyo,\q,\ebo%,]mg

~ef CAz Pﬁt%, MeTrerdy Wse  Linceay.

Tl (esidats odourd the =V Coe Fonk
axT ashr~iShed hotr Wegitng e Attt )neloded

tnw e avre—~+ ouf.pu@,h“h—a\ Ao 7;;>LM~,.‘,_.3 .
W as< "‘mz_ft/’”f@g ,feez-'eﬂ**"‘j et e
&WQ&IW°A A—— ab:]“ra//ee% ux\:t‘:? re P
lhao ror 2N /L& 9(2/\73 ord L AviVSe~Ae &

KAven,  tne Cowrncl  has  Facdowed o Lisale
0=, o W  hexpe jao\. WS Unlo /53¢ of

(

Q)MM: K/\\W (- JMT.‘-ME) Ln o

Ty M<Glasy 0, N\a’(@fhg Lan -

Voall Pl |7 Beavwot Fee

Q\La r\!\‘bQSW\U lﬂ@ [’/LLVJJ Z’AO’@L
C(af@ Bluclceldo, | Mw@cn’z Lincola

John Hudsen 19 ?\wgo\\;e

ot MRS IS (el by AL
Ples OSony 1T Mopiech,, [ane

TOWN  CR\CK. L0 WONEFTE  (aieS
Lo Belimg 2 Pngete UNUTES

219



Lincoln Civic Trust
Comment Date: Tue 10 Sep 2019

No Objection <br/>Comment: We appreciate that after consultation the number of signs has
already been reduced, but we felt that NCP should be tasked with reviewing the necessity of so
many bright yellow signs in a car park. <br/>

Highways & Planning

Comment Date: Tue 27 Aug 2019

Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission

220



	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 11 September 2019
	3 Work to Trees in City Council Ownership
	4a Boultham Park Lake, Boultham Park Road, Lincoln
	2019.0690.RG3 Boultham Park documents LS

	4b Phase 4, LN6 Development, Westbrooke Road
	Westbrooke Road Phase 4 Plans and Photos LS
	Westbrooke Road Phase 4 Consultation responses LS

	4c 38B Willis Close, Lincoln
	plans and site photos
	consultation reponses

	4d 18-20 Kingsway, Lincoln
	18-20 Kingsway plans and photos LS
	18-20 Kingsway consultation responses LS

	4e NCP Car Park, Motherby Lane, Lincoln
	NCP Documents for both applications adv and ful LS
	2019.0608.FUL NCP FUL Consultation responses LS

	4f Car Park, Motherby Lane, Lincoln (Signage)
	NCP Documents for both applications adv and ful LS
	2019.0609.ADV NCP ADV Consultation responses LS


